### AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made between the CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER, a municipal corporation of the State of Colorado (the "City") and United HealthCare Services, Inc., 185 Asylum Street, Hartford, CT 06103-0450, including as contractors for service United Behavioral Health 425 Market Street, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105-2426 (a "Claims Administrator") and UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, 185 Asylum Street, Hartford, CT 06103-0450 (unless individually referenced herein, they are collectively referred to as the "Insurance Company"), jointly ("the Parties").

The Parties agree as follows:

### RECITALS

**WHEREAS**, the City intends to purchase services for use with City's Self-Funded high deductible health plan as of **January 1, 2023**.

**WHEREAS**, the City also intends to purchase services for use with City's Self-Funded deductible co-insurance benefits plan.

**WHEREAS**, part of the health plan programs intended includes a stop loss insurance policy.

**WHEREAS**, the current exhibits are intended to evidence the party's intent for stop loss insurance coverage and administration of the Self-Funded high deductible health benefits plan.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>DEFINITIONS</u>: When terms are capitalized in the Agreement they have the meanings set forth in the Agreement or the Self-Funded Benefits Plan Administrative Services Agreement ("ASA"), attached hereto.
- 2. <u>COORDINATION AND LIAISON</u>: The Insurance Company shall fully coordinate the purchase of agreed stop loss policies and the Claims Administrator shall fully coordinate the purchase of all claims administration services under this Agreement with the Executive Director of the Office of Human Resources, ("Executive Director") or, the Executive Director's Designee.

The Executive Director shall be authorized to sign any documents necessary to effectuate policy-related coverage necessary for implementation or administration of the intended insurance

program, or for the implementation or administration self-funded Plan provided that such signature delegation may not expand or create a new liability for the City beyond the liabilities expressly contemplated herein.

### 3. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED:

The documents attached in Exhibit A, ("Scope of Services and Administration") are intended to evidence and put in place the Self-Funded claims processing and related service arrangements and administration for the City's self-funded Plan ("Exhibit A-1" and "Exhibit A-4").

- a. As the Executive Director directs, the Insurance Company shall diligently undertake, perform, and complete all of the services and produce all the deliverables set forth on **Exhibits A**, to the City's satisfaction.
- **b.** The Insurance Company is ready, willing, and able to provide the services required by this Agreement.
- c. The Insurance Company shall faithfully perform the services in accordance with the standards of care, skill, training, diligence, and judgment provided by highly competent individuals performing services of a similar nature to those described in the Agreement for the respective services and in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
- 4. <u>TERM</u>: The Agreement effective January 1, 2023 ("Effective Date") and will expire at 11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2025 (the "Term"). The term of this Agreement may be extended by the City under the same terms and conditions by a written amendment to this Agreement. Subject to the Executive Director's prior written authorization, the Insurance Company shall complete any work in progress as of the expiration date and the Term of the Agreement will extend until the work is completed or earlier terminated by the Executive Director.

# 5. <u>COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT:</u>

- **a.** <u>Invoicing</u>: Insurance Company shall provide the City with a monthly invoice in a format and with a level of detail acceptable to the City including all supporting documentation required by the City. The City's Prompt Payment Ordinance, §§ 20-107 to 20-118, D.R.M.C., applies to invoicing and payment under this Agreement.
- b. <u>Maximum Contract Amount</u>: Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, the City's maximum payment obligation will not exceed **EIGHTY MILLION DOLLARS AND NO CENTS (\$80,000,000.00)** (the "Maximum Contract Amount"). The

amount and frequency of billing and the detail required on each periodic bill shall be as agreed with the Executive Director. The City is not obligated to execute an agreement or any amendments for any further services, including any services performed by Insurance Company beyond that specifically described in the **Exhibits**. Any services performed beyond those in the **Exhibits** are performed at Insurance Company's risk and without authorization under the Agreement.

The City's payment obligation, whether direct or contingent, extends only to funds appropriated annually by the Denver City Council, paid into the Treasury of the City, and encumbered for the purpose of the Agreement. The City does not by this Agreement irrevocably pledge present cash reserves for payment or performance in future fiscal years. The Agreement does not and is not intended to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or financial obligation of the City.

6. <u>STATUS OF INSURANCE COMPANY</u>: The Insurance Company is an independent contractor retained to perform professional or technical services for limited periods of time. Neither the Insurance Company nor any of its employees are employees or officers of the City under Chapter 18 of the Denver Revised Municipal Code, or for any purpose whatsoever.

## 7. <u>TERMINATION</u>:

- a. The City has the right to terminate the Agreement with cause upon written notice effective immediately, and without cause upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Insurance Company. However, nothing gives the Insurance Company the right to perform services under the Agreement beyond the time when its services become unsatisfactory to the Executive Director.
- Agreement if the Insurance Company or any of its officers or employees are convicted, plead *nolo contendere*, enter into a formal agreement in which they admit guilt, enter a plea of guilty or otherwise admit culpability to criminal offenses of bribery, kick-backs, collusive bidding, bidrigging, antitrust, fraud, undue influence, theft, racketeering, extortion or any offense of a similar nature in connection with Insurance Company's business. Termination for the reasons stated in this paragraph is effective upon receipt of notice.
- **c.** Upon termination of the Agreement, with or without cause, the Insurance Company shall have no claim against the City by reason of, or arising out of, incidental or relating

to termination, except for compensation for work duly requested and satisfactorily performed as described in the Agreement.

- d. If the Agreement is terminated, the City is entitled to and will take possession of all materials, equipment, tools and facilities it owns that are in the Insurance Company's and Claims Administrator's possession, custody, or control by whatever method the City deems expedient. The Insurance Company and Claims Administrator shall deliver all documents in any form that were prepared under the Agreement and all other items, materials and documents that have been paid for by the City to the City. These documents and materials are the property of the City. The Insurance Company and Claims Administrator shall mark all copies of work product that are incomplete at the time of termination "DRAFT-INCOMPLETE".
- **EXAMINATION OF RECORDS:** Any authorized agent of the City, including 8. the City Auditor or his or her representative, has the right to access and the right to examine, copy and retain copies, at City's election in paper or electronic form, any pertinent books, documents, papers and records related to Insurance Company's and Claims Administrator's performance pursuant to this Agreement, provision of any goods or services to the City, and any other transactions related to this Agreement. Insurance Company and Claims Administrator shall cooperate with City representatives and City representatives shall be granted access to the foregoing documents and information during reasonable business hours and until the latter of three (3) years after the final payment under the Agreement or expiration of the applicable statute of limitations. When conducting an audit of this Agreement, the City Auditor shall be subject to government auditing standards issued by the United States Government Accountability Office by the Comptroller General of the United States, including with respect to disclosure of information acquired during the course of an audit. No examination of records and audit pursuant to this paragraph shall require Parties to make disclosures in violation of state or federal privacy laws. Parties shall at all times comply with D.R.M.C. 20-276.
- 9. WHEN RIGHTS AND REMEDIES NOT WAIVED: In no event will any payment or other action by the City constitute or be construed to be a waiver by the City of any breach of covenant or default that may then exist on the part of the Insurance Company. No payment, other action, or inaction by the City when any breach or default exists will impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to it with respect to any breach or default. No assent,

expressed or implied, to any breach of any term of the Agreement constitutes a waiver of any other breach.

# 10. <u>INSURANCE</u>:

**General Conditions:** Insurance Company agrees to secure, at or before the time of execution of this Agreement, the following insurance covering all operations, goods or services provided pursuant to this Agreement. Insurance Company shall keep the required insurance coverage in force at all times during the term of the Agreement, including any extension thereof, and during any warranty period. The required insurance shall be underwritten by an insurer licensed or authorized to do business in Colorado and rated by A.M. Best Company as "A-VIII" or better. Each policy shall require notification to the City in the event any of the required policies be canceled or non-renewed before the expiration date thereof. Such written notice shall be sent to the parties identified in the Notices section of this Agreement. Such notice shall reference the City contract number listed on the signature page of this Agreement. Said notice shall be sent thirty (30) days prior to such cancellation or non-renewal unless due to non-payment of premiums for which notice shall be sent ten (10) days prior. If such written notice is unavailable from the insurer, Insurance Company shall provide written notice of cancellation, non-renewal and any reduction in coverage to the parties identified in the Notices section by mail within three (3) business days of such notice by its insurer(s) and referencing the City's contract number. Insurance Company shall be responsible for the payment of any deductible or self-insured retention. The insurance coverages specified in this Agreement are the minimum requirements, and these requirements do not lessen or limit the liability of the Insurance Company. The Insurance Company shall maintain, at its own expense, any additional kinds or amounts of insurance that it may deem necessary to cover its obligations and liabilities under this Agreement.

work relating to this Agreement prior to placement of coverages required under this Agreement. Insurance Company certifies that the certificate of insurance attached as **Exhibit B**, preferably an ACORD form, complies with all insurance requirements of this Agreement. The City requests that the City's contract number be referenced on the certificate of insurance. The City's acceptance of a certificate of insurance or other proof of insurance that does not comply with all insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement shall not act as a waiver of Insurance Company's breach of this Agreement or of any of the City's rights or remedies under this Agreement. The City's Risk

Management Office may require additional proof of insurance, such as endorsements.

- **c.** <u>Additional Insureds</u>: For Commercial General Liability, Business Auto Liability, and Excess Liability/Umbrella (if required). Insurance Company and subcontractor's insurer(s) shall include the City and County of Denver, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers as additional insured.
- **Maiver of Subrogation:** For the Commercial General Liability, Business Auto Liability, Excess Liability/Umbrella (if required) and Workers' Compensation insurance required under this Agreement, Insurance Company's insurer shall waive subrogation rights against the City.
- e. <u>Subcontractors and Subconsultants</u>: Insurance Company shall confirm and document that all subcontractors and subconsultants (including independent contractors, suppliers or other entities providing goods or services required by this Agreement) procure and maintain coverage as approved by the Insurance Company and appropriate to their respective primary business risks considering the nature and scope of services provided.
- f. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance: Insurance Company shall maintain the coverage as required by statute for each work location and shall maintain Employer's Liability insurance with limits of \$100,000 per occurrence for each bodily injury claim, \$100,000 per occurrence for each bodily injury caused by disease claim, and \$500,000 aggregate for all bodily injuries caused by disease claims.
- **General Liability:** Insurance Company shall maintain a Commercial General Liability insurance policy with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 for each bodily injury and property damage occurrence, \$2,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate (if applicable), and \$2,000,000 policy aggregate.
- h. <u>Automobile Liability</u>: Insurance Company shall maintain Automobile Liability with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 combined single limit applicable to all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles used in performing services under this Agreement.
- i. <u>Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions)</u>: (Add on) Insurance Company shall maintain limits of \$1,000,000 per claim and \$1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.
- **Cyber Liability:** Insurance Company shall maintain Cyber Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 per claim and \$1,000,000 policy aggregate covering claims involving privacy violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information,

intentional and/or unintentional release of private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security.

# 11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION:

- a. Insurance Company hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, reimburse and hold harmless City, its appointed and elected officials, agents and employees for, from and against all liabilities, claims, judgments, suits or demands for damages to persons or property arising out of, resulting from, or relating to the work performed under this Agreement ("Claims"), unless such Claims have been specifically determined by the trier of fact to be the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City. This indemnity shall be interpreted in the broadest possible manner to indemnify City for any acts or omissions of Insurance Company or its subcontractors either passive or active, irrespective of fault, including City's concurrent negligence whether active or passive, except for the sole negligence or willful misconduct of City
- **b.** Insurance Company's duty to defend and indemnify City shall arise at the time written notice of the Claim is first provided to City regardless of whether Claimant has filed suit on the Claim. Insurance Company's duty to defend and indemnify City shall arise even if City is the only party sued by claimant and/or claimant alleges that City's negligence or willful misconduct was the sole cause of claimant's damages.
- c. Insurance Company will defend any and all Claims which may be brought or threatened against City and will pay on behalf of City any expenses incurred by reason of such Claims including, but not limited to, court costs and attorney fees incurred in defending and investigating such Claims or seeking to enforce this indemnity obligation. Such payments on behalf of City shall be in addition to any other legal remedies available to City and shall not be considered City's exclusive remedy.
- **d.** Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Insurance Company under the terms of this indemnification obligation. The Insurance Company shall obtain, at its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary for the City's protection.
- **e.** This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
- **12. TAXES, CHARGES AND PENALTIES:** As applicable to the stop loss policy, and subject to limitations in the Self-Funded Benefits Plan Administrative Services Agreement,

the City is not liable for the payment of taxes, late charges or penalties of any nature, except for any additional amounts that the City may be required to pay under the City's prompt payment ordinance D.R.M.C. § 20-107, *et seq*. The Insurance Company shall promptly pay when due, all taxes, bills, debts and obligations it incurs performing the services under the Agreement and shall not allow any lien, mortgage, judgment or execution to be filed against City property.

- 13. <u>ASSIGNMENT</u>; <u>SUBCONTRACTING</u>: To the extent necessary to provide products and services contemplated in this document, the Parties agree the Insurance Company will use subcontractors to provide the services and benefits contemplated for purchase herein. Insurance Company will be responsible for those services to the same extent that Insurance Company would have been had it performed those services without the use of an affiliate or subcontractor. Insurance Company can assign this Agreement, including its rights and obligations to Insurance Company's affiliates, to an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with Insurance Company, or a purchase of all or substantially all of Insurance Company's assets, subject to notice to the City of the assignments. In the event of any unauthorized assignment: (i) the Insurance Company shall remain responsible to the City; and (ii) no contractual relationship shall be created between the City and any sub-Insurance Company, s assign.
- **14. INUREMENT:** The rights and obligations of the Parties to the Agreement inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Parties and their respective successors and assigns, provided assignments are consented to in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
- Agreement and all rights of action relating to enforcement are strictly reserved to the Parties. Nothing contained in the Agreement gives or allows any claim or right of action to any third person or entity. Any person or entity other than the City or the Insurance Company receiving services or benefits pursuant to the Agreement is an incidental beneficiary only.
- 16. NO AUTHORITY TO BIND CITY TO CONTRACTS: The Insurance Company lacks any authority to bind the City on any contractual matters. Final approval of all contractual matters that purport to obligate the City must be executed by the City in accordance with the City's Charter and the Denver Revised Municipal Code.
- 17. <u>SEVERABILITY</u>: Except for the provisions of the Agreement requiring appropriation of funds and limiting the total amount payable by the City, if a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of the Agreement or any portion of it to be invalid, illegal, or

unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions will not be affected, if the intent of the Parties can be fulfilled.

## 18. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

- a. No employee of the City shall have any personal or beneficial interest in the services or property described in the Agreement. The Insurance Company shall not hire, or contract for services with, any employee or officer of the City that would be in violation of the City's Code of Ethics, D.R.M.C. §2-51, et seq. or the Charter §§ 1.2.8, 1.2.9, and 1.2.12.
- b. The Insurance Company shall not engage in any transaction, activity or conduct that would result in a conflict of interest under the Agreement. The Insurance Company represents that it has disclosed any and all current or potential conflicts of interest. A conflict of interest shall include transactions, activities or conduct that would affect the judgment, actions or work of the Insurance Company by placing the Insurance Company's own interests, or the interests of any party with whom the Insurance Company has a contractual arrangement, in conflict with those of the City. The City, in its sole discretion, will determine the existence of a conflict of interest and may terminate the Agreement if it determines a conflict exists, after it has given the Insurance Company written notice describing the conflict.
- 19. NOTICES: All notices required by the terms of the Agreement must be hand delivered, sent by overnight courier service, mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, or mailed via United States mail, postage prepaid, if to Insurance Company at the address first above written, and if to the City at:

### If to the Insurance Company:

Jennifer Behm Account Vice President UnitedHealth Group 6465 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 300 Centennial CO 80111

With a copy of any such notice to:

Renee Feagan Associate General Counsel UnitedHealth Group 9900 Bren Road East Mail Stop MN950-1000 Minnetonka, MN 5534

# If to the City:

Executive Director, Office Human Resources 201 West Colfax Avenue, Dept. 412 Denver, Colorado 80202

With a copy of any such notice to:

Denver City Attorney's Office Attorney for OHR - Benefits 1437 Bannock St., Room 353 Denver, Colorado 80202

Notices hand delivered or sent by overnight courier are effective upon delivery. Notices sent by certified mail are effective upon receipt. Notices sent by mail are effective upon deposit with the U.S. Postal Service. The Parties may designate substitute addresses where or persons to whom notices are to be mailed or delivered. However, these substitutions will not become effective until actual receipt of written notification.

# 20. NO EMPLOYMENT OF WORKERS WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION TO PERFORM WORK UNDER THE AGREEMENT: [NOT NEGOTIABLE]

- **a.** This Agreement is subject to Division 5 of Article IV of Chapter 20 of the Denver Revised Municipal Code, and any amendments (the "Certification Ordinance").
  - **b.** The Insurance Company certifies that:
- (1) At the time of its execution of this Agreement, it does not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization who will perform work under this Agreement, nor will it knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this Agreement in the future.
- (2) It will participate in the E-Verify Program, as defined in § 8-17.5-101(3.7), C.R.S., and confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under this Agreement.
- (3) It will not enter into a contract with a subconsultant or subcontractor that fails to certify to the Insurance Company that it shall not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this Agreement
- (4) It is prohibited from using the E-Verify Program procedures to undertake preemployment screening of job applicants while performing its obligations under this Agreement, and it is required to comply with any and all federal requirements related to use of the E-Verify

Program including, by way of example, all program requirements related to employee notification and preservation of employee rights.

- (5) If it obtains actual knowledge that a subconsultant or subcontractor performing work under this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with a worker without authorization, it will notify such subconsultant or subcontractor and the City within three (3) days. The Insurance Company shall also terminate such subconsultant or subcontractor if within three (3) days after such notice the subconsultant or subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the worker without authorization, unless during the three-day period the subconsultant or subcontractor provides information to establish that the subconsultant or subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with a worker without authorization.
- **(6)** It will comply with a reasonable request made in the course of an investigation by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment under authority of § 8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S., or the City Auditor, under authority of D.R.M.C. 20-90.3.
- c. The Insurance Company is liable for any violations as provided in the Certification Ordinance. If the Insurance Company violates any provision of this section or the Certification Ordinance, the City may terminate this Agreement for a breach of the Agreement. If this Agreement is so terminated, the Insurance Company shall be liable for actual and consequential damages to the City. Any termination of a contract due to a violation of this section or the Certification Ordinance may also, at the discretion of the City, constitute grounds for disqualifying the Contractor from submitting bids or proposals for future contracts with the City.
- 21. <u>DISPUTES</u>: All disputes between the City and Insurance Company or Claims Administrator arising out of or regarding the Agreement will be resolved by administrative hearing pursuant to the procedure established by D.R.M.C. § 56-106(b)-(f). For the purposes of that administrative procedure, the City official rendering a final determination shall be the Executive Director as defined in this Agreement.
- **22. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:** The Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with applicable federal law, the applicable laws of the State of Colorado, and applicable the Charter, Revised Municipal Code, ordinances, regulations and Executive Orders of the City and County of Denver, which are expressly incorporated into the Agreement. Unless otherwise specified, any reference to statutes, laws, regulations, charter or code provisions, ordinances, executive orders, or related memoranda, includes amendments or supplements to

same. Venue for any legal action relating to the Agreement will be in the District Court of the State of Colorado, Second Judicial District (Denver District Court).

- 23. <u>NO DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT</u>: In connection with the performance of work under the Agreement, the Contractor may not refuse to hire, discharge, promote, demote, or discriminate in matters of compensation against any person otherwise qualified, solely because of race, color, religion, national origin, ethnicity, citizenship, immigration status, gender, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, source of income, military status, protective hairstyle, or disability. The Contractor shall insert the foregoing provision in all subcontracts.
- **24. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS:** Each party shall perform or cause to be performed all services and obligations, both in this Agreement and pursuant to any insurance policies or claims administration services referenced in Exhibits, in full compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and codes of the United States, the State of Colorado; and with the Charter, ordinances, rules, regulations and Executive Orders of the City and County of Denver.
- 25. <u>LEGAL AUTHORITY</u>: Insurance Company represents and warrants that it possesses the legal authority, pursuant to any proper, appropriate and official motion, resolution or action passed or taken, to enter into the Agreement. Each person signing and executing the Agreement on behalf of Insurance Company represents and warrants that he has been fully authorized by Insurance Company to execute the Agreement on behalf of Insurance Company and to validly and legally bind Insurance Company to all the terms, performances and provisions of the Agreement. The City shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to either temporarily suspend or permanently terminate the Agreement if there is a dispute as to the legal authority of either Insurance Company or Claims Administrator or the person signing the Agreement to enter into the Agreement.

## **26.** PERSONAL INFORMATION AND DATA PROTECTION:

a. "<u>Data Protection Laws</u>" means (i) all applicable federal, state, provincial and local laws, rules, regulations, directives and governmental requirements relating in any way to the privacy, confidentiality or security of Personal Information (as defined below in Paragraph 25.B); and (ii) all applicable laws and regulations relating to electronic and non-electronic marketing and advertising; laws regulating unsolicited email communications; security breach notification laws; laws imposing minimum security requirements; laws requiring the secure

disposal of records containing certain Personal Information; laws imposing licensing requirements; laws and other legislative acts that establish procedures for the evaluation of compliance; and all other similar applicable requirements.

- b. "Personal Information" means all information that individually or in combination, does or can identify a specific individual or from which a specific individual can be identified, contacted, or located. Personal Information includes, without limitation, name, signature, address, e-mail address, telephone number, social security number (full or partial), business contact information, date of birth, national or state identification numbers, bank account number, credit or debit card numbers, and any other unique identifier or one or more factors specific to the individual's physical, physiological, mental, economic, cultural, or social identity.
- c. <u>Compliance with Law and Regulation</u>: Insurance Company each confirms and warrants that it complies with any and all applicable Data Protection Laws relating to the collection, use, disclosure, and other processing of Personal Information and that it will perform its obligations under this Agreement in compliance with them. This section will survive the termination of this Agreement.
- Software Programs: Insurance Company will establish and maintain data privacy and information security policies and procedures, including physical, technical, administrative, and organizational safeguards, in order to: (i) ensure the security and confidentiality of Personal Information; (ii) protect against any anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of Personal Information; (iii) protect against unauthorized disclosure, access to, or use of Personal Information; (iv) ensure the proper use of Personal Information; and (v) ensure that all employees, officers, agents, and subcontractors of Insurance Company, if any, comply with all of the foregoing.
- **e.** <u>Confidentiality</u>; <u>No Ownership by Insurance Company of Raw Personal Information</u>: Unless otherwise permitted expressly by applicable law, all Personal Information collected, used, processed, stored, or generated as the result of the services to be provided under this Agreement will be treated by Insurance Company as highly confidential information. Insurance Company will have no right, title, or interest in any underlying raw Personal Information supplied to Insurance Company or Claims Administrator in connection with the services to be provided under this Agreement. The City shall own all underlying raw Personal

Information, pursuant to this Agreement ("City Work Product"). If Personal Information is combined with Insurance Company or Claims Administrator Proprietary Business Information (e.g. reasonable and customary amounts, reimbursement methodologies) Insurance Company and Claims Administrator have proprietary business rights to that portion of the data. Insurance Company have an obligation to promptly alert the City if Insurance Company is aware of any unauthorized disclosure of Personal Information caused solely by Insurance Company's failure to comply with one or more of its obligations under this. Claims Administrator shall notify of any unauthorized use and disclosure of Personal Information as outlined in the Business Associate Agreement between the Parties. This Section will survive the termination of this Agreement.

f. Insurance Company Use of Personal Information and City Work **Product**: Insurance Company will take all necessary precautions to safeguard the storage of Personal Information and City Work Product including without limitation: (i) keep and maintain Personal Information and City Work Product in strict confidence and in compliance with all applicable Data Protection Laws, and such other applicable laws, using such degree of care as is appropriate and consistent with its obligations as described in this Agreement and applicable law to avoid unauthorized access, use, disclosure, or loss; (ii) use and disclose Personal Information or City Work Product solely and exclusively for the purpose of providing the services hereunder, such use and disclosure being in accordance with this Agreement and its attachments including but not limited to Business Associate Agreement, and applicable law, or as otherwise required by law; (iii) not use, sell, rent, transfer, distribute, or otherwise disclose or make available Personal Information Insurance Company's own purposes or for the benefit of anyone other than the City without the prior written consent of the City and the person to whom the Personal Information pertains; and (iv) not engage in "data mining" of Personal Information or City Work Product except as specifically and expressly required by law or authorized in writing by the City. This Section will survive the termination of this Agreement.

g. <u>Employees and Subcontractors</u>: Insurance Company will ensure that, prior to being granted access to Personal Information or City Work Product, Insurance Company's Staff who perform work under this Agreement have all undergone and passed criminal background screenings; have successfully completed annual instruction of a nature sufficient to enable them to effectively comply with all data protection provisions of this Agreement; and possess all qualifications appropriate to the nature of the employees' duties and the sensitivity of the data they

will be handling. Only those Insurance Company's Staff who have a direct need for Personal Information, City Work Product, or Confidential Information shall have access to any information provided under this Agreement. Prior to allowing any Insurance Company's Staff to access or use any Personal Information, City Work Product, or Confidential Information, the Insurance Company shall require any such Insurance Company's Staff to agree to the usage and access terms outlined in this Agreement. The obligations of Insurance Company under this Agreement shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. Insurance Company shall not disclose Personal Information, City Work Product, or Confidential Information to subcontractors unless such subcontractors are bound by non-disclosure and confidentiality provisions at least as strict as those contained in this Agreement. Unless Insurance Company or Claims Administrator provides its own security protection for the information it discloses to it's subcontractor, the Insurance Company shall require it's subcontractor to implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices that are appropriate to the nature of the Personal Information, City Work Product, or Confidential Information disclosed and reasonably designed to protect Personal Information, City Work Product, or Confidential Information from unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. This Section will survive the termination of this Agreement.

- h. Loss of Personal Information or City Work Product: The parties' obligations with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI are outlined in the Business Associate Agreement attached to this Agreement as Exhibit D to Self-Funded Benefits Plan Administrative Services Agreement Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-4.
- i. <u>Data Retention and Destruction</u>: Using appropriate and reliable storage media, Insurance Company will regularly backup all City Work Product and Personal Information used in connection with this Agreement and retain such backup copies consistent with the Insurance Company's data retention policies. Upon termination of the Agreement, at the City's election, Insurance Company will securely transmit to City the City Work Product in an industry standard format. With respect to City Work Product controlled exclusively by Insurance Company or Claims Administrator, Insurance Company or Claims Administrator will promptly preserve the state of the Personal Information or City Work Product at the time of the termination request in accordance with Insurance Company or Claims Administrator data retention policies, and place a "hold" on Personal Information or City Work Product destruction or disposal under its usual

records retention policies of records that include Personal Information or City Work Product in response to a written request from City indicating that those records may be relevant to litigation that City reasonably anticipates. City will promptly coordinate with Insurance Company regarding the preservation and disposition of these records. Insurance Company shall continue to preserve the records until further notice by City. This Section will survive the termination of this Agreement.

**Data Transfer Upon Termination**: Upon termination or expiration of this j. Agreement and City's request, Insurance Company will ensure that all Personal Information and necessary transition information is securely transferred to City, or a party designated by City, within thirty (30) calendar days. Insurance Company will ensure that the data will be provided in an industry standard format. Insurance Company will provide City with no less than ninety (90) calendar days' notice of impending cessation of its business or that of any Insurance Company subcontractor and any contingency plans in the event of notice of such cessation. In connection with any cessation of Insurance Company's or Claims Administrator's business with its customers, Insurance Company shall implement its contingency and/or exit plans and take all reasonable actions to provide for an effective and efficient transition of service with minimal disruption to City. Insurance Company will work closely with its successor to ensure a successful transition to the new service or equipment, with minimal downtime and effect on City, all such work to be coordinated and performed in advance of the formal, final transition date mutually agreed upon by Insurance Company or Claims Administrator and City. This Section will survive the termination of this Agreement.

## 27. GRANT OF LIMITED LICENSE TO USE LOGO:

City hereby grants to Insurance Company, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, a non-exclusive, nontransferable limited license, to use the "Denver D" logo ("**Denver Logo**") during the Term of this Agreement.

- a. Insurance Company shall fully coordinate all logo use under this Agreement with the Denver Marketing Office (<a href="www.denvergov.org/brandcenter">www.denvergov.org/brandcenter</a>, <a href="marketing@denvergov.org">marketing@denvergov.org</a>), or otherwise as directed by the City.
- **b.** The use of the Denver Logo is limited to display on the website to be created by Claims Administrator pursuant to this Agreement and for identification only.

- **c.** The license granted by the City is non-transferable and non-assignable to anyone other than those acting under the supervision and authority of Insurance Company or Claims Administrator.
- **d.** Claims Administrator shall be solely responsible for the entire cost and expense of Claims Administrator's Use of the Denver Logo on standard ID cards, SBCs and Summary Plan Descriptions.
- e. The Denver Logo may not be used as a feature or design element of any other logo or graphic.
- **f.** Insurance Company or Claims Administrator shall affix a trademark ("TM") or registration ("®") indication next to the Denver Logo as directed by the Denver Marketing Office.
- g. Insurance Company or Claims Administrator shall immediately cease all further use of the Denver Logo upon expiration of the Term of this Agreement, as may have been extended from time to time by the Parties, in a formal written extension of this Agreement.
- **28. NO CONSTRUCTION AGAINST DRAFTING PARTY:** The Parties and their respective counsel have had the opportunity to review the Agreement, and the Agreement will not be construed against any party merely because any provisions of the Agreement were prepared by a particular party.
- **29. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE:** In the event of any conflicts between the language of the Agreement and the exhibits, the language of the Agreement controls.
- any exhibits and attachments that by reasonable implication contemplate continued performance, rights, or compliance beyond expiration or termination of the Agreement survive the Agreement and will continue to be enforceable. Without limiting the generality of this provision, the Insurance Company's obligations to provide insurance and Insurance Company's obligations to indemnify the City will survive for a period equal to any and all relevant statutes of limitation, plus the time necessary to fully resolve any claims, matters, or actions begun within that period.
- 31. <u>ADVERTISING AND PUBLIC DISCLOSURE</u>: The Insurance Company shall not include any reference to the Agreement or to services performed pursuant to the Agreement in any of the Insurance Company's or Claims Administrator advertising or public relations materials without first obtaining the written approval of the Executive Director. Any oral presentation or

written materials related to services performed under the Agreement will be limited to services that have been accepted by the City. The Insurance Company shall notify the Executive Director in advance of the date and time of any presentation. Nothing in this provision precludes the transmittal of any information to City officials.

## **32.** CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION:

- a. <u>City Information</u>: Each Party acknowledges and accepts that, in performance of all work under the terms of this Agreement, the other Party may have access to Proprietary Data or confidential information that may be owned or controlled by the other Party, and that the disclosure of such Proprietary Data or information may be damaging to the other Party or third parties. Each Party agrees that all Proprietary Data, confidential information or any other data or information provided or otherwise disclosed by the other Party shall be held in confidence and used only in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, or as otherwise allowed under an Attachment to this Agreement. Each party shall exercise the same standard of care to protect such Proprietary Data and information as a reasonably prudent Party would to protect its own proprietary or confidential data. "Proprietary Data" shall mean any materials or information which may be designated or marked "Proprietary" or "Confidential", or which would not be documents subject to disclosure pursuant to the Colorado Open Records Act or City ordinance, and provided or made available to one Party by the other Party. Such Proprietary Data may be in hardcopy, printed, digital or electronic format.
- **33.** <u>CITY EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT</u>: The Agreement will not be effective or binding on the City until it has been fully executed by all required signatories of the City and County of Denver, and if required by Charter, approved by the City Council.
- **34.** AGREEMENT AS COMPLETE INTEGRATION-AMENDMENTS: The Agreement is the complete integration of all understandings between the Parties as to the subject matter of the Agreement. No prior, contemporaneous or subsequent addition, deletion, or other modification has any force or effect, unless embodied in the Agreement in writing. No oral representation by any officer or employee of the City at variance with the terms of the Agreement or any written amendment to the Agreement will have any force or effect or bind the City.
- 35. <u>USE, POSSESSION OR SALE OF ALCOHOL OR DRUGS</u>: Insurance Company shall cooperate and comply with the provisions of Executive Order 94 and its Attachment A concerning the use, possession or sale of alcohol or drugs. Violation of these

provisions or refusal to cooperate with implementation of the policy can result in contract personnel being barred from City facilities and from participating in City operations.

Company consents to the use of electronic signatures by the City. The Agreement, and any other documents requiring a signature under the Agreement, may be signed electronically by the City in the manner specified by the City. The Parties agree not to deny the legal effect or enforceability of the Agreement solely because it is in electronic form or because an electronic record was used in its formation. The Parties agree not to object to the admissibility of the Agreement in the form of an electronic record, or a paper copy of an electronic document, or a paper copy of a document bearing an electronic signature, on the ground that it is an electronic record or electronic signature or that it is not in its original form or is not an original.

### **Exhibit List:**

Exhibit A-1 – Self-Funded Benefits Plan Administrative Services Agreement.

**Exhibit A-2** –SBC and Benefit Summary for City and County of Denver HSA Plan (Self-Funded).

**Exhibit A-3** – Self-Funded benefit plan stop loss insurance policy, application and amendments.

**Exhibit A-4** – EAP Agreement

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

**Contract Control Number:** 

<b>Contractor Name:</b>	United HealthCare Services, Inc.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the part Denver, Colorado as of:	ties have set their hands and affixed their seals at
SEAL	CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER:
ATTEST:	By:
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	REGISTERED AND COUNTERSIGNED:
Attorney for the City and County of I	Denver
By:	By:
	Ву:

CSAHR-202265732-00

# Contract Control Number: Contractor Name:

# CSAHR-202265732-00 United HealthCare Services, Inc.

(	DocuSigned by:
	Holly Durinick —83324C0E9DF042B
By:	83324C0E9DF042B
•	
	Holly Durinick
Name:	
	(please print)
Title:	Regional Contract Manager (please print)
_	(please print)
ΔΤΤΕ	ST: [if required]
71111	51. [Il required]
By:	
	(-1
	(please print)
Title:	
	(please print)

# EXHIBIT A EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE PURCHASED

#### And

### **ADMINISTRATION SERVICES**

- 1) **Exhibit A-1:** Administrative Services Agreement with United HealthCare Services, Inc. to act as a claims administrator for Denver's self-funded benefit plans.
  - a) Exhibit A to Administrative Services Agreement Statement of Work.
  - b) Exhibit B to Administrative Services Agreement Fees.
  - c) Exhibit C to Administrative Services Agreement Performance Standards
  - d) Exhibit D to Administrative Services Agreement Business Associate Agreement.
- 2) Exhibit A-2: SBC and Benefit Summary for City and County of Denver HSA Plan (Self-Funded)
- 3) Exhibit A-3: Self-Funded benefit plan stop loss insurance policy and application.
- 4) Exhibit A-4: EAP Administrative Services Agreement
  - a) Exhibit A to EAP Administrative Services Agreement Services & Fees.

# EXHIBIT A-1 TO MASTER PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN UNITED HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC. and CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER

# SELF-FUNDED BENEFITS PLAN ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Self-Funded Benefits Plan Administrative Services Agreement ("Agreement" or "Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement") between United HealthCare Services, Inc. ("United" in this Agreement) and City and County of Denver ("Customer" in this Agreement) is effective January 1, 2023 ("Effective Date") and will terminate at 11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2025. This Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement covers the services United is providing to Customer, either directly or in conjunction with one of United's affiliates, for use with Customer's Self-Funded employee benefit plan, and is subject to the terms of the Purchase Agreement to which this Agreement is attached as Exhibit A-3 ("Master Purchase Agreement").

United HealthCare Services, Inc. identifies this arrangement as Contract No.: 717340

By signing below, each party agrees to the terms of this Agreement, subject to the terms of the Master Purchase Agreement that exists between the parties.

City and County of Denver 201 W. Colfax Dept. 412 Denver, CO 80202 United HealthCare Services, Inc. 185 Asylum Street Hartford, CT 06103-3408

By:	By:
Authorized Signature	Authorized Signature
Print Name:	Print Name:
Print Title:	Print Title:
Date:	Date:

ASA 2Q 2016

# **Table of Contents**

Section 1 – Definitions	3
Section 2 – Customer Responsibilities	4
Section 3 – Fees	5
Section 4 – Records, Information, Audits	6
Section 5 – Taxes And Assessments	8
Section 6 – Indemnification	9
Section 7 – Plan Benefits Litigation	9
Section 8 – Mediation	9
Section 9 – Termination	9
Section 10 – Miscellaneous	10
EXHIBIT A – STATEMENT OF WORK	12
EXHIBIT B –FEES	30
EXHIBIT C – PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR HEALTH BENEFITS	32
EXHIBIT D – BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT	47

### **Section 1 – Definitions**

When these terms are capitalized in the Agreement they have the meanings set forth below. The words may be singular or plural.

**Bank Account:** Bank Account maintained for the payment of Plan benefits, expenses, fees and other Customer financial obligations solely for the benefit of the Customer.

Employee: A current or former employee of Customer or its affiliated employer.

**IRC:** The United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

**IRS:** The United States Internal Revenue Service.

**Medical Benefit Drug Rebate:** Any discount, price concession, or other direct or indirect remuneration United receives from a drug manufacturer under a rebate agreement that is contingent upon and related directly to Participant use of a prescription drug under the Plan's medical benefit during the Term. Medical Benefit Drug Rebate does not include any discount, price concession, administration fees, or other direct or indirect remuneration United receives from a drug manufacturer for direct purchase of a prescription drug.

Medicare Part D Retiree Drug Subsidy Program ("RDS"): The program as set forth in Section 1860D-22 of Title XVIII of the Social Security Act, as amended by the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 ("MMA"), Subpart R of the MMA Final Regulation, or any successor regulation promulgated by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"), and any guidance issued by CMS, and any mandated updates of required information.

**Network:** The group of Network Providers United makes available to the Plan who have entered into or are governed by contractual arrangements under which they agree to provide health care services to Participants and accept negotiated fees for these services.

**Network Provider:** The physician, or medical professional or facility which participates in a Network. A provider is only a Network Provider if they are participating in a Network at the time services are rendered to the Plan Participant.

**Overpayments:** Payments that exceed the amount payable under the Plan. This term does not include overpayments caused by untimely or inaccurate eligibility information.

Participant: Employee or dependent who is covered by the Plan.

**PHI:** Any information United receives or provides on behalf of the Plan which is considered Protected Health Information as the term is defined in the privacy regulations of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.

**Plan:** The plan to which this Agreement applies, but only with respect to those provisions of the plan relating to the Self-Funded health benefits United is administering, as described in the Summary Plan Description.

**Plan Administrator:** The current or succeeding person, committee, partnership, or other entity designated the Plan Administrator who is generally responsible for the Plan's operation.

**Proprietary Business Information:** Nonpublic information, trade secrets, and other data including, but not limited to, sales and marketing information, management systems, strategic plans and other information about the disclosing party's business, industry, products and services, plans, specifications, operation methods, pricing, costs, techniques, manuals, know-how and other intellectual property, in written, oral, electronic or other tangible form, provided by one party to another or its representative; and all information, documents, technology, products, and services containing or derived from Proprietary Business Information which was or may have been transmitted, given or made available to or viewed by one party or another in the course of the party's relationship.

Proprietary Business Information does not include: (a) information that is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by a receiving Party in violation of this Agreement or other agreement between the Customer and United, (b) information either obtained from a third party or already in a receiving Party's possession before receipt from the other Party, if the receiving Party can demonstrate such information was lawfully obtained and not subject to another obligation of confidentiality, and (c) information independently developed without reference to

Proprietary Business Information, if the receiving Party can demonstrate such independence through contemporaneous written records. **Self-Fund** or **Self-Funded:** Means that Customer, on behalf of the Plan, has the sole responsibility to pay, and provide funds, to pay for all Plan benefits.

**Standard of Care:** In providing all services set forth in this Agreement, United shall use the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent claims administrator/fiduciary acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use under similar circumstances.

**Summary Plan Description or SPD:** The document(s) Customer provides to Plan Participants describing the terms and conditions of coverage offered under the Plan.

**Systems:** Means the systems United owns or makes available to Customer to facilitate the transfer of information in connection with this Agreement.

Tax or Taxes: A charge imposed, assessed or levied by any federal, state, local or other governmental entity.

**Term or Term of the Agreement:** The period of twelve (12) months commencing on the Effective Date (the "Initial Term") and automatically continuing for additional 12-month periods (each, a "Renewal Term") through December 31, 2025, if the parties sign an amendment to extend the Master Purchase Agreement that will concurrently expressly extend this Self-Funded Benefits Plan Administrative Services Agreement.

**United Financial PBI**: United's Proprietary Business Information that includes, but is not limited to, discounts and other financial provisions related to United's contracted healthcare providers and claims data from which those financial provisions may be derived and financial provisions related to prescription drug products covered under the medical benefit, the Prescription Drug List, reimbursement rates, compensation arrangements, and all other financial provisions related to the pharmacy benefits contained in this Agreement. While the Prescription Drug List is considered United's Proprietary Business Information, it may be disclosed in the limited circumstances outlined in this Agreement.

**Urgent Care Claims:** A claim for medical services and supplies which meets ERISA's definition of Urgent Care Claim.

### Section 2 – Customer Responsibilities

Section 2.1 Responsibility for the Plan. United is not the Plan Administrator of the Plan. Any references in this Agreement to United "administering the Plan" are descriptive only and do not confer upon United anything beyond certain agreed upon claim administration duties. Except to the extent this Agreement specifically requires United to have the fiduciary responsibility for a Plan administrative function, Customer accepts responsibility for the Plan for purposes of this Agreement, including its benefit design, the legal sufficiency and distribution of SPDs, and compliance with any laws that apply to Customer or the Plan, whether or not Customer or someone Customer designates is the Plan Administrator. The Customer represents that the Plan has the authority to pay fees due under this Agreement from Plan assets, for each annual term of the Agreement, and subject to the Maximum Contract Amounts recited in the Master Purchase Agreement between the parties.

Section 2.2 Plan Consistent with the Agreement. Customer represents that Plan documents, including the Summary Plan Description as described in Exhibit A – Statement of Work, are consistent with this Agreement. Nevertheless, before distributing any communications describing Plan benefits or provisions to Participants or third parties, Customer will provide United with such communications which refer to United or United's services. Customer will amend them if United reasonably determines that references to United are not accurate, or any Plan provision is not consistent with this Agreement or the services that United is providing.

Section 2.3 Plan Changes. Customer must provide United with notice of any changes to the Plan and/or Summary Plan Description within a reasonable period of time prior to the effective date of the change to allow United to determine if such change will alter the services United provides under this Agreement. Customer's requested changes must be mutually agreed to in writing prior to implementation of such change. United will notify Customer if (i) the change increases United's cost of providing services under this Agreement or (ii) United is reasonably unable to implement or administer the change. If the parties cannot agree to a new fee within (30) thirty days of the notice of the new fee, or if United notifies Customer that United is unable to reasonably implement or administer the change,

United shall have no obligation to implement or administer the change, and Customer may terminate this Agreement upon (60) sixty days written notice.

**Section 2.4 Affiliated Employers.** Customer represents that together Customer and any of its affiliates covered under the Plan make up a single "controlled group" as defined the IRC. Customer agrees to provide United with a list of Customer's affiliates covered under the Plan upon request.

Section 2.5 Information Customer Provides to United. Customer will tell United which of Customer's Employees, their dependents, any other persons, or any combination of these, are Participants. This information must be accurate and provided to United in a timely manner. United will accept eligibility data from Customer in a format that is agreed to by the parties. Customer will notify United of any change to this information as soon as reasonably possible.

United will be entitled to rely on the most current information in United's possession regarding eligibility of Participants in paying Plan benefits and providing other services under this Agreement. United will apply electronic eligibility changes without imposing any extra fees. In the event that Customer requests manual retroactive eligibility changes or retroactive eligibility changes to include claims reprocessing, United will make such changes only after the parties agree to the terms on which such changes will be made and any extra fees that would apply for doing so.

Customer agrees to provide United, in a timely manner with all information that United reasonably requires to provide services under this Agreement. United shall be entitled to rely upon any written or oral communication from Customer's designated employees, agents, or authorized representatives.

**Section 2.6 Notices to Participants.** Customer will give Participants the information and documents they need to obtain benefits under the Plan within a reasonable period of time before coverage begins. In the event this Agreement is discontinued, Customer will notify all Participants that the services United is providing under this Agreement are discontinued.

**Section 2.7 Escheat.** Customer is solely responsible for complying with all applicable abandoned property or escheat laws, making any required payments, and filing any required reports.

### Section 3 – Fees

**Section 3.1 Fees.** Customer will pay fees to United as compensation for the services provided by United. In addition to the fees specified in Exhibit B - Fees, Customer must also pay United any additional fee that is authorized by a provision elsewhere in this Agreement or is otherwise agreed to by the parties. All fees, charges and reimbursements contemplated under this Agreement will be billed against and limited to those amounts defined in the Master Purchase Agreement as the "Maximum Contract Amount."

**Section 3.2 Changes in Fees.** (a) United can change the fees on each Renewal Term, subject to the provisions of Exhibit B – Fees. The parties will sign an amendment to memorialize the implementation of revised fees for subsequent Renewal Terms. Any such fee change will become effective on the later of the first day of the new Renewal Term and will be subject to the Maximum Contract Amounts recited in the Master Purchase Agreement between the parties. United will provide Customer with a new Exhibit B - Fees that will be attached to the written amendment to this Agreement.

- (b) United may also initiate a fee change if any one or more of the following occur:
  - (1) any time there are changes made to this Agreement or the Plan, which affect the fees including the termination of the Shared Savings;
  - (2) when there are changes in laws or regulations which affect or are related to the services United is providing, or will be required to provide, under this Agreement, including the Taxes and fees noted in Section 5 Taxes And Assessments;
  - (3) if the number of Employees covered by the Plan or any Plan option changes by ten percent (10%) or more; or
  - (4) if the average contract size, defined as the total number of enrolled Participants divided by the total number of enrolled Employees, varies by 10% or more from the assumed average contract size set forth in Exhibit B -

Fees. Any new fee required by such change will be effective as of the date the changes occur, even if that date is retroactive.

Any fee change resulting from this paragraph will be implemented by written amendment to this Agreement and be evidenced by a new Exhibit B – Fees attached thereto.

(c) If Customer does not agree to any change in fees, either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice after Customer receives written notice of the new fees. Customer must still pay any amounts due for the periods during which the Agreement is in effect.

Section 3.3 Due Dates, Payments, and Penalties. For the Standard Medical Service Fees described in Exhibit B - Fees, United will provide Customer with an on-line invoice in advance of the first of each month, typically no later than the 18<sup>th</sup> of each month. The Due Date for payment of the invoiced amounts is on the first day of the next full calendar month ("Due Date"). Such invoices are provided on an eligibility-based format, and therefore payment must be made as billed and are subject to annual appropriations as defined in the Master Purchase Agreement (no adjustments are allowed to the invoice). If authorized by Customer pursuant to this Agreement or by subsequent authorization, certain fees will be paid through a withdrawal from the Bank Account.

Late Payment: If amounts owed are not paid within fifteen (15) days after their Due Date ("Grace Period"), Customer will pay United interest on these amounts at the interest rate that United charges to its self-funded customers. Customer agrees to reimburse United for any costs that United incurs to collect these amounts. United's decision to provide Customer with a Grace Period will be based on United's assessment of Customer's financial condition as of the Effective Date, and Customer's compliance with material financial obligations. If United determines, based on reasonable information and belief, that Customer's financial condition has deteriorated, or Customer continues to fail to comply with the material financial obligations specified in this Agreement, United may remove the Grace Period upon notice to Customer.

**Section 3.4 Reconciliation.** For each Renewal Term, United will reconcile the total amounts Customer paid with the total amounts Customer owed. If the reconciliation indicates that United owes Customer money, Customer's next fee invoice will be credited. If the reconciliation indicates that Customer owes United money, United will invoice Customer for the amount due. The due date for these amounts is the first day of the next calendar month. Customer will pay United, within thirty (30) days of the due date, the amounts that Customer owes United. Customer is required to pay under the City's prompt payment ordinance D.R.M.C. § 20-107, *et seq.* The interest rate United charges its self-funded customers is not to exceed the prime rate within the Agreement Period, plus 4%, and in all events any interest changes shall be in accordance with the City's prompt payment ordinance D.R.M.C. § 20-107, et seq.

If this Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement is terminated, United will pay Customer the amount owed within thirty (30) days after United performs a final reconciliation. If the final reconciliation indicates that Customer owes United money, Customer will pay United within the time period identified under the City's prompt payment ordinance D.R.M.C. § 20-107, et seq.

For payments Customer makes after the time period identified under the City's prompt payment ordinance D.R.M.C. § 20-107, et seq., after receiving notice of the amounts that Customer owes United, United will charge interest at the interest rate that United charge its other self-funded customers. The interest rate United charges its self-funded customers is not to exceed the prime rate within the Agreement Period, plus 4%, and in all events any interest changes shall be in accordance with the City's prompt payment ordinance D.R.M.C. § 20-107, et seq.

### Section 4 – Records, Information, Audits

**Section 4.1 Records.** United shall keep records relating to the services it provides under this Agreement for as long as United is required to do so by law.

**Section 4.2 Proprietary Business Information.** Each party will limit the use of the other's Proprietary Business Information to only the information required to administer the Plan, to perform under this Agreement, or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement. Neither party will disclose the other's Proprietary Business Information to any person or entity other than to the receiving party's employees, subcontractors, or authorized agents needing access to such information to administer the Plan, to perform under this Agreement, or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement.

The City will not be prohibited from providing provider-specific cost or quality of care information or data, through a consumer engagement tool or any other means, to referring providers, the Plan Sponsor, Participants, or individuals eligible to become Participants of the Plan, to the extent required by Law. Neither party may sell, license or grant any other rights to the other party's Proprietary Business Information.

The City will contact United prior to releasing any information and give United the opportunity to review, respond, and/or object to the request. Once City receives notice of United's objection, City will not proceed until the outcome of court order is determined. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 4.3 Access to Information. Other than as provided for in Section 4.4, if Customer needs access to United's Proprietary Business Information, United may allow Customer to use United's Proprietary Business Information, if it is legally permissible, the information relates to United's services under this Agreement, and Customer gives United reasonable advance notice and an explanation of the need for such information. Such use is subject to the terms of this Agreement and, if required by United, a mutually agreed upon confidentiality agreement.

If Customer is subject to a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) or similar legal request for public records applicable to Customer and the request includes United's Proprietary Business Information, Customer will contact United prior to releasing any information and give United the opportunity to review, respond, and/or object to the FOIA request.

United will comply with the Colorado Open Records Act (CORA) to the extent such Act requires timely disclosure of public documents maintained by government contractors. If public records are required to be disclosed under CORA, the City will contact United prior to releasing any information and give United the opportunity to review, respond, and/or object to the CORA request, and it will be United's responsibility to seek a court order protecting such records, and to defend and indemnify the Customer from any claim or action related to the City's non-disclosure of such information. Once City receives notice of United's objection, City will not proceed until the outcome of court order is determined. United shall indemnify Customer for any fines Customer incurs as a result of United's objection.

United will provide information only while this Agreement is in effect and for a period of three (3) years after the Agreement terminates, unless Customer demonstrates that the information is required by law or for Plan administration purposes as required under ERISA.

United also will provide reasonable access to information to an entity providing Plan administrative services to Customer, such as a consultant or vendor, if Customer requests it. Before United provides Proprietary Business Information to that entity, the parties must sign a mutually agreed-upon confidentiality agreement, and the parties must agree as to what information is minimally necessary to accomplish the Plan administrative service.

Customer is responsible for entering into any and all legally required terms and/or agreements with consultant or vendor to ensure protection of the PHI, including but not limited to, a Business Associate Agreement, as defined under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act and its implementing regulations, as amended from time to time.

**Section 4.4 Medical Claims Audit.** During the term of the Agreement, and at any time within six (6) months following its termination, a mutually agreeable entity may conduct an annual medical claims audit of United's performance under the Agreement once each calendar year. Prior to the commencement of this audit, United must receive a signed, mutually agreeable confidentiality agreement. As part of the annual medical claims audit, United will also support either a small targeted audit of appeals, member calls, or clinical transactions (not to exceed 25 transactions).

Customer must advise United in writing of its intent to audit. The place, time, type, duration, and frequency of all audits must be reasonable and agreed to by United. All audits will be limited to information relating to the calendar year in which the audit is conducted, and/or the immediately preceding calendar year.

With respect to United's claims processing services, the audit scope and methodology will be consistent with generally acceptable auditing standards, including a statistically valid random sample (not to exceed 400 claims transactions) as approved by United ("Scope"). United will not support any external audits a) where the audit firm is paid on a contingency basis, and b) that do not use a statistically valid random selection methodology (other than as provided for in this section); this includes electronic/data mining audits that are used for purposes of recovery discovery.

United will cooperate with Denver's Auditor should this contract be selected for a financial or performance audit as allowed by Denver's Charter and Revised Municipal Code.

Customer will pay any expenses that it incurs in connection with the audit. In addition, Customer will be charged a \$350 per claim charge and a \$1500 per day charge for any on-site audit visit that is not completed within five (5) business days or for sample sizes exceeding the Scope specified above. The additional fees cover the additional resources, facility fees, and other incremental costs associated with an audit that exceeds the Scope.

In addition to Customer's expenses, Customer will also pay any extraordinary expenses United incurs due to a Customer request related to the audit, such fees to be reviewed and approved by the Customer in advance. For any audit initiated after this Agreement is terminated, or for any audit in addition to those provided for in this Section (if approved by United), Customer \$350 per claim charge and a \$1500 per day charge.

Customer will provide United with a copy of any audit reports within thirty (30) days after Customer receives the audit report(s) from the auditor.

Section 4.5 Service Auditor Reports. United may make its Type II service auditor report ("Report") available to United's self-funded customers each year for Customer's review in connection with Plan administrative purposes only. The Report will be issued under the guidance of Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements #16 (SSAE18). Should new guidelines covering service auditor reports be issued, United may make the equivalent of, or any successor to, the SSAE18 Type II Report available to United's self-funded customers. The Report is United's Proprietary Business Information and shall not be shared with any third parties without United's prior written approval, except that Customer can share the Report with: (i) Customer's independent public accounting firm; and/or (ii) Customer's consultants on the condition that such consultants are not in any way a competitor of United's and that Customer informs its consultants that the Report was not prepared for their use. To the extent that Customer does provide the Report to its independent public accounting firm or a consultant as permitted in this Section, Customer shall require that they retain the Report as confidential and that they not disclose such Report to any other persons or entities.

**Section 4.6 PHI.** The parties' obligations with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI are outlined in the Business Associate Addendum attached to this Agreement.

### Section 5 – Taxes and Assessments

Section 5.1 Payment of Taxes and Expenses. In the event that any Taxes are assessed against United as a claim administrator in connection with United's services under this Agreement relating solely to: (1) the Plan; (2) Taxes relating to benefit payments under the Plan; or (3) United's fees or services under this Agreement (but not Taxes for any income, franchise or other tax based on United's income, capital or net worth), United has the authority and discretion to reasonably determine whether any such Tax should be paid or disputed. Subject to the Maximum Contract Amount and appropriation requirements in the Master Purchase Agreement, Customer will also reimburse United for a proportionate share of any cost or expense reasonably incurred by United in disputing such Tax, including costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and any interest, fines, or penalties relating to such Tax, unless caused by United's unreasonable delay or unreasonable determination to dispute such Tax.

If Customer notifies United that it does not wish United to represent Customer's interests in litigation challenging the tax, United shall not bill Customer for pro rata attorney's fees and costs from the time of notice forward, provided Customer has paid any tax and other amounts under this Section due and owing up to the point of receipt of notice by United from Customer. If Customer chooses to bring its own action against the jurisdiction assessing the tax, United shall provide reasonable cooperation and assistance.

**Section 5.2 Tax Reporting.** In the event that the reimbursement of any benefits to Participants in connection with this Agreement is subject to Plan or employer-based tax reporting requirements, Customer agrees to comply with these requirements.

Section 5.3 State and Federal Surcharges, Fees and Assessments. The Plan is responsible for state or Federal surcharges, assessments, or similar Taxes imposed by governmental entities or agencies on the Plan or United as identified in Section 5.1 above, including, but not limited to, those imposed pursuant to The Patient Protection and

Affordable Care Act of 2010 ("PPACA"), as amended from time to time. This includes the funding, remittance, and determination of the amount due for PPACA required taxes and fees.

### **Section 6 – [Intentionally Left Blank]**

## **Section 7 – Plan Benefits Litigation**

**Section 7.1 Litigation Against United.** If a demand is asserted, or litigation or administrative proceedings are begun by a Participant or healthcare provider against United to recover Plan benefits related to its duties under this Agreement ("Plan Benefits Litigation"), United will select and retain defense counsel to represent its interest.

Section 7.2 Litigation Against Customer. If Plan Benefits Litigation is begun against Customer and/or the Plan, Customer will select and retain counsel to represent its interest.

**Section 7.3 Litigation Against United and Customer.** If Plan Benefits Litigation is begun against the Plan and United jointly, and provided no conflict of interest arises between the parties, the parties may agree to joint defense counsel. If the parties do not agree to joint defense counsel, then each party will select and retain separate defense counsel to represent their own interests.

Section 7.4 Litigation Fees and Costs. All reasonable legal fees and costs United incurs will be paid by Customer (except as provided in Section 6.2), subject to the Maximum Contract Amount and appropriation requirements in the Master Purchase Agreement, if United gives Customer reasonable advance notice of United's intent to charge Customer for such fees and costs, and United consults with Customer in a manner consistent with United's fiduciary obligations on United's litigation strategy.

In the event of litigation or legal action against the Plan, United will notify the City Attorney within a reasonable period of time and receive the City Attorney's consent to United's legal strategy and such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Section 7.5 Litigation Cooperation. Both parties will cooperate fully with each other in the defense of Plan Benefits Litigation.

**Section 7.6 Payment of Plan Benefits.** In all events, Customer is responsible for the full amount of any Plan benefits paid as a result of Plan Benefits Litigation, subject to the Maximum Contract Amount and appropriation requirements in the Master Purchase Agreement.

**Section 7.7 Survival.** This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

# **Section 8 – [Intentionally Blank]**

# **Section 9 – Termination**

**Section 9.1 Services End.** United's services under this Agreement stop on the date this Agreement terminates, regardless of the date that claims are incurred. However, United may agree to continue providing certain services beyond the termination date, as provided in Exhibit A – Statement of Work.

Section 9.2 Termination Events. This Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement will terminate under the following circumstances:

- The Plan terminates;
- Both parties agree in writing to terminate the Agreement;
- After the Initial Term, either party gives the other party at least sixty (60) days prior written notice; United gives Customer notice of termination because Customer did not pay the fees or other amounts Customer owed United when due under the terms of this Agreement;
- United gives Customer notice of termination if Customer fails to provide the required funds for payment of benefits under the terms of this Agreement;

Either party is in material breach of this Agreement, other than by non-payment or late payment of fees

- owed by Customer or the funding of Plan benefits, and does not correct the breach within thirty (30) days after being notified in writing by the other party;
- United may terminate this Agreement in the event of a filing by or against the Customer of a petition for relief under the Federal Bankruptcy Code;
- Any state or other jurisdiction prohibits a party from administering the Plan under the terms of this Agreement, or imposes a penalty on the Plan or United and such penalty is based on the administrative services specified in this Agreement. In this situation, the party may immediately discontinue the Agreement's application in such state or jurisdiction. Notice must be given to the other party when reasonably practical. The Agreement will continue to apply in all other states or jurisdictions; or
- As otherwise specified in this Agreement.

### Section 10 – Miscellaneous

**Section 10.1 Subcontractors.** United can use its affiliates or subcontractors to perform United's services under this Agreement. United will be responsible for those services to the same extent that United would have been had it performed those services without the use of an affiliate or subcontractor.

Section 10.2 Assignment. Except as provided in this paragraph, neither party can assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations under this Agreement to anyone without the other party's written consent. That consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Nevertheless, United can assign this Agreement, including all of its rights and obligations to United's affiliates, to an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with United, or a purchaser of all or substantially all of United's assets, subject to notice to Customer of the assignment.

**Section 10.3 Governing Law.** This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

### Section 10.4 [Left Blank].

Section 10.5 Amendment. Except as may otherwise be specified in this Agreement, the Agreement may be amended only by both parties agreeing to the amendment in writing, executed by a duly authorized person of each party.

**Section 10.6 Waiver/Estoppel.** Nothing in this Agreement is considered to be waived by any party, unless the party claiming the waiver receives the waiver in writing. No breach of the Agreement is considered to be waived unless the non-breaching party waives it in writing. A waiver of one provision does not constitute a waiver of any other. A failure of either party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement, or to exercise any option which is provided in this Agreement, will in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provision of this Agreement.

**Section 10.7 Notices.** Any notices, demands, or other communications required under this Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement will be in writing and may be provided via electronic means or by United States Postal Service by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or delivered by a service that provides written receipt of delivery.

**Section 10.8 Compliance with Laws and Regulations.** The parties agree to comply with all applicable federal, state and other laws and regulations with respect to this Agreement.

Section 10.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon any person other than the parties and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.

**Section 10.10 Severability.** The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision. However, it is intended that a court of competent jurisdiction construe any invalid or unenforceable provision of this Agreement by limiting or reducing it so as to be valid or enforceable to the extent compatible with applicable law.

Section 10.11 Order of Precedence. In the event of any conflicts between the language of this Agreement and its exhibits, the language of this Agreement controls unless such language has been severed because it was held to be

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2D1362FA-D08B-4EFB-900E-B7C39BE3476F

invalid, illegal, or unenforceable.

### EXHIBIT A – STATEMENT OF WORK

The following are the administrative services United has agreed to provide to Customer. Customer may request that United provide services in addition to those set forth in this Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement. If United agrees to provide them, those services will be governed by the terms of this Agreement and any amendments to this Agreement. Customer will pay an additional fee as clearly defined in an amendment and subject to appropriation as described in the Master Purchase Agreement between the parties, for these additional services. The Services described in this Exhibit A will be made available to Customer's eligible Participants consistent with the Summary Plan Description under which the Participant is covered.

### **Section A1 Network**

**Network Access, Management and Administration.** United will provide access to Networks and Network Providers, as well as related administrative services including physician (and other health care professional) relations, clinical profiling, contracting and credentialing, and network analysis and system development. The make-up of the Network can change at any time. Notice will be given in advance or as soon as reasonably possible.

United generally does not employ Network Providers and they are not United's agents or partners, although certain Network Providers are affiliated with United. Otherwise, Network Providers participate in Networks only as independent contractors. Network Providers and the Participants are solely responsible for any health care services rendered to Participants. United is not responsible for the medical outcomes or the quality or competence of any provider or facility rendering services, including Network Pharmacies and services provided through United's affiliates' networks, or the payment for services rendered by the provider or facility.

Value Based Contracting Program. United's contracts with some Network Providers may include withholds, incentives, and/or additional payments that may be earned, conditioned on meeting standards relating to utilization, quality of care, efficiency measures, compliance with United's other policies or initiatives, or other clinical integration or practice transformation standards. Customer shall fund these payments earned the Network Providers as soon as United makes the determination the Network Provider is entitled to receive the payment under the Network Provider's contract, either upfront or after the standard has been met. For upfront funding, if United makes the determination that the Network Provider failed to meet a standard, United will return to Customer the applicable amount. United shall provide Customer reports describing the amount of payments made on behalf of Customer's Plan.

Only the initial claims based reimbursement to Network Providers will be subject to the Participant's copayment, coinsurance or deductible requirements. Customer will pay the Network Provider the full amount earned or attributable to its Participants, without a reduction for copayments or deductibles and agree that there will be no impact from these payments on the calculation of the Participant's satisfaction of their annual deductible amount.

# **Section A2 Recovery Services**

Claim Recovery Services. United will provide recovery services for Overpayments and other Plan recovery opportunities as described herein. United will not be responsible for reimbursement of any unrecovered Overpayment nor attorneys' fees and costs related to litigation or arbitration associated with recoveries except to the extent an arbitrator, arbitration panel, or court of competent jurisdiction determines that the Overpayment was due to United's failure to meet the Standard of Care. Under no circumstances will United be responsible for reimbursement of unrecovered Overpayments resulting from a third party's fraud. If United does not pursue unrecovered Overpayments, then United will cooperate with Customer and timely provide Customer with information and documents sufficient for Customer to collect unrecovered Overpayments.

**Overpayments.** United utilizes generally-accepted auditing protocols to identify Overpayments. United will attempt to recover Overpayments by employing appropriate outreach to Participants and/or providers to request reimbursement.

**Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Management.** United will provide services related to detection, and recovery of wasteful, abusive, and/or fraudulent claims. United's Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Management processes will be based upon United's proprietary and confidential procedures, modes of analysis, and investigations. United will use these procedures and standards in delivering Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Management services to Customer and to United's other customers. Services include all work to identify recovery opportunities, research, data analysis, investigation,

and initiation of all Recovery Processes set forth below. United does not guarantee or warranty any particular level of prevention, detection, or recovery. United agrees to perform Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Management services pursuant to the industry standards for such services.

**Credit Balance Recovery.** United utilizes on-site resources to perform hospital and/or facility audits to review, validate, and recover credit balances (dollars) existing on patient accounts to identify any recoverable amounts.

**Hospital Bill Audit.** United utilizes on-site resources (registered/licensed nurses and/or certified coders) to perform in-depth reviews of hospital bills. Auditors will conduct line by line comparisons of itemized bills to the medical records to ensure billing accuracy and identify any recoverable amounts.

**Injury Coverage Coordination (ICC).** United will provide Customer with accident healthcare claim savings service on first party claims (such as workers compensation, automobile medical payments, or "No-fault" medical expense savings) through active coordination-of-benefits (COB). ICC works with the responsible property casualty insurance carrier, expediting claim payment by such insurance carrier and saving claim expense for Customer. During the term of this Agreement, Customer will not engage any entity except United to provide the services described herein without United's prior approval.

**Subrogation.** United will provide services to recover Plan benefits that were paid and are recoverable by the Plan because payment was or should have been made by a third party for the same medical expense (other than in connection with coordination of benefits, Medicare, or other Overpayments). This is referred to as "Third Party Liability Recovery" or "Subrogation". During the term of this Agreement, Customer will not engage any entity except United to provide the services described in this Section without United's prior approval.

**Focused Claim Review.** Board certified same-specialty physicians will audit claims and records of high-cost procedures. These reviews verify coding and billing accuracy before a claim is adjudicated. Claims for which billing and/or coding errors are identified will be adjusted before payment is issued.\

Recovery Process – Non-Class Action Recoveries. Customer delegates to United the discretion and authority to develop and use standards and procedures for any recovery opportunity, including but not limited to, whether or not to seek recovery, what steps to take if United decides to seek recovery, whether to initiate litigation or arbitration, the scope of such litigation or arbitration, which legal theories to pursue in such litigation or arbitration, and all decisions relating to such litigation or arbitration, including but not limited to, whether to compromise or settle any litigation or arbitration, and the circumstances under which a claim may be compromised or settled for less than the full amount of the potential recovery. In all instances where United pursues recovery through litigation or arbitration, Customer, on behalf of itself and on behalf of its Plan(s), will be deemed to have granted United an assignment of all ownership, title and legal rights and interests in and to any and all claims that are the subject matter of the litigation or arbitration.

Customer acknowledges that use of United's standards and procedures may not result in full or partial recovery for any particular claim or for any particular Customer. United will not pursue any recovery if it is not permitted by any applicable law, or if recovery would be impractical, as determined in United's discretion. While United may initiate litigation or arbitration to facilitate a recovery, United has no obligation to do so. If United initiates litigation or arbitration, Customer will cooperate with United in the litigation or arbitration.

If this Agreement terminates, in whole or in part, United can continue recovery activities for any claims paid when the Agreement was in effect pursuant to the terms of this Section A2.

Recovery Process – Class Action Recoveries. Where a class action purports to affect Customer's (or the Plan(s) it sponsors or administers) right to and interest in any Overpayment, United has the right to determine whether to seek recovery of the Overpayment on the Customer's (or the Plan(s) it sponsors or administers) behalf through litigation, arbitration, or settlement. If United elects to seek recovery of such an Overpayment that is at issue in a class action, United will provide written notice to Customer of its intention. If Customer does not want United to seek recovery of the Overpayment, Customer shall notify United in writing within thirty (30) days of receiving notice from United. If Customer does not so notify United, Customer, on behalf of itself and on behalf of the Plan(s) it sponsors and administers, assigns to United all ownership, title and legal rights and interests in and to any and all Overpayments that are the subject matter of the class action. In such cases, Customer will cooperate with United in any resulting litigation or arbitration that United may file to pursue the Overpayments.

If Customer provides United with written notice that it does not want United to seek recovery of an Overpayment related to a class action (whether putative or certified) then, pursuant to its standard procedures, United will provide Customer with related Overpayment claims information, at Customer's request. Customer is then solely responsible for determining whether it (or the Plan(s) it sponsors or administers) will participate in the class action (whether putative or certified), participate in any class action settlement, pursue recovery of the relevant Overpayment outside of the class action, or take any other action with respect to any cause of action the Customer (or the Plan(s) it sponsors or administers) might have.

Offsetting Process. In some instances, United may be able to obtain an Overpayment recovery by applying (or offsetting) the Overpayment against future payments to the provider made by United. In effectuating Overpayment recoveries through offset, United will follow its established Overpayment recovery rules which include, among other things, prioritizing Overpayment credits based on: (1) the age of the Overpayment for electronic payments and (2) the funding type and the age of the Overpayment for check payments. United may recover the Overpayment by offsetting, in whole or in part, against: (1) future benefits that are payable under the Plan in connection with services provided to any Participants; or (2) future benefits that are payable in connection with services provided to individuals covered under other self-insured or fully-insured plans for which United processes payments. In addition to permitting United to recover Overpayments on behalf of the Plan from benefits payable under other plans, United will enable other plans (including plans fully insured by United) to recover their Overpayments from benefits payable under the Plan. Customer understands and agrees that in doing so, the Plan is participating in a cooperative overpayment recovery effort with other plans for which United acts as the claims administrator. Reallocations pursuant to this process in no way impact the decision as to whether or not a benefit is payable under the Plan. In United's application of Overpayment recovery through offset, timing differences may arise in the processing of claims payments, disbursement of provider checks, and the recovery of Overpayments. As a result, the Plan may in some instances receive the benefit of an Overpayment recovery before United actually receives the funds from the provider. Conversely, United may receive the funds before the Plan receives the credit for the Overpayment. It is hereby understood that the Parties may retain any interest that accrues as a result of these timing differences. Details associated with Overpayment recoveries made on behalf of the Plan through offset will be identified in the monthly reconciliation report provided to the designated representative for the Customer's Plan. The monthly reconciliation report will contain information relating only to Customer's Plan and will not contain information relating to other plans for which United acts as the claims administrator.

**Recovery Fees.** Customer will be charged a fee for the services described in this Section A2. Those fees are set forth in Exhibit B – Fees, subject to appropriation as described in the Master Purchase Agreement between the parties.

### **Section A3 Providing Funds**

**Responsibility for Payment of Plan Benefits.** The Plan is Self-Funded. Customer is solely responsible for providing funds for payment for all Plan benefits. United has no liability or responsibility to provide these funds. This is true even if United or its affiliates provide stop loss insurance to Customer.

Bank Account. United, on Customer's behalf, will open and maintain a Bank Account at a bank under United's sole control (the "Bank") for the benefit of the City and County of Denver to provide United the means to access City funds to make payment of Plan benefits, pre-authorized Plan expenses (such as state surcharges or assessments), or other Customer financial obligations as directed by the Customer. The Bank Account will be a part of the network of accounts that have been established at the Bank for United's self-funded customers. The appropriated funds in the Bank Account are Customer's and are held for the benefit of the Customer and any remaining balance will be returned to the City in the event of termination of this Agreement and completion of the run-out services, and such funds will not be comingled with any other funds or accounts.

Balance In Account. Customer will make an agreed initial deposit in the Bank Account and will maintain a minimum balance in the Bank Account in an amount agreed by the parties. The Parties will establish this amount based on expected Plan payment obligations, with appropriate adjustments for anticipated non-daily activity (e.g., prescription drug benefits and fee payments) as determined by United and pre-authorized by Customer. United will notify Customer if and when the required minimum balance or the amount changes.

The required minimum balance is based on Customer's financial condition as reasonably assessed by United. In the event United determines, based on reasonable information and belief, that Customer's financial condition has deteriorated, or Customer continues to fail to comply with the material financial obligations specified in this Agreement, United may revise the required balance effective five (5) days from the date of notice to Customer.

Issuing and Providing Funds for Checks and Non-Draft Payments. Checks and/or non-draft payments will be written on and/or issued from one or more common accounts that are a part of the network of accounts maintained at the Bank for United's self-funded customers. When the checks for Plan benefits are presented to the Bank, the Bank will notify United and United will direct the Bank to either reject the checks or to withdraw funds from the Bank Account to fund the checks that are cashed.

**Transfers of Funds.** Funds will also be withdrawn from the Bank Account when a transfer of funds has been made electronically. United will direct the Bank to withdraw funds from the Bank Account to fund the non-draft payments or expenses as they are issued.

**Calls for Funds.** The withdrawals from the Bank Account are paid for by the balance Customer maintains in the Bank Account. This balance will be drawn down each banking day to satisfy the previous day's liability.

Every 5 business day(s), United will notify Customer of the funding amounts that are due. Upon notice to Customer of the amount due, Customer will fund the designated amount(s) within one business day via Automated Clearing House (ACH) transfer to the designated Bank Account for payment of Plan benefits.

The number of days between transfers and the method of transfer will be agreed upon by the Parties. The Parties will increase the frequency of such fund transfers as necessary to timely, properly and fully fund the Bank Account.

Underfunding. If Customer does not provide the amounts sufficient to maintain the required minimum balance in the Bank Account, or to cover Bank Account withdrawals: (1) Customer must immediately correct the deficiency and provide prompt notice to United. (2) If United learns of the funding deficiency, United will notify Customer within one business day so Customer can correct the deficiency. (3) United may stop issuing checks and non-draft payments and suspend any of its other services under this Agreement for the period of time Customer does not provide the required funding. (4) If Customer does not correct the funding deficiency within three banking days of United's notice to Customer, United may terminate this Agreement as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, such termination to be effective the first day such funding deficiency began. The interest rate United charges its self-funded customers is not to exceed the prime rate within the Agreement Period, plus 4%, and in all events any interest changes shall be in accordance with the City's prompt payment ordinance D.R.M.C. § 20-107, et seq.

Stop Payments on Outstanding Checks. At Customer's expense, United may place stop payments on checks if United determines that Customer has insufficient funds in its own designated funding bank account to honor such checks. United will send a search letter to the payee on all checks that have not been cashed within six (6) months. United will automatically stop payment on all checks that have not been cashed within twelve (12) months and provide Customer with reports Customer needs for the purposes of performing escheat. Customer is solely responsible for determining to file and/or filing unclaimed property once notified, or for making unclaimed payee payments directly.

Funding After Termination. When this Agreement terminates, the funding method will remain in place to fund all outstanding checks and Customer's other funding obligations, including credit refunds due to the Customer, for the length of the run-out period. Following the run-out period, to ensure a minimally sufficient balance is maintained to cover Customer's funding obligations, the required minimum balance may be adjusted through mutual agreement of the parties. United will stop payment on all checks that remain uncashed at the end of this period and Customer will request in writing to close the Bank Account and recover any funds remaining in it. United will provide bank statements and Bank Account reconciliation reports, including reports Customer needs for the purposes of performing escheat.

#### **Section A4 Medical Benefit Drug Rebate Payments**

Allocation and Payment of Medical Benefit Drug Rebates. From time to time, United or a subcontractor may negotiate with drug manufacturers regarding the payment of Medical Benefit Drug Rebates on applicable prescription drug products dispensed to Participants under the Plan's medical benefit. Customer will receive 80% of the Medical Benefit Drug Rebates United receives. United will retain the balance of such Medical Benefit Drug Rebates as part of United's compensation. When United negotiates directly with drug manufacturers for the payment of Medical Benefit Drug Rebates to United, United will pay Customer the agreed upon Medical Benefit Drug Rebates within thirty (30 calendar days of United's receipt of such Medical Benefit Drug Rebates from the drug manufacturer. If United is not able to make payment to Customer within thirty (30) calendar days, United will pay interest on such Medical Benefit Drug Rebates from the date of receipt until United makes payment to Customer, less approximately thirty (30) days for processing. United will retain interest earned during this processing timeframe. Interest will be paid at the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) in effect on the first business day of each applicable month.

Customer will only receive Customer's Medical Benefit Drug Rebates to the extent that Medical Benefit Drug Rebates are actually received by United. Thus, for example, if a government action or a major change in pharmaceutical industry practices prevents United from receiving Medical Benefit Drug Rebates, the amount Customer receives may be reduced or eliminated.

Customer agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither Customer nor the Plan will negotiate or arrange or contract in any way for Medical Benefit Drug Rebates on or the purchase of prescription drug products from any manufacturer under the Plan's medical benefit. If Customer or the Plan does, United may, without limiting United's right to other remedies, immediately terminate Customer's and Plan's entitlement to Medical Benefit Drug Rebates (including forfeiture of any Medical Benefit Drug Rebates earned but not paid). In addition, Customer agrees to reasonably cooperate with United in order to obtain Medical Benefit Drug Rebates. Nothing herein shall prevent or penalize Customer from negotiating during the term of this Agreement, a Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement and corresponding drug rebate program with the intention of hiring a vendor to replace United.

**Subcontractor Compensation.** If a subcontractor is involved in negotiating with drug manufacturers regarding the payment of Medical Benefit Drug Rebates, it may retain a portion of the gross amounts received from drug manufacturers in connection with such products. United will provide information on the amount, if any, retained by the subcontractor as compensation for its services, in advance of Customer's execution of this Agreement. In addition, United will provide Customer with thirty (30) days advance notice of any material increase in or method for subcontractor compensation. If at any time Customer does not find the subcontractor compensation acceptable, the Parties will work to resolve the issue by agreement, otherwise Customer may terminate the Medical Benefit Drug Rebates services after thirty (30) days advance written notice to United.

## **Section A5 Claims Determinations and Appeals**

Claim Procedures. Customer appoints United a named fiduciary under the Plan with respect to (i) performing initial benefit determinations and payment, and (ii) performing the fair and impartial review of first level internal appeals and (iii) performing the fair and impartial review of second level internal appeals. As such, Customer delegates to United the discretionary authority to (i) construe and interpret the terms of the Plan, (ii) to determine the validity of charges submitted to United under the Plan, and (iii) make final, binding determinations concerning the availability of Plan benefits under the Plan's internal appeal process, all in compliance with applicable law and regulation. If United denies a Plan benefit claim, in whole or in part, United will notify the claimant of the adverse benefit determination and the claimant shall have the appeal rights set forth in the Summary Plan Description, and/or those which are required under applicable law. If after the exhaustion of the two levels of internal appeal, United determines that the Plan benefit is still not payable, United will notify the claimant that the adverse benefit determination has been upheld. This determination will be final and binding on the claimant, and all other interested parties, except as otherwise provided under the external review program described in this Section A5.

**Appeals of Urgent Care Claims.** Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to Urgent Care Claims, United will conduct one review of a denied Urgent Care Claim and issue a final determination as soon as possible, in accordance with applicable law.

**External Review Program.** United will notify claimants of the option to request an external review of adverse benefit determinations following the required internal appeal process. United will, in accordance with applicable law: (i) provide claimant with the necessary procedures to obtain the review (ii) coordinate submission of the claimant's case to an independent review organization, and (iii) direct the independent review organization to notify the claimant of the final external review decision. A fee will apply beyond the maximum number of free reviews, as listed in Exhibit B - Fees.

Catastrophic Events. During such time as a government agency declares a state of emergency or otherwise invokes emergency procedures with respect to Participants who may be affected by severe weather or other catastrophic events (a "Catastrophic Event Timeframe"), Customer directs United to implement certain changes in its claim procedures for affected Participants, including, for example: (a) exemption from the application of prior authorization requirements and/or penalties; (b) waiver of out-of-network restrictions (e.g., out-of-network providers paid at the Network Provider level), (c) extension of time frames for timely claims filing and/or appeals, (d) early replacement of lost or damaged durable medical equipment, and (e) other protocols reasonably required to provide Participants with access to health plan and pharmacy benefits as applicable. Such protocols are applicable to Participants whose place of residency falls within impacted areas of the Catastrophic Event, and for dates of service that fall within the Catastrophic Event Timeframe.

#### **Section A6 Systems Access**

Access. United grants Customer the nonexclusive, nontransferable right to access and use the functionalities contained within the Systems, under the terms specified in this Agreement. Customer agrees that all rights, title, and interest in the Systems and all rights in patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets encompassed in the Systems will remain United's. To obtain access to the Systems, Customer will obtain, and be responsible for maintaining, at no expense to United, the hardware, software, and Internet browser requirements United provides to Customer, including any amendments thereto. Customer will be responsible for obtaining an Internet Service Provider or other access to the Internet. Customer will not (i) access Systems or use, copy, reproduce, modify, or excerpt any Systems documentation provided by United in order to access or utilize Systems, for purposes other than as expressly permitted under this Agreement or (ii) share, transfer or lease Customer's right to access and use Systems, to any other person or entity which is not a party to this Agreement. Customer may designate any third party, with prior approval from United, to access Systems on Customer's behalf, provided the third party agrees to these terms and conditions of Systems access and Customer assumes joint responsibility for such access.

Security Procedures. Customer will use commercially reasonable physical and software-based measures to protect the passwords and user IDs provided by United for access to and use of any web site provided in connection with the services. Customer shall use commercially reasonable anti-virus software, intrusion detection and prevention system, secure file transfer and connectivity protocols to protect any email and confidential communications provided to United, and maintain appropriate logs and monitoring of system activity, Customer shall notify United within a reasonable timeframe of any (a) unauthorized access or damage, including damage caused by computer viruses resulting from direct access connection, and (b) misuse and/or unauthorized disclosure of passwords and user IDs provided by United which impact the System.

Termination. United reserves the right to terminate Customer's System access (i) on the date Customer fails to accept the hardware, software and browser requirements provided by United, including any amendments thereto or (ii) immediately on the date United reasonably determines that Customer has (i) breached, or allowed a breach of, any applicable provision of this Section or (ii) materially breached or allowed a material breach of, any other applicable provision of this Agreement. Customer's System Access will also terminate upon termination of this Agreement, provided however that if run-out is provided in accordance with Exhibit A - Services, Customer may continue to access applicable functionalities within the Systems during the run-out period. Upon any of the termination events described in this Agreement, Customer agrees to cease all use of Systems, and United will deactivate Customer's identification numbers, passwords, and access to the System.

#### **Section A7 Pharmacy Benefit Services**

#### **Definitions Specific to Pharmacy Benefit Services:**

Average Wholesale Price (AWP): The average wholesale price, as reflected on the Medi-Span Prescription Pricing Guide (with supplements) ("Medi-Span"), of a Prescription Drug based on the eleven (11) digit NDC of the Drug on the date dispensed. United will rely on Medi-Span as updated by United no less frequently than every seven days to determine AWP for purposes of establishing the pricing provided to Customer under this agreement. United will not establish AWP, and United will have no liability to Customer arising from use of Medi-Span.

**Brand Drug:** A single-source or multi-source prescription drug product which is manufactured and marketed under a trademark or name by a specific drug manufacturer and that the Medi-Span Prescription Pricing Guide (with supplements) or other available data resources that identify as a Brand product.

**Dispensing Fee:** The contracted rate of compensation paid to a Network Pharmacy for the processing and filling of a prescription claim.

**Prescription Drug List (PDL):** The list of Prescription Drugs covered by the applicable Plan as developed by United and approved and adopted by Customer for use with the Plan. The PDL will be made available to physicians, pharmacies and other healthcare providers or entities to guide the prescribing, dispensing, sale and coverage of prescription services.

**Generic Drug:** A prescription drug product that is chemically equivalent to a Brand drug and that Medi-Span Prescription Pricing Guide (with supplements) or other available data resource that identify as a Generic product.

**MAC:** The maximum allowable cost of a Prescription Drug as specified on a list established by United. United may have multiple MAC lists, each of which is subject to United's periodic review and modification.

**Mail Order Pharmacy:** A facility that is duly licensed to operate as a pharmacy at its location and to dispense Prescription Drugs via postal or commercial courier delivery to individuals, including Participants. Mail Order Pharmacy includes pharmacies that are affiliates of United.

**Network Pharmacy:** A retail pharmacy, Mail Order Pharmacy, Specialty Pharmacy or other facility that is duly licensed to operate as a pharmacy at its location and to dispense Prescription Drugs to Participants and has entered into a Network Pharmacy agreement. An affiliate of United, in its capacity as a Mail Order Pharmacy or Specialty Pharmacy is a Network Pharmacy of the Customer.

**Prescription Drug:** A medication or product, including a Brand Drug or Generic Drug, that has been approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration and that can, under federal or state law, be dispensed only pursuant to a prescription order or refill. A Prescription Drug includes a medication that, due to its characteristics, is appropriate for self-administration or administration by a non-skilled caregiver.

**Rebate**: Any discount, rebate administration fees, price concession or other direct or indirect remuneration United receives from a drug manufacturer under a rebate agreement that is contingent upon and related directly to Participant use of a prescription drug under the Plan's pharmacy benefit or the medical benefit during the Term. Rebate does not include any discount, price concession or other direct or indirect remuneration United receives from a drug manufacturer for direct purchase of a prescription drug.

Single-Source Generic: A Generic Drug that has only one generic manufacturer.

**Specialty Drugs:** Prescription Drugs available at United's Specialty Pharmacy, including: (a) biotechnology drugs; (b) orphan drugs used to treat rare diseases; (c) typically high-cost drugs; (d) drugs administered by oral or injectable routes, including infusions in any outpatient setting; (e) drugs requiring on-going frequent patient management or monitoring; and (f) drugs that require specialized coordination, handling and distribution services for appropriate medication administration

**Specialty Pharmacy:** A facility that is duly licensed to operate as a pharmacy to dispense Specialty Drugs. Specialty Pharmacy includes pharmacies that are affiliates of United.

**Pharmacy Network.** United or its affiliate will provide the Pharmacy Benefit Services described in this Section. United will make Network Pharmacies available to Customer Participants, through United's affiliate. United will determine which pharmacies are Network Pharmacies. Network Pharmacies can change at any time. United will make a reasonable effort to provide Customer with advance notice if any material changes occur to the network. Upon request, United will provide Customer information on the reimbursement rate to United's affiliated Network Pharmacies.

**Mail Order Pharmacy Services.** United will provide, through its affiliate, mail order pharmacy services for Customer's Participants. Customer's pricing terms for mail order pharmacy services are based on the actual package dispensed and at least a 46 day supply. Prescriptions filled through the mail order pharmacy that are less than a 46 day supply will be processed at retail pricing and will be counted with retail utilization.

**Prescription Drug List (PDL).** Customer has adopted one or more of United's PDLs for use with Customer's benefit plans. Customer agrees not to copy, distribute, sell, or otherwise provide the PDL to another party without United's prior written approval, except to Participants as described below. On termination of this Agreement or if Customer terminates the Pharmacy Benefit Services portion of this Agreement, Customer will stop all use of the PDL.

While Customer is the ultimate decision-maker on selecting the design of Customer's PDL(s), Customer has requested that United supply and assist Customer with, certain PDL development and management functions including but not limited to drug tiering decisions. United's intent is to provide Customer with the same PDL and management strategies that United develops and employs in the management of United's fully insured business.

United makes the final classification of an FDA-approved prescription drug product to a certain tier of the PDL by considering a number of factors including, but not limited to, clinical and economic factors. Clinical factors may include, but are not limited to, evaluations of the place in therapy, relative safety or relative efficacy of the prescription drug product, as well as whether supply limits or notification requirements should apply. Economic factors may include, but are not limited to, the prescription drug product's acquisition cost including, but not limited to, available Rebates, and assessments on the cost effectiveness of the prescription drug product.

United may periodically change the placement of a prescription drug product among the tiers and/or recommend specific prescription drug product exclusions from coverage. These changes generally will occur three times per year, but no more than six times per calendar year. These changes may occur without prior notice to Customer however United will provide notice to Customer of material changes to the PDL, United's drug tier classification procedures, coverage exclusions, and clinical programs. If Customer chooses not to implement a particular coverage exclusion or clinical program change, Customer needs to inform United in writing sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the exclusion or change. Current drug placement and related information may be obtained from the website, or by calling customer service.

Claims Processing. United will process the claims received from a Network Pharmacy in accordance with the Summary Plan Description, as well as the pricing and other terms of the Network Pharmacy's participation agreement. On mail order, specialty and retail pharmacy services, United will retain the difference between what United reimburses the Network Pharmacy and Customer payment for a prescription drug product or service.

United maintains systems for processing pharmacy claims and may receive access fees as compensation for services United provides to Network Pharmacies.

**Pharmacy Audits.** During the term of the Agreement, and at any time within six (6) months following its termination, a mutually agreeable entity ("Auditor") may conduct an annual pharmacy claims audit of United's performance under the Agreement once each calendar year. Prior to the commencement of this audit, United must receive a signed, a mutually agreeable confidentiality agreement.

Customer must advise United in writing of its intent to audit. The place, time, type, duration, and frequency of all audits must be reasonable and agreed to by United. No audits may be initiated or conducted during the months of December and January due to the demands of annual renewals and the implementation period. All audits will be limited to information relating to the calendar year in which the audit is conducted, and/or the immediately preceding calendar year. The audit scope and methodology will be consistent with generally acceptable auditing standards, including a statistically valid random sample as approved by United. United will not support any external audits a)

where the audit firm is paid on a contingency basis, or b) that do not use a statistically valid random selection methodology; this includes electronic/data mining audits that are used for purposes of recovery discovery.

Customer will pay any expenses that it or its Auditor incurs in connection with the audit. In addition to Customer's expenses and any applicable fees, Customer will also pay any extraordinary expenses United incurs due to a customer request related to the audit, such fees to be reviewed and approved by the Customer in advance. For any audit initiated after this Agreement is terminated or for any audit in addition to those provided for in this Section (if approved by United), Customer will pay all expenses incurred by United.

United will provide Auditor with access to prescription claims data, subject to the provisions of the confidentiality agreement. Additional documentation (e.g. policies and procedures) requested during the course of an audit, other than that needed to determine the accuracy of pharmacy claims payments, may be provided at United's reasonable discretion. After reviewing the claims for the audit period, Auditor may provide a sample size of claims, not to exceed 300 prescription claims per audit, for United to perform additional research.

A final audit report shall be provided by Customer or Auditor in writing to United forty-five (45) days after the end of the audit. Such final audit report will contain a representative sample of prescription claims or the entire suspected error population, as well as the dollar amount associated with any suspected errors. If the entire suspected error population is provided, then United will review a statistically valid sample of the prescription claims and provide Customer or Auditor with its response within forty-five (45) days of United's receipt of the final audit report. Customer or its Auditor shall have thirty (30) calendar days to reply to United's response. If Customer or its Auditor fail to provide either the initial final audit report or fail to reply to United's audit response within the timeframes provided, then the audit will be considered closed. Any payment made, whether by United or Customer, based upon audit findings will be made within thirty (30) days following Customer and United agreeing to the audit results and payment of any amounts due as reflected in an executed audit settlement agreement.

Without limiting the foregoing, with respect to audits regarding the payment of Rebates by pharmaceutical manufacturers, the audit must be conducted solely by a "big four" public accounting firm (currently defined as Deloitte, Ernst & Young, KPMG and PricewaterhouseCoopers) that maintains a separate and stand-alone audit department and is not providing support in conjunction with any litigation pending against United or United's affiliates. However, the parties may agree in writing to use another mutually agreeable firm meeting such requirements. Rebate audits are to be conducted separate from claims audits, must be conducted on site at United, and are limited to five (5) Rebate agreements.

# **Section A8 Pharmacy Benefit Rebates**

**Allocation and Payment of Rebates.** United will negotiate with drug manufacturers for the payment of Rebates to United. United will retain 100% of the Rebates paid to United and any related interest. The amount of Rebates retained depends on many factors, including whether Customer has an incentive benefit design, arrangements with drug manufacturers, the volume of prescription drug claims and the structure of the PDL.

In the event a government action or a major change in pharmaceutical industry practices eliminates or materially reduces manufacturer Rebate programs, Customer's payment amount may be reduced or eliminated. In such event, United shall promptly notify Customer and revise or eliminate such payment effective with the date of the reduction or elimination in Rebate payments. In addition, reduction or elimination of Rebates in this event shall constitute a change in the Agreement as described in the Fees Section such that United has the right to increase the fees for the Pharmacy Benefits Management services. Termination of pharmacy benefit services shall constitute a change in the Agreement as described in the Fees Section such that United has the right to increase Customer fees under this Agreement.

**Payments to Pharmacies.** In connection with prescription drug claims, there may be a timing difference between when United withdraw funds from Customer claims account and when United issues payments to pharmacies and other payees. United may retain interest earned on these amounts during this time. Interest is expected to be paid at overnight deposit rates by United's banking institution.

Customer Compliance. Customer agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither Customer nor the Plan will negotiate or arrange or contract in any way for Rebates on or the purchase of prescription drug products from any

manufacturer with respect to the pharmacy benefits, unless Customer is doing so as part of a conversion to a new service provider who is to replace United as the result of a competitive bid. If Customer or the Plan does, in violation of this provision, United may, without limiting United's right to other remedies, immediately terminate Customer and Plan's entitlement to Rebates (including forfeiture of any Rebates earned but not paid) and/or terminate the pharmacy benefit services. Termination of pharmacy benefit services shall constitute a change in the Agreement as described in the Fees Section such that United has the right to increase the fees for medical management services under this Agreement. In addition, Customer agrees to reasonably cooperate with United in order to obtain Rebates. Customer will encourage Customer Participants to use a Network Pharmacy. Customer will also encourage Customer Participants to electronically access the PDL on United's website, and encourage Participants to share the PDL with their physicians or refer their physicians to the PDL on United's website.

Coordination of Pharmacy Benefits with Medicare Part D. If elected by Customer, Customer delegates the discretion and authority to United to develop and use policies and procedures to coordinate claims for retiree pharmacy benefits claims with Customer Part D prescription drug plan in accordance with Customer Plan design and applicable law.

## **Section A9 Health Savings Account (HSA)**

Health Savings Account (HSA). United will provide Customer with an HSA in accordance with Exhibit A - Statement of Work. Customer acknowledges that HSAs are subject to contribution limits and other requirements imposed by the IRC and associated guidance issued by the IRS/Treasury Department. Customer acknowledges and agrees that United shall have no obligation to ensure compliance with any requirements or limitations pertaining to HSAs, their establishment and/or use. To the extent that Customer has established contribution amounts and other HSA program requirements applicable to Customer Enrolling Employees, Customer will advise United of such requirements. United will not verify that distributions from Customer's Enrolling Employees' HSAs are for qualified medical expenses.

# **Schedule of Services**

# A. ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Service	Comments
Implementation and maintenance of account.	
Enrollment meetings and support for locations that meet	Minimum six weeks notice of meeting.
United's criteria.	
Standard initial enrollment kit.	
Bulk mailing of initial enrollment kits to Customer based	
on United's criteria.	
Ongoing account management including:	
Designated account resources.	
Ongoing management and review of benefits and data.	
Standard accounting structure based on United's criteria:	
Suffixes to accommodate separate claims reporting for	
different benefit plans.	
Claim accounts to accommodate separate claims data for	
different locations and groups.	
Maintenance of benefit plans.	
Electronic Bill Presentment and Payment (EBPP), which	
provides capabilities to:	
View invoices online.	
Sort and search enrollee information.	
Download billing information.	
Remit payment online.	
Online administration services accessed through United's	Customer reporting is included to the extent indicated in
Employer eServices Web site including online eligibility	Section D. eServices Customer Reporting Services.
maintenance and claim status inquiry.	
Summary Plan Description (SPD) Assistance. United will	If the SPD is not finalized sufficiently in advance of the
prepare a customized draft of an SPD, either for each plan or	Effective Date of United's services, United will either (i)
multiple plans, as mutually agreed upon with one additional	utilize the summary of Plan benefits and exclusions that United
draft, in response to Customer's comments, and a final draft	has created based on its understanding of Customer's Plan
SPD. "Plan", for purposes of this paragraph, means each	design and which Customer has reviewed and approved or (ii)
individual plan design administered by United. The SPD will	create, at United's discretion, an operational SPD which will be
be in English.	based upon the summary of Plan benefits that Customer has
	reviewed and approved. United will administer claims and
	otherwise provide its services in accordance with this summary
	of Plan benefits and exclusions or operational SPD, as the case
	may be, and it will govern and remain in full force and effect
	until a final SPD is provided to United.
	Printing of SPDs is available at an additional cost.
Summary of Benefits and Coverage:	
Electronic version in United's standard format.	
For medical Plans administered by United.	
Initial request and up to 1 amendment per year.	

# B. ELIGIBILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Service	Comments
Standard ID Card production and issuance.	United has assumed the addition of Customer's logo in an
	acceptable format to the ID card and in compliance with
	Denver's Brand Guidelines.
Alternative member ID numbers generated by United	
(not based on SSN).	
Electronic Eligibility Processing	

Service	Comments
Electronic Enrollment processing:	
• Each submission to be a single consolidated file. Separate	
eligibility submissions for COBRA.	
Initial load of primary physician data (when applicable) to	
be supplied electronically.	
Submission format:	
UnitedHealth Group® Standard 3005 Format; HIPAA 834	
Compliant Format; or HR-XML format.	
Single data source required.	
Submission frequency:	
Changes file daily in combination with a full population	
file on a monthly schedule.	
Or	
Changes file weekly or bi-weekly in combination with a	
full population file on a monthly or quarterly schedule.	
Or	
Full file weekly or bi-weekly.	
Transmission method:	
FTP with United's approved encryption or direct connect.	

# C. Underwriting and Financial Services

Service	Comments
Overall program accounting (year-end reconciliation).	
Claim projections.	
Annual Projection of cost impact for benefit design changes.	
Annual Projection of conventional premium equivalent rates.	
Annual Reserve estimates.	
Annual government filings of 1099 reports to the IRS regarding payments made to physicians and other health care professionals.	
Provide required data, which is in the solely in the control of United, necessary to enable Customer to file Form 5500, and any other required tax reporting documents.	

# D. ESERVICES® CUSTOMER REPORTING SERVICES

Service	Comments
An online customer reporting system including up to five customer IDs.	
Reporting Access Levels:     Standard – Basic report package of "subscription" financial and utilization information produced on a prescheduled basis.	
Non-standard or ad hoc reports	Fees are determined on a report-specific basis
United reserves the right, from time to time, to change the content, format and/or type of its reports.	

# E. CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

Service Comments	
Claims for Plan benefits must be submitted in a form that is satisfactory to United in order for it to determine whether a benefit	
is payable under the Plan's provisions. Customer delegates to United the discretion and authority to use United's claim	
procedures and standards for Plan benefit claim determination.	
Implementation of Customer's benefit plans.	

Service	Comments
Claim history load from one prior carrier using United's	
standard process.	
Standard claims processing including:	
Re-pricing and payment of claims.	
<ul> <li>Auto and manual adjudication using proprietary software.</li> <li>Claim edit/review and cost containment program</li> </ul>	
Pending and subsequent claim review.	
Standard claim forms (when applicable).	
Medical claim review of specific health care claims to	
promote coding accuracy, benefit interpretation, and apply	
reimbursement policy.	
Standard coordination of benefits for all claims with	
automated investigation once every 12 months.	
Production and distribution of monthly Health	
Statements.	If it is a second of the secon
<b>Processing of run-out claims</b> (meaning claims incurred prior to the termination date) for six (6) months following termination.	If the Agreement terminates because Customer fails to pay United fees due, fails to provide the funding for the payment of benefits, or United terminates for any other material breach, run-out will not apply. Run-out fees shall apply to partial terminations.
	The fee for six (6) months run-out claims processing is equal to the last two months' Standard Medical Service Fees in effect at the time of termination, and no other monthly run-out claims processing service fee will be charged concurrently during the runout period. If Customer terminates this Agreement at the end of the Initial Term, a matured Standard Medical Service Fee will be used as the basis for the run-out fee.
	United will bill Customer for the full amount of run-out fee that Customer owes, generally one month prior to the Agreement's termination date. The full payment of run-out fees is due and payable before run-out claims processing will begin. United will only process run-out claims if Customer is current with all fee obligations at time of termination.
	Suspension of Run-out Processing If Customer does not pay the run-out fees it owes United when due as set forth above, United will notify Customer. If Customer does not make the required payment within five (5) business days of United's notice to Customer, United may stop issuing checks and non-draft payments and suspend its run-out claims processing under this Agreement, such suspension to apply to all claims regardless of dates of service and shall remain in effect until such date when Customer makes the required payment.
	Termination of Run-out Processing Run-out claims processing will terminate: (1) the date United gives Customer notice of termination because Customer did not pay the run-out fees Customer owed United when due as set forth above, or (2) if Customer fails to provide the required funds for payment of benefits under the terms of this Agreement. Such termination shall apply to all claims regardless of dates of service.
Subrogation Services.	
Fraud and Abuse Management Recovery Program.	
Hospital Bill Audit Program.	

Service	Comments
Credit Balance Recovery Program.	
Focus Claim Review	

# F. MEMBER SERVICES

Service	Comments
Toll-free access to a customer care unit using a dedicated	
number	
Employee access to a member website enabling Participants	
to:	
Check claim status.	
Check eligibility information.	
Search for providers and online health information.	

# G. MEDICARE SERVICES

Service	Comments
Medicare crossover	
Medicare Part D Subsidiary Services. If elected by Customer, provide to Customer or Customer's designee, or, at Customer's request directly to CMS, information Customer has determined is necessary for Customer to comply with the requirements of the RDS program consisting of our standard reporting, in a format compliant with all applicable CMS submission procedures and deadlines.	If elected by Customer, Customer will provide United with any information that United reasonable requires in order to prepare these reports, including but not limited to Plan Variation/Reporting Code used to isolate members for whom Customer is pursuing the Retiree Drug Subsidy and/or the members' social security numbers of Health Information Codes.
	Customer hereby represents that Customer has entered into a disclosure agreement with the Plan to allow the release of required information to CMS. Customer has informed United and United acknowledges that information provided in connection with the services under this Agreement is used for purposes of obtaining Federal funds.
Medicare Secondary Payer Reporting. United shall provide to applicable parties the applicable reports in a time and manner as required according to the Medicare Secondary Payer Mandatory Reporting Provisions (the Reporting Requirements) in Section 111 of the Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP Extension Act of 2007. United shall not be responsible for any noncompliance penalties in connection with the Reporting Requirements that are related to the Customer's failure to provide the required data.	Customer agrees to provide to United in a timely manner and in an agreed upon format any and all data that United requires to comply with the Reporting Requirements.

# H. NETWORK SERVICES

Service	Comments
Network access, management and administrative activities	Standard on all network plans.
UnitedHealth Premium <sup>SM</sup> Designation Program	Available in designated markets.
Reasonable and customary charge guidelines for out of	
network surgical, medical, lab and x-ray claims.	
Maximum Non-Network Reimbursement Program	
(MNRP) for non-emergency non-network claims.	
Naviguard – Emergent/RAPL (Participant Had No	Participants are held harmless from provider balance billing.
Choice). Offers a reimbursement methodology applicable	
to out of network claims which calculates allowed amounts	Program complies with applicable law and regulation including
based on what a healthcare provider generally accepts for	but not limited to the ACA minimum reimbursement
the same or similar service. Includes an advocacy	methodology.
component where the Participant can access dedicated	

Service	Comments
resources as well on-line materials to help Participants stay	
in network where assistance is provided in explaining	
reimbursement methodologies.	
Naviguard – Non-Emergent (Participant Had	Customer directs United, at United's discretion, to increase
Choice). Offers a reimbursement methodology applicable	compensation for a particular claim if United reasonably
to out of network claims which calculates allowed amounts	concludes that the particular facts and circumstances related to
based on what a healthcare provider generally accepts for	a claim provide justification for reimbursement greater than
the same or similar service. Includes an advocacy	that which would result from the application of the allowed
component where the Participant can access dedicated	amount, and United believes that it would serve the best
resources as well on-line materials to help Participants stay	interests of the Plan and its Participants (including interests in
in network where assistance is provided in explaining	avoiding costs and expenses of disputes over payment of
reimbursement methodologies.	claims).

# I. CARE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS SERVICES

Service	Comments
Personal Health Support	Communic
Health advocates and concierge services, includes the	
following:	
Central in-take point for all clinical and lifestyle	
Participant calls.	
Access to registered nurses for symptom triage and	
support with decisions about health care and treatment	
options as applicable to the Customer's elected products.	
<ul> <li>Health education and resource navigation.</li> </ul>	
Low to moderate health risk management.	
Premium provider / facility locating and appointment	
scheduling.	
Personal nurses, provide targeted support.	
Specialty nurses, provide clinical management for complex	
conditions.	
Personal Health Support Website	
Advocate4Me. United will provide Customer's Participants	
with access to a one-stop advocacy resource for a range of	
needs, including support and access to services across	
medical benefits, claims, pharmacy, financial, behavioral,	
clinical, incentives, health education, provider research,	
appointment scheduling, treatment cost estimation, and much	
more. Participants will have access to an advocate who has the tools, training and resources to make the health plan and	
health system more simple and effective, leveraging live	
access to the claims system in order to resolve a Participant	
issue on the spot, providing evidence-based decision support	
and education for members considering a medical procedure.	
Consumer activation and outreach campaigns, United	
may create consumer marketing campaigns to promote	
clinical, lifestyle management and advocacy services to the	
Customer's Participants.	
Reporting, outlining program activity and impact.	
Additional services include the following:	
Disease Management	
☑ Asthma	
☑ Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)	
☑ Coronary Artery Disease (CAD)	
☑ Comprehensive Diabetes	
☑ Congestive Heart Failure (HF)	
Complex Medical Conditions:	

Service	Comments
☑ Cancer Resource Services	
☑ Congenital Heart Disease Resource Services	
☑ Kidney Resource Services	
☑ Orthopedic Health Support	
☑ Bariatric Resource Services	
Transplant Resource Services:	
Transplant Network via Centers of Excellence (COE)	
Transplant Access Program (TAP) Network	
Extra-Contractual Services - contracting on a case-by case	
basis for transplant care outside of the COE or TAP	
Networks for a standard negotiating fee.	
Women's Health:	
Fertility Solutions	
Maternity Program	
Parent Steps Infertility Discount Program	
Health Content: Providing members with access to online	
services which may include but are not limited health and	
wellness content, health assessments, health coaching,	
personal health records and/or automated messaging,	
available through myuhc.com and other online resources.	
Physical Health Solutions	
☑ Chiropractic Network	
☑ PT/OT/ST Network	
☑ Chiropractic Clinical Support Program (CCSP)	
☑ Clinical Support Program - PT/OT	
Complementary Alternative Medicine (CAM) Network	
Management	
Advocacy	
<b>☑</b> EAP	
☑ Decision Support	
Medical policy functions, as guided by a medical director.	Standard on all managed plans.
Alternate Care Proposals (ACP) which provide appropriate	Customer consents to United's use and administration of the
and cost effective health care services and supplies	ACP program and delegate to United the discretion and
alternatives that would otherwise not be covered by the Plan.	authority to develop and revise ACPs.
Activation programs to engage Participants including,	
monthly health statements member call services, and access	
to member portal with consumer messaging	
<b>Predictive modeling</b> , using data from a proprietary system,	Additional charges apply for integrating an outside vendor's
to identify individuals at risk and offer proactive programs to	pharmacy data. As of the effective date pharmacy services are
improve their health status.	being provided by United.

# J. UNITED BEHAVIORAL HEALTH — MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER SERVICES

Service	Comments
Behavioral Health Solutions	
Network access, development and maintenance	
Ongoing case management.	
Outpatient care management.	
Inpatient care management.	
Interventions for Inpatient and Outpatient outliers.	
Claims processing, adjudication and member services.	
Account management and standard reporting	
Interface Integration with employee assistance program	
(EAP) vendors	
Applied Behavioral Analysis (ABA) for Autism if	
Customer chooses to cover ABA as a Plan benefit,	
including ABA clinical management	
Participant referrals to licensed care manager from	
disease management and case management programs.	

# K. MANAGED PHARMACY SERVICES

Service	Comments
Integrated Pharmacy Services and General Support. United	to provide administrative, management, consultative and general
	mail order pharmacy services and specialty pharmacy services to
support the Plan	
Account management and support staff	
Benefits administration and support	
Claims Processing	
Clinical programs such as standard notification, quantity	
level limits, and quantity per duration.	
Credentialing of Contracted Pharmacies	
Customer Care Center Services - Toll-free access to	
customer care voice response unit (for location of network	
pharmacies), and a pharmacist	
Eligibility management	
<ul> <li>Mail Order Pharmacy Services</li> </ul>	
Medication Adherence Savings	
PDL Management	
Pharmacy Network Management	
Pharmacy Benefit Rebate Administration	
Prior Authorization Services	
Quality Assurance Program	
Reporting (available through eServices)	
Specialty Pharmacy Services Step Therapy	
Targeted Disease Intervention Program	
Utilization Management Program - Development and	
Support	
Additional programs such as dispense as written  (DAW) interpreting a still flow and a life programs.	
(DAW) interventions, retail flags and edits, maximum	
allowable cost pricing (retail), and generic and mail order	
<ul><li>programs</li><li>Upon termination of the Agreement, United will provide</li></ul>	
transition files (open refill, prior authorization, non-	
financial claims history) to a successor pharmacy benefits	
manager	

# L. HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT (HSA) SERVICES

	Service	Comments
Sta	andard HSA services. United's affiliate	
wi	ll be Customer's preferred HSA custodian	
for	eligible employees' HSAs. United will	
pro	ovide the following services in relation to	
tho	ose HSA custodial services:	
$\square$	Pre-enrollment brochures – one per	
	employee.	
◩	Human Resources Communication	
	Toolkit.	
$\square$	Provide access to bank account	
	information through a member website for	
	account holders enrolled in health plans	
	administered by United.	
Ø	Enhanced Behavioral Support may refer Participants	
	to a behavioral health provider through a virtual program, to receive virtual Cognitive Behavioral	
	Therapy (CBT).	

#### **EXHIBIT B - FEES**

This exhibit lists the fees Customer must pay United for its services during the term of the Agreement. These fees apply for the period from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025. Customer acknowledges that the amounts paid for administrative services are reasonable. If expressly authorized by Customer pursuant to this Agreement or by subsequent authorization, certain fees will be paid through a withdrawal from the Bank Account.

#### **Standard Medical Service Fees**

The Standard Medical Service Fees described below, excluding optional and non-standard fees, are adjusted as set forth in the applicable performance standard(s).

The Standard Medical Fees listed below are based upon an estimated minimum of 3,965 enrolled Employees.

## The Standard Medical Service Fees are the sum of the following:

- ☑ \$45.13 per Employee per month covered under the Choice Plus HSA and Doctor's Plan Choice portion(s) of the Plan.
- **☑** Average Contract Size: 2.11

## **Pharmacy AWP Contract Rate**

Customer's contract rate for prescription drugs is as provided in Exhibit C. United uses Medi-Span's national drug data file as the source for average wholesale price (AWP) information. United reserves the right to revise the pricing and adopt a new source or benchmark if there are material industry changes in pricing methodologies.

#### Other Fees

In total, Other Fees defined in this section are subject to the Maximum Contract Amounts recited in the Master Purchase Agreement between the parties.

Service Description	Fee
Standardized Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) as established under The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010	United will provide, at no additional charge, standard format, electronic copies of the SBC documents (twice per year) for medical benefit plans administered by United. Customer logos can be included on the SBC at no additional charge. Additional fees will apply for other services. United will not create SBCs for medical plans it does not administer.
Litigation and Arbitration Fees for Recoveries	Outside attorneys' fees and costs directly incurred in connection with litigation or arbitration to recover any Overpayments and other Plan recovery opportunities will be deducted from the gross recovery prior to the assessment of any applicable United fees (as indicated in this Exhibit).
Fraud and Abuse Management	Fee not to exceed 22% of the gross recovery or prevented amount.
Hospital Audit Program Services	Fee not to exceed 22% of the gross recovery amount.
Credit Balance Recovery Services	Fee not to exceed 10% of the gross recovery amount.
Focus Claim Review	Fee not to exceed 22% of the gross recovery amount.
Injury Coverage Continuation (ICC) Services	Fee not to exceed 33.33% of the applicable savings amount.

Third Party Liability Recovery (Subrogation) Services	Fee not to exceed 33.33% of the applicable savings amount.
Naviguard	Customer will pay a fee equal to thirty-five percent (25%) of the Savings Obtained. Savings Obtained means the amount that would have been payable to a health care provider, including amounts payable by both the Participant and the Plan, if no discount were available, minus the amount that is payable to the health care provider, again, including amounts payable by both the Participant and the Plan, after the application of the reimbursement calculation.
Nurse Liaison Program	The fee for individual claim will not exceed \$15,000. \$160,000 annually
External Reviews	For each subsequent external review beyond 5 total reviews per year, a fee of \$500 will apply per review.

#### Wellness Allowance

United will provide a wellness allowance so Customer may enhance Customer medical benefits during the term of the Agreement. The wellness allowance may be used at Customer's discretion as Customer utilizes wellness programming and services from United. If Customer terminates the Agreement prior to December 31, 2025, Customer will pay United a prorated portion of this credit.

\$450,000 Wellness annual allowance (not subject to roll-over)

## Other

A United affiliate provides payment services to the healthcare industry and offers medical providers with various payment methods and options, including electronic payments, virtual cards and checks. Some options are available to medical providers for a fee and may result in the receipt of transaction fees or other compensation (e.g., 1% to 3% of the total transaction amount) by a United affiliate.

#### EXHIBIT C – PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR HEALTH BENEFITS

The Standard Medical Service Fees (excluding Optional and Non-Standard Fees and that portion of the Standard Medical Service Fees attributable to Commission Funds, if applicable, as described in Exhibit B - Fees), (hereinafter referred to as "Fees in this Exhibit") payable by Customer under this Self-Funded Benefits Plan Agreement ("Agreement") will be adjusted through a credit to its fees in accordance with the performance guarantees set forth below unless otherwise defined in the guarantee. Unless otherwise specified, these guarantees apply to medical benefits and are effective for the period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025 ("Guarantee Period"), and for every calendar year through December 31, 2025 thereafter that the Self-Funded Insurance Plan Agreement until this Exhibit is replaced by United. With respect to the aspects of United's performance addressed in this exhibit, these fee adjustments are Customer's exclusive financial remedies under this Exhibit C.

These guarantees will become effective upon the later of (1) the effective date of the Guarantee Period; or (2) the date this Agreement is signed by both parties. In the event these guarantees become effective later than the effective date of the Guarantee Period: (1) quarterly guarantees will become effective beginning with the next calendar quarter following signature of this Agreement by both parties and (2) annual guarantees will become effective commencing with the Term of the Agreement during which this Agreement is signed by both parties.

United shall not be required to meet any of the guarantees provided for in this Agreement or amendments thereto to the extent its failure is due to Customer's actions or inactions or if United fails to meet these standards due to fire, embargo, strike, war, accident, act of God, acts of terrorism or United's required compliance with any law, regulation, or governmental agency mandate or anything beyond United's reasonable control.

Prior to the end of the Guarantee Period, and on the condition that this Agreement remains in force, United may specify to Customer in writing new performance guarantees for the subsequent Guarantee Period. If United specifies new performance guarantees, United will also provide Customer with a new Exhibit that will replace this Exhibit for that subsequent Guarantee Period.

Claim is defined as an initial and complete written request for payment of a Plan benefit made by an enrollee, physician, or other healthcare provider on an accepted format. Unless stated otherwise, the claims are limited to medical claims processed through the UNET claims systems. Claims processed and products administered through any other system, including claims for other products such as vision, dental, flexible spending accounts, health reimbursement accounts, health savings accounts, or pharmacy coverage, are not included in the calculation of the performance measurements. Also, services provided under capitated arrangements are not processed as a typical claim; therefore capitated payments are not included in the performance measurements.

Claim Operations January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025			
	Time to Process in 10 Days		
Definition	The percentage of all claims United receives will be processed within the designated number of business days of receipt.		

Measurement	Percentage of claims processed	94%	
	Time to process, in business days or less after receipt of claim busines	SS	
	days	10	
Criteria	Standard claim operations reports		
Level	Site Level		
Period	Annually		
Payment Period	Annually		
Fees at Risk	Total Dollars Payable for this metric	\$40,000	
Payment	Of the Fees at Risk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		
Amount	111 ' 1	20%	
Gradients	11 business days		
	12 business days 13 business days		
	14 business days		
	15 business days or more		
	Dollar Accuracy (DAR)		
Definition	Dollar accuracy rate of not less than the designated percent in any quarter.		
Measurement	Percentage of claims dollars processed accurately	99%	
G : .	Statistically significant random sample of claims processed is reviewed to determine the perc	entage of claim	
Criteria	dollars processed correctly out of the total claim dollars paid.	Č	
Level	Office Level		
Period	Annually		
Payment Period	Annually		
Fees at Risk	Total Dollars Payable for this metric	\$40,000	
Payment	Of the Fees at Risk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		
Amount		20%	
Gradients	98.99% - 98.50%		
	98.49% - 98.00%		
	97.99% - 97.50% 97.49% - 97.00		
	Below 97.00%		
	Procedural Accuracy		
Definition	Procedural accuracy rate of not less than the designated percent.		
Measurement	Percentage of claims processed without procedural (i.e. non-financial) errors	97%	
	Statistically significant random sample of claims processed is reviewed to determine the perc		
Criteria	dollars processed without procedural (i.e. non-financial) errors.	C	
Level	Office Level		
Period	Annually		
Payment Period	Annually		
Fees at Risk	Total Dollars Payable for this metric	\$40,000	
Payment	Of the Fees at Risk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		
Amount		20%	
Gradients	96.99% - 96.50%		
	96.49% - 96.00%		
	95.99% - 95.50% 95.49% - 95.00%		
	95.49% - 95.00% Below 95.00%		
	Marshau Phana Carrier		

## **Member Phone Service**

Phone service guarantees and standards apply to Participant calls made to the customer care center that primarily services Customer's Participants. If Customer elects a specialized phone service model the results may be blended with more than one call center and/or level. They do not include calls made to care management personnel and/or calls to the senior center for Medicare Participants, nor do they include calls for services/products other than medical, such as mental health/substance abuse, pharmacy (except when United is Customer's pharmacy benefit services administrator), dental, vision, Health Savings Account, etc.

eic.			
	Average Speed to Answer		
Definition			
Measurement	Percentage of calls answered	100%	

	Time answered in seconds, on average	seconds	30
Criteria	Standard tracking reports produced by the phone system for all calls		
Level	Team that services Customer's account		
Period	Annually		
Payment Period	Annually		
Fees at Risk	Total Dollars Payable for this metric		\$40,000
Payment	Of the Fees at Risk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		
Amount			20%
Gradients	32 seconds or less		
	34 seconds or less		
	36 seconds or less		
	38 seconds or less		
	Greater than 38 seconds		

	Abandonment Rate		
Definition	The average call abandonment rate will be no greater than the percentage set forth		
Measurement	Percentage of total incoming calls to customer service abandoned, on average		2%
Criteria	Standard tracking reports produced by the phone system for all calls		
Level	Team that services Customer's account		
Period	Annually		
Payment Period	Annually		
Fees at Risk	Total Dollars Payable for this metric		\$40,000
Payment	Of the Fees at Risk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		4 10,000
Amount	granten		20%
Gradients	2.01% - 2.50%		
	2.51% - 3.00%		
	3.01% - 3.50%		
	3.51% - 4.00%		
	Greater than 4.00%		
	Call Quality Score		
Definition	Maintain a call quality score of not less than the percent set forth		
Measurement	Call quality score to meet or exceed		93%
Critorio	Random sampling of calls are each assigned a customer service quality score, usin	g United's stan	dard
Criteria	internal call quality assurance program.		
Level	Office that services Customer's account		
Period	Annually		
Payment Period	Annually		
Fees at Risk	Total Dollars Payable for this metric		\$40,000
Payment	Of the Fees at Risk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		
Amount			20%
Gradients	92.99% - 91.00%		
	90.99% - 89.00%		
	88.99% - 87.00%		
	86.99% - 85.00%		
	Below 85.00%		
	Satisfaction		
	Employee (Member) Satisfaction		
Definition	The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "Overall, ho	w satisfied are	you with
Delinition	the way we administers your medical health insurance plan?"		
Measurement	Percentage of respondents, on average, indicating a grade of satisfied or higher		80%
Wicasurement	Operations standard survey, conducted over the course of the year; may be custom	er specific for	
Criteria	additional charge.	er specific for	411
Level	Office that services Customer's account		
Period	Annually		
Payment Period	Annually		
Fees at Risk	Total Dollars Payable for this metric		\$20,000
Payment	Of the Fees at Risk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		\$20,000
Amount	of the rees at reisk for this metric, percentage at risk for each gradient		N/A
Gradients			1 1/ 1 1
Gradiento	Not applicable		•
	Not applicable  Customer Satisfaction		
	Customer Satisfaction	ad ano v	
Definition	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfaction"	ed are you ove	
	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfaction UnitedHealthcare?"	ed are you ove	
Definition  Measurement	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfaction UnitedHealthcare?"  Minimum score on a 10 point scale	ed are you ove	
	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfaction UnitedHealthcare?"		rall with
Measurement	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfaction UnitedHealthcare?"  Minimum score on a 10 point scale		rall with
Measurement Criteria	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfa UnitedHealthcare?"  Minimum score on a 10 point scale Standard Customer Scorecard Survey		rall with
Measurement Criteria Level	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfa UnitedHealthcare?"  Minimum score on a 10 point scale Standard Customer Scorecard Survey  Customer specific		rall with
Measurement Criteria Level Period	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfa UnitedHealthcare?"  Minimum score on a 10 point scale Standard Customer Scorecard Survey Customer specific Annually		rall with
Measurement Criteria Level Period Payment Period	Customer Satisfaction  The overall satisfaction will be determined by the question that reads "How satisfa UnitedHealthcare?"  Minimum score on a 10 point scale Standard Customer Scorecard Survey Customer specific Annually Annually		rall with

	Gradients Not applicable						
Pharmacy Financials January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025							
Definition	Contracted pharmacy rates that will be delivered to You.	December 31, 2023					
Measurement		01/01/2023	01/01/2024	01/01/2025			
and Criteria	lent						
	Retail Brand, Average Wholesale Price (AWP) less	20.6%	20.8%	21.1%			
	Retail Generic, AWP less	87.4%	87.5%	87.7%			
	Mail Order Brand, AWP less	25.3%	25.4%	25.5%			
	Mail Order Generic, AWP less	87.5%	87.6%	87.8%			
	The Guaranteed Discount amount will be determined by multiply						
		, , , , ,		-y			
	Dispensing Fees - Standard Select/WAG Network						
	Retail Brand	\$0.39	\$0.39	\$0.39			
	Retail Generic	\$0.39	\$0.39	\$0.39			
	Dispensing fee totals are calculated by multiplying the actual scr	ipts for each type by the c	ontracted rate for that scri	ipt type.			
	Fixed Rebate Guarantee						
	Basis, per script	Brand	Brand	Brand			
_	Retail - 30 and 90 Day	\$740.43	\$806.38	\$885.02			
_	Mail Order	\$1,020.22	\$1,036.06	\$1,105.10			
_	Specialty	Included In Retail	Included In Retail	Included In Retail			
	Fees						
	Variable Copay program (monthly, per eligible member)	\$0.45	\$0.45	\$0.45			
Level	Customer Specific						
Period	Annually						
Payment	Annually						
Period Payment							
Amount	The amount the actual discounts are less than the guaranteed disc	count amount for each ind	ividual component.				
Discounts							
Payment							
Amount Dispensing	The amount the combined actual dispensing fee exceeds the com-	bined contracted dispensi	ng fee.				
Fees							
Payment							
Amount	The amount the combined actual Rebate amount is less than the	combined guaranteed Reb	ate amount.				
Rebates	Discount & Disponso Foo Specific Conditions						
Conditions	Discount & Dispense Fee Specific Conditions  • Discounts are based on actual Network Pharmacy brand and generic usage of retail and mail order drugs. The guaranteed discount						
	amount will be determined by multiplying the AWP by the contr			rameed discount			
-	• Does not apply to items covered under the Plan for which no AWP measure exists.						
	<ul> <li>Does not apply to tiems covered under the Fian for which no AWF measure exists.</li> <li>Discounts calculated based on AWP less the ingredient cost; discount percentages are the discounts divided by the AWP. Discounts for</li> </ul>						
	retail and mail order generic prescriptions represent the average AWP based on savings off Maximum Allowable Cost (MAC) pricing for MAC generics and percentage discount savings off AWP for non-MAC generics. All other discounts represent the percentage discount savings off of AWP.						
_	• The arrangement excludes compound drugs, retail out of netwo Health Service Claims.	ork claims, mail order drug	gs (for dispensing fee arra	ngement) and Indian			
_	• The Arrangement excludes usual & customary claims, vaccines	s, long term care facility cl	laims, over-the-counter cl	aims.			

- The Arrangement includes veterans' affairs facility claims.
- The Mail Order guarantee includes drugs dispensed for 46 days or greater.
- When a drug is identified as a brand name drug, it will be considered a brand name drug for the calculation of discount guarantees. When a drug is identified as a generic drug, it will be considered a generic drug for the calculation of discount guarantees.
- Specialty drugs dispensed outside United's specialty Pharmacy Network are included in the retail guarantees. Specialty drugs dispensed through United's specialty Pharmacy Network are excluded from the Retail and Mail guarantees.
- Drugs in the following Specialty therapeutic categories are included in the retail guarantees: None.

#### **Rebate Specific Conditions**

- Calculation of the guaranteed rebate amount will exclude ineligible claims including claims where the plan is not the primary payer (e.g., coordination of benefits and subrogation claims), claims approved by formulary exception, claims not covered by Customer's benefit design or PDL, claims from 340B, long term care or federal government pharmacies, claims for non-FDA approved products, compound drugs, consumer card or discount card program claims and direct member reimbursement claims.
- "Rebate Credit" is a credit towards the achievement of the guaranteed Rebate amount, and/or Rebate Fee Credit. The Rebate Credit is applied in the event of a change impacting the level of Rebates expected as a result of the availability of clinically comparable lower Rebate drugs. The Rebate Credit is calculated as the difference in pharmaceutical manufacturer revenue between what United would have invoiced pharmaceutical manufacturers if the Customer continued to prefer the originator brand product and the actual pharmaceutical manufacturer revenue received after favoring the new product (e.g. biosimilar, an authorized brand alternative, reduction of wholesale acquisition cost (WAC) on a Brand Drug subject to Rebates, launch of a lower cost non-Generic Drug alternative). The Rebate Credit does not apply to Generic Drugs that launch after the Brand Drug no longer has patent protection.

United reserves the right to modify or eliminate this arrangement as follows based upon changes in Rebates:

- if changes made to United's PDL, for the purpose of achieving a lower net drug cost for Customer and United's other ASO customers, result in significant reductions to the Rebate level
- in the event that there are material deviations to the anticipated timing of drugs that will come off patent and no longer generate Rebates
- if there is a change impacting the availability or amount of Rebates offered by drug manufacturer(s), including changes related to the elimination or material modification of a drug manufacturer(s) historic models or practices related to the provision of Rebates
- United will pay Fixed Rebates consistent with the Agreement. To the extent Rebates paid to United exceed the Fixed Rebate amount, We will retain the excess, including any Rebates United may earn on prescription drug products in any tiers not included in this arrangement and any related interest.
- Specialty rebates are included in the guaranteed retail per-script rebates above.
- Rebate Administrative Fee: United maintains systems and processes necessary for managing and administering Rebate programs. As consideration for these efforts, pharmaceutical manufacturers pay United administrative fees in addition to Rebates. Rebate Administration fees are included in the guaranteed rebate arrangement.
- If Customer terminates pharmacy benefit services with United prior to the end of the Pharmacy Pricing Term, United will retain any and all pending or future Rebates payable under the Agreement as of the effective date of the termination of pharmacy benefit services.
- Drugs in the following Specialty therapeutic categories are included in the retail per-Brand guarantees: None.
- Over-the-counter and repackaged drugs, vaccines and devices are excluded from the claim counts (Insulins and Test Strips are not excluded).
- Multisource brand drugs are excluded from the claim counts.

#### **General Conditions**

- All pricing guarantees shall remain in effect for the entire contract period of 01/01/2023 through 12/31/2025 ("Pharmacy Pricing Term"). Each twelve month period is a Guarantee Period.
- Specialty drugs typically covered under the medical benefit (administered / handled by a provider, administered in a physician's office, ambulatory or home infusion), and/or transitioned to the pharmacy benefit, are excluded from all guarantees.
- Drugs, products, supplies approved, covered and/or prescribed for the diagnosis, treatment or prevention of COVID-19 are excluded from all guarantees.
- On mail order drugs, specialty drugs, and retail pharmacy drugs and services including dispensing fees, United will retain the difference between what United reimburses the Network Pharmacy and Customer's payment for a prescription drug product or service.
- Pricing and guarantees assume enrollment of 4,051 Employees and 8,554 Participants; pricing and guarantees may be revised or withdrawn if actual enrollment varies by 10% or more from assumptions.
- The lessor of three logic (non-ZBL) will apply to Participant payments. Participants pay the lessor of the discounted price, the usual and customary charge or the cost share amount.
- All pricing guarantees require the selection of United as the exclusive mail provider.
- Point of Sale Discount Administration Applies. Member discounts will be funded by Customer and included in claim funding requests.

United will have no financial guarantee obligation under the Agreement for any partial Guarantee Period if Customer terminates prior to the end of the Pharmacy Pricing Term.

• United reserves the right to revise or revoke this arrangement if: a) changes in federal, state or other applicable law or regulation require modifications; b) there are material changes to the AWP as published by the pricing agency that establishes the AWP as used in these arrangements; c) Customer makes benefit changes that impact the arrangements; d) there is a material industry change in pricing methodologies resulting in a new source or benchmark; e) it is not accepted within ninety (90) days of the issuance of our initial quote; f) if Customer changes their mail service benefit; g) Customer utilizes a vendor, that facilitates steering members to different drugs or pharmacies to the extent these services impact the financial guarantees under this Agreement.

TRRX (02/2022)

			Pharmacy igh December 31, 2025				
			Discount Guarantee				
Definition	specialty Pharr	Specialty drug discount level based on actual specialty drug utilization for the specialty drugs dispensed through U specialty Pharmacy Network. United reserves the right to change the designation of a drug from specialty to non-specialty based on market conditions.					
Measurement		sposite of 20.7% for drugs dispensed through United's specialty Pharmacy Network. This guarantee is effective 2023 through 12/31/2023. See chart below for a list of Specialty Drugs.					
		A composite of 20.7% for drugs dispensed through United's specialty Pharmacy Network. This guarantee is effective 01/01/2024 through 12/31/2024. See chart below for a list of Specialty Drugs.					
		f 20.7% for drugs dispensed ough 12/31/2025. See char		y Pharmacy Network. This lty Drugs.	guarantee is effective		
	guaranteed at a	discount of 14.0%.		United's specialty Pharmac			
Criteria	specialty Pharr dollars.	nacy Network will be multi	plied against the discount	using our data, of listed spe target to determine the over	rall discount target		
				ion of unlisted drugs to which ieved for these drugs during			
Level	Customer Spec	eific					
Period	Annual						
Payment Period	Annual						
Payment Amount	The amount the	e combined actual specialty	drug discounts are less that	an the composite discount d	rug target.		
The amount the combined actual specialty drug discounts are less than the composite discount drug target.  Discounts calculated based on the AWP less the ingredient cost; discount percentages are the discounts divided by the AWP. Discounts for retail generic prescriptions represent the average savings off AWP based on Maximum Allowable Cost (MAC) pricing for MAC generics and percentage discount savings off AWP for non-MA generics. All other discounts represent the percentage discount savings off of AWP.  Specialty drugs dispensed outside United's specialty Pharmacy Network, drugs for which no AWP measure exists and non-drug items are excluded.  Listed drugs which cease to be defined as specialty drugs during the Guarantee Period will be reconciled outside of Specialty Pharmacy guarantee in the channel in which they are dispensed (retail or mail order).  Specialty drugs typically covered under the medical benefit (administered / handled by a provider, administered in physician's office, ambulatory or home infusion), and/or transitioned to the pharmacy benefit, are excluded from all guarantees.  United reserves the right to revise or revoke this guarantee if: a) changes in federal, state or other applicable law or regulation require modifications; b) there are material changes to the AWP as published by the pricing agency that establishes the AWP as used in this guarantee; c) Customer makes benefit changes that impact the guarantee; d) there is a material industry change in pricing methodologies resulting in a new source or benchmark e) if actual specialty utilization is not substantially similar to that in the experience period data on which our quote is based.  On specialty drugs, United will retain the difference between what United reimburses the Network Pharmacy and Customer's payment for a prescription drug product or service.				f AWP based on ff AWP for non-MAC  WP measure reconciled outside of the der, administered in a re excluded from all ther applicable law re pricing agency act the guarantee; thmark on which our quote is work Pharmacy and			
Specialty Drug Category	Drug Name	Included/Excluded From Guarantee	Specialty Drug Category	Drug Name	Included/Excluded From Guarantee		
ANEMIA	ARANESP	Included	INFLAMMATORY CONDITIONS	ILUMYA	Included		
ANEMIA	EPOGEN	Included	INFLAMMATORY CONDITIONS	KEVZARA	Included		
ANEMIA	PROCRIT	Included	INFLAMMATORY CONDITIONS	KINERET	Included		

Ī	I	1	INFLAMMATORY		Ī
ANEMIA	RETACRIT	Included	CONDITIONS	OLUMIANT	Included
			INFLAMMATORY		
ANTICONVULSANT	DIACOMIT	Included	CONDITIONS	ORENCIA	Included
			INFLAMMATORY		
ANTICONVULSANT	EPIDIOLEX	Included	CONDITIONS	OTEZLA	Included
			INFLAMMATORY		
ANTICONVULSANT	FINTEPLA	Included	CONDITIONS	RIDAURA	Included
ANTIHYPERLIPIDE	H IVE A DID		INFLAMMATORY	DDIVOO	T 1 1 1
MIC	JUXTAPID	Included	CONDITIONS INFLAMMATORY	RINVOQ	Included
ANTI-INFECTIVE	ARIKAYCE	Included	CONDITIONS	SILIO	Included
ANTI-INTECTIVE	AKIKATCE	meraded	INFLAMMATORY	SILIQ	Iliciadea
ANTI-INFECTIVE	DARAPRIM	Included	CONDITIONS	SIMPONI	Included
THATT IN TECTIVE	Dilitin italii	meradea	INFLAMMATORY	SIMI OIM	moraded
ANTI-INFECTIVE	PYRIMETHAMINE	Included	CONDITIONS	SKYRIZI	Included
			INFLAMMATORY		
ASTHMA	FASENRA	Included	CONDITIONS	STELARA	Included
			INFLAMMATORY		
ASTHMA	NUCALA	Included	CONDITIONS	TALTZ	Included
			INFLAMMATORY		
ASTHMA	XOLAIR	Included	CONDITIONS	TREMFYA	Included
a . P. D. C.	DD OXYD OD A		INFLAMMATORY	***************************************	
CARDIOVASCULAR	DROXIDOPA	Included	CONDITIONS	XELJANZ	Included
CARDIOVACCIII AR	NODTHEDA	T., .1., .1., .1	INFLAMMATORY	VELIANZ VD	T., .1., 4., 4
CARDIOVASCULAR	NORTHERA	Included	CONDITIONS	XELJANZ XR	Included
CARDIOVASCULAR	VYNDAMAX	Included	IRON OVERLOAD	DEFERASIROX	Included
CARDIOVASCULAR	VYNDAQEL	Included	IRON OVERLOAD	EXJADE	Included
CNS AGENTS	AUSTEDO	Included	IRON OVERLOAD	FERRIPROX	Included
CNS AGENTS	ENSPRYNG	Included	IRON OVERLOAD	JADENU	Included
CNS AGENTS	FIRDAPSE	Included	LIVER DISEASE	OCALIVA	Included
			MONOCLONAL		
			ANTIBODY		
CNS AGENTS	HETLIOZ	Included	MISCELLANEOUS	BENLYSTA	Included
			MOOD DISORDER		
CNS AGENTS	INGREZZA	Included	DRUGS	SPRAVATO	Included
CNC ACENTS	DILLITEV	T., .1., .1., .1	MULTIPLE	A MDS/D A	T., -1., 4., 4
CNS AGENTS	RILUTEK	Included	SCLEROSIS MULTIPLE	AMPYRA	Included
CNS AGENTS	RILUZOLE	Included	SCLEROSIS	AUBAGIO	Included
CHULIGHIU	RIEUZUE	moraucu	MULTIPLE	HODAGIO	merauca
CNS AGENTS	RUZURGI	Included	SCLEROSIS	AVONEX	Included
			MULTIPLE		
CNS AGENTS	SABRIL	Included	SCLEROSIS	BAFIERTAM	Included
			MULTIPLE		
CNS AGENTS	TETRABENAZINE	Included	SCLEROSIS	BETASERON	Included
			MULTIPLE		
CNS AGENTS	TIGLUTIK	Included	SCLEROSIS	COPAXONE	Included
CNC ACENTE	VICADATRIN	т 1 1 1	MULTIPLE	DALEAMBREDI	T 1 1 1
CNS AGENTS	VIGABATRIN	Included	SCLEROSIS	DALFAMPRIDIN DIMETHYL	Included
CNS AGENTS	VIGADRONE	Included	MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS	FUMARATE	Included
CNS AGENTS	VIOADIONE	monucu	MULTIPLE	TUMAKATE	meruucu
CNS AGENTS	XENAZINE	Included	SCLEROSIS	EXTAVIA	Included
		11111111111	MULTIPLE		111010000
CNS AGENTS	XYREM	Included	SCLEROSIS	GILENYA	Included

I	I		MULTIPLE	I	1
CNS AGENTS	XYWAV	Included	SCLEROSIS	GLATIRAMER	Included
erio ricerito	711 11711	morada	MULTIPLE	GETTITOTIVEK	meraded
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	BETHKIS	Included	SCLEROSIS	GLATOPA	Included
			MULTIPLE		
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	CAYSTON	Included	SCLEROSIS	KESIMPTA	Included
GVGTIG FIDD OGIG	WALWDEGO	T 1 1 1	MULTIPLE	MANENCLAD	T 1 1 1
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	KALYDECO	Included	SCLEROSIS MULTIPLE	MAVENCLAD	Included
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	KITABIS PAK	Included	SCLEROSIS	MAYZENT	Included
CISTICTIBROSIS	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	morado	MULTIPLE	MITELIVI	merada
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	ORKAMBI	Included	SCLEROSIS	PLEGRIDY	Included
			MULTIPLE		
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	PULMOZYME	Included	SCLEROSIS	PONVORY	Included
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	SYMDEKO	Included	MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS	REBIF	Included
CTSTIC FIBROSIS	STWIDERO	meruded	MULTIPLE	KEDII	Hiciadea
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	TOBI	Included	SCLEROSIS	REBIF REBIDOSE	Included
			MULTIPLE		
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	TOBI PODHALER	Included	SCLEROSIS	TECFIDERA	Included
OVOTEG FEDDOGIC	TODDANGER	T 1 1 1	MULTIPLE	AT DAEDIES	T 1 1 1
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	TOBRAMYCIN	Included	SCLEROSIS MULTIPLE	VUMERITY	Included
CYSTIC FIBROSIS	TRIKAFTA	Included	SCLEROSIS	ZEPOSIA	Included
CTOTICTIBROOM	TRIKITI TA	meradea	MUSCULOSKELETA	ZEI OSIA	meruded
ENDOCRINE	BUPHENYL	Included	L AGENTS	EVRYSDI	Included
ENDOCRINE	BYNFEZIA	Included	NARCOLEPSY	WAKIX	Included
ENDOCRINE	CARBAGLU	Included	NEUTROPENIA	FULPHILA	Included
ENDOCRINE	CHENODAL	Included	NEUTROPENIA	GRANIX	Included
ENDOCRINE	CLOVIQUE	Included	NEUTROPENIA	LEUKINE	Included
ENDOCRINE	CUPRIMINE	Included	NEUTROPENIA	NEULASTA	Included
ENDOCRINE	CYSTADANE	Included	NEUTROPENIA	NEUPOGEN	Included
ENDOCRINE	CYSTADROPS	Included	NEUTROPENIA	NIVESTYM	Included
ENDOCRINE	CYSTARAN	Included	NEUTROPENIA	NYVEPRIA	Included
ENDOCRINE	DEPEN TITRATABS	Included	NEUTROPENIA	UDENYCA	Included
ENDOCRINE	D-PENAMINE	Included	NEUTROPENIA	ZARXIO	Included
ENDOCRINE	EGRIFTA	Included	NEUTROPENIA	ZIEXTENZO	Included
ENDOCKINE	EURII I A	menuded	ONCOLOGY -	ZIEATENZU	mended
ENDOCRINE	FIRMAGON	Included	INJECTABLE	ELIGARD	Included
			ONCOLOGY -		
ENDOCRINE	GATTEX	Included	INJECTABLE	INTRON A	Included
ENDOCERE	II D. A COTILLED	, , , ,	ONCOLOGY -	T ETIND OF IDE	, , , ,
ENDOCRINE	H.P. ACTHAR	Included	INJECTABLE ONCOLOGY	LEUPROLIDE	Included
ENDOCRINE	IMCIVREE	Included	ONCOLOGY - INJECTABLE	SYNRIBO	Included
ENDOCRINE	ISTURISA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ABIRATERONE	Included
ENDOCRINE ENDOCRINE			ONCOLOGY - ORAL		
	JYNARQUE	Included		AFINITOR DISPERZ	Included
ENDOCRINE	KEVEYIS	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	AFINITOR DISPERZ	Included
ENDOCRINE	KORLYM	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ALECENSA	Included
ENDOCRINE	KUVAN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ALKERAN	Included
ENDOCRINE	MYALEPT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ALUNBRIG	Included
ENDOCRINE	NATPARA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	AYVAKIT	Included
ENDOCRINE	NITYR	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	BALVERSA	Included

ENDOCRINE	OCTREOTIDE ACETATE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	BEXAROTENE	Included
ENDOCRINE	PENICILLAMINE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	BOSULIF	Included
ENDOCRINE	PROCYSBI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	BRAFTOVI	Included
ENDOCRINE	RAVICTI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	BRUKINSA	Included
ENDOCRINE	SAMSCA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	CABOMETYX	Included
ENDOCRINE	SANDOSTATIN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	CALQUENCE	Included
ENDOCRINE	SAPROPTERIN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	CAPECITABINE	Included
ENDOCRINE	SIGNIFOR SODIUM	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	CAPRELSA	Included
ENDOCRINE	PHENYLBUTYRATE SOMATULINE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	COMETRIQ	Included
ENDOCRINE	DEPOT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	COPIKTRA	Included
ENDOCRINE	SOMAVERT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	COTELLIC	Included
ENDOCRINE	SYPRINE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	DAURISMO	Included
ENDOCRINE	THIOLA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ERIVEDGE	Included
ENDOCRINE	TOLVAPTAN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ERLEADA	Included
ENDOCRINE					
	TRIENTINE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ERLOTINIB	Included
ENDOCRINE	XERMELO	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ETOPOSIDE	Included
ENDOCRINE	XURIDEN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	EVEROLIMUS	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	CHOLBAM	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	FARYDAK	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	CYSTAGON	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	FOTIVDA	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	GALAFOLD	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	GILOTRIF	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	MIGLUSTAT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	GLEEVEC	Included
ENZYME	MIGEOSTAT	meraded	ONCOLOGI ORGE	GEELVEC	meraded
DEFICIENCY	NITISINONE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	GLEOSTINE	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	ORFADIN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	HYCAMTIN	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	PALYNZIQ	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	IBRANCE	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	STRENSIQ	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ICLUSIG	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	SUCRAID	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	IDHIFA	Included
ENZYME DEFICIENCY	TEGSEDI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	IMATINIB MESYLATE	Included
ENZYME	ZANESCA	т 1 1 1	ONICOLOGY, OB 11	IMDDI IVIICA	T 1 1 1
DEFICIENCY GAUCHERS	ZAVESCA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	IMBRUVICA	Included
DISEASE	CERDELGA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	INLYTA	Included
GENETIC DISORDER	DOJOLVI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	INQOVI	Included
GENETIC DISORDER	ZOKINVY	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	INREBIC	Included
GROWTH HORMONE	LOKINV I	metuded	ONCOLOGI - ORAL	INKEDIC	menaea
DEFICIENCY	GENOTROPIN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	IRESSA	Included
GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY	HUMATROPE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	JAKAFI	Included

IJORMONE   DEFICIENCY   NCRELEX   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KINQALI   Included   GROWTII   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KINQALI FEMARA   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KINQALI FEMARA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KONTROPE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   INCLUDENCE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MENTON   Included   INCLUDENCE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MENTON   Included   INCLUDENCE   INCLUDENCE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MENTON   Included   INCLUDENCE   INCLUDENCE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MENTON   Included   INCLUDENCE   INCLUDENCE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   ONCOLOGY	GROWTH			1	1	
GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY ONTROPIN Q Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL KISQALI FEMARA Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY ONNITROPE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LAPATINIB Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY ONNITROPE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LAPATINIB Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LAPATINIB Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LAPATINIB Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LENVIMA Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY SAIZEN Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LONNURF Included INCRAONE DEFICIENCY ZOMACTON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included INCRAONE DEFICIENCY ZORBITVE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included INCRAONE DEFICIENCY ZORBITVE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MATULANE Included INCRAONE INCRAONE INCRAONE INCLUDED INCRAONE INCRAON						
HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   NORDITROPIN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KISQALI FEMARA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   NUTROPIN AQ   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KOSELUGO   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   OMNITROPE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   OMNITROPE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SAIZEN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LENVIMA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZOMACTON   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   BIRINIERT   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   CABELTY   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   CONSUZE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   CONSUZE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   FIRAZYR   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   FIRAZYR   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   FIRAZYR   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   IAEGARDA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   IAEGARDA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   IAEGARDA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEXINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILUTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILUTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILUTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   TAVALISSE   Included   ONCOLO	DEFICIENCY	INCRELEX	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	KISQALI	Included
DEFICIENCY   NORDITROPIN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KISQALI FEMARA   Included   GROWTI   IIORMONE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KOSELUGO   Included   GROWTI   IIORMONE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   GROWTI   IIORMONE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   GROWTI   IIORMONE   IIIORMONE   IIORMONE   IIIORMONE   IIIOR						
GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY OMNITROPE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY COMMACTON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LONSURF Included HEMATOLOGIC BERINERT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LYNPARZA Included HEMATOLOGIC CONBYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LYNPARZA Included HEMATOLOGIC CONBYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIELYNNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZORII Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIELYNNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZORII Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIELYNNX Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIELYNNX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIELYNNX Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIELYNN Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIELYNN Included Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - OR		NODDITRODIN	T., .1., d. d	ONCOLOGY ORAL	VICOALI EEMADA	T., -1., J - J
IIORMONE   DEFICIENCY   NUTROPIN AQ   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KOSELUGO   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   OMNTROPE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LENVIMA   Included   OROMONE   DEFICIENCY   SAIZEN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LENVIMA   Included   OROMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   OROMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZOMACTON   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   OROMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZORBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURFA   Included   OROMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZORBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURFA   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   DEFINERT   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MATULANE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   CONTEXT   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MATULANE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   DOPTELET   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEKTOYI   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   DOPTELET   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEKTOYI   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   HERAZOLOGIC		NORDITROPIN	included	UNCOLUGY - URAL	KISQALI FEMAKA	included
DEFICIENCY   NUTROPIN AQ   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   KOSELUGO   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   OMNITROPE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LAPATINIB   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SAIZEN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LENVIMA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SAIZEN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LENVIMA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZOMACTON   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LORBRENA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZOMBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   DEFICIENCY   ZORBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   DEFICIENCY   ZORBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LYNPARZA   Included   DEFICIENCY   ZORBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LYNPARZA   Included   DEFICIENCY   ZORBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   METCHINE   DEFICIENCY   LIMMATOLOGIC   CABLIVI   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   METCHINE   DEFICIENCY						
HORMONE DEFICIENCY OMNITROPE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ILAPATNIB Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY SEROSTIM Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ILONSURF Included INCOLOGY - ORAL INCREMINIST Included INCOLOGY - ORAL INCLUDENTIA INC		NUTROPIN AQ	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	KOSELUGO	Included
DEFICIENCY OMNITROPE Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL LAPATINIB Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY SAIZEN Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL LENVIMA Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY SEROSTIM Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL LONSURF Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY SEROSTIM Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL LONSURF Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY ZOMACTON Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL LUMAKRAS Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY ZORBITVE Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL LUMAKRAS Included HEMATOLOGIC BERNERT Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL LUMAKRAS Included HEMATOLOGIC CABLIVI Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL MATULANE Included HEMATOLOGIC CINRYZE Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL MATULANE Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRACYR Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL MEKTOYI Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRACYR Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL MEKTOYI Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRACYR Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL METOHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL METOHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC CATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL METOHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NETNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NETNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NETNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCOBIL Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NETNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCOBIST Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCOREST Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCOREST Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC SAIAZIR Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC SAIAZIR Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC SAIAZIR Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY-ORAL PMALYST Included NILLANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ON	GROWTH					
GROWTH   HORMONE   DIFFICIENCY   SAIZEN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LENVIMA   Included   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZOMACTON   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LORBRENA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZORBITVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   BERINERT   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LYNPARZA   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   CABLIVI   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MATULANE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   CONTACT   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MATULANE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   DOPTELET   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEKINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   FIRAZYR   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEKINIST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   HAEGARDA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MELPHALAN   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   ICATIBANT   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MESNEX   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   MOZOBIL   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NERLYNX   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   MOZOBIL   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NERLYNX   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   MOZOBIL   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NERLYNX   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   MOZOBIL   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILANDRON   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   OXBRYTA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILANDRON   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   ROMACTA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILLTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   ROMACTA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILLTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   ROMACTA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILLTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   TAKHLYRO   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILLTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   TAKHLYRO   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILLTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   TAKHLYRO   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILLTAMIDE   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   TAKHLYRO   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILLTAMIDE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   POMALYST   Included   HEMATOLOGIC   TAKHLYRO   Included   ONCOLOGY						
HORMONE DEFICIENCY GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY JUBBREAU  DEFICIENCY ZOMACTON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LONSURF Included GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY JUBBREAU  DEFICIENCY JUBBREAU  JUBBREAU  JUBBREAU  JUBBREAU  JUBBREAU  Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL JUBBREAU  Included JUBBREAU  JUBR		OMNITROPE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	LAPATINIB	Included
DEFICIENCY   SAIZEN   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LENVIMA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LORBRENA   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MATULANE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MATULANE   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MATULANE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEKINIST   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MESNEX   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NERLYNX   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NERLYNX   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   NILANDRON   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   ONC						
GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY ZOMACTON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LORBRENA Included In		CAIZEN	Included	ONCOLOGY OPAI	I ENIVIMA	Included
HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   SEROSTIM   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LONSURF   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZOMACTON   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LORBRENA   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   Included   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   Included		SAIZEN	meruded	ONCOLOGI - ORAL	LENVIMA	meraded
GROWTH IORMONE DEFICIENCY JOMACTON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included HEMATOLOGIC GROWTH HEMATOLOGIC CABLIVI Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL HEMATOLOGIC COMPTEET Included HEMATOLOGIC HEMATOLOGIC HEMATOLOGIC HEMATOLOGIC HEMATOLOGIC HEMATOLOGIC HEMATOLOGIC HEMATOLOGIC HOPTELET Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included HEMATOLOGIC HORDAN HILLIAM HORDAN HILLIAM HILLIA						
HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZOMACTON   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LORBRENA   Included   GROWTH   HORMONE   DEFICIENCY   ZORBTIVE   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   LUMAKRAS   Included   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   Included   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MEKINIST   Included   Included   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   MESPIEX   Included   Included   Included   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   Included   Included   Included   Included   Included   ONCOLOGY - ORAL   Included   Inc	DEFICIENCY	SEROSTIM	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	LONSURF	Included
DEFICIENCY GROWTH HORMONE DEFICIENCY ZORBTIVE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included DEFICIENCY ZORBTIVE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LYNPARZA Included HEMATOLOGIC CABLIVI Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LYNPARZA Included HEMATOLOGIC CONEXYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MENNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MENNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC HOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NELYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILARO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMOPHILIA INFUSED APVNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included Included HEMOPHILIA INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA INCLUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included Included Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included Included Included Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included Include	GROWTH					
GROWTH HORMONE DEPICIENCY ZORBTIVE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included DEPICIENCY ZORBTIVE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LYNPARZA Included HEMATOLOGIC CABLIVI Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MATULANE Included HEMATOLOGIC CORNYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKRINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC ICATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKAIZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANNIESD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANNIESD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANNIESD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included						
HORMONE DEFICIENCY DEFICIENCY DEFICIENCY DEFICIENCY DEFICIENCY DEFICIENCY DEFICIENCY ZORBTIVE Included DONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included LUMAKRAS Included LUMAKRAS Included DONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included LUMAKROUGIC RUMAKROUK Included LUMAKROUK Included LUMAKROUK Included LUMAKROUK Included LUM		ZOMACTON	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	LORBRENA	Included
DEFICIENCY ZORBTIVE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LUMAKRAS Included HEMATOLOGIC BERNERT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LYNPARZA Included HEMATOLOGIC CABLIVI Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MATULANE Included HEMATOLOGIC CINRYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC CINRYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILAURANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILAURANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILAURANDRO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILAURANDRO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILAURANDRO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHIZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHIZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDENT INCLUDED APSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDENT INCLUDED APSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDENT INCLUDED ALPHANTEVON INCLUDENT INCLUDED ALPHANTEVON INCLUDED ALPHANTEVON INCLUDED ALPHANTEVON INcluded ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED ALPHANTEVON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED ALPHANTEVON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONCOLOGY - ORAL Included Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL Included Included Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL Included Included Included Included Inc						
HEMATOLOGIC BERINERT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL LYNPARZA Included HEMATOLOGIC CABLIVI Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MATULANE Included HEMATOLOGIC CINRYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC ICATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NIBLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILLA - NEVISED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL		7ORRTIVE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	LUMAKRAS	Included
HEMATOLOGIC CABLIVI Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MATULANE Included HEMATOLOGIC CINRYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NICANARA Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILLYTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILLYTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHIZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHIZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONCOLOGY - ORAL INCLUDED Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL INCLUD						
HEMATOLOGIC CINRYZE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKINIST Included HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC ICATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NESLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NESLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED APINOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included						
HEMATOLOGIC DOPTELET Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MEKTOVI Included HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC ICATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILUTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QUNLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QUNLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included						
HEMATOLOGIC FIRAZYR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MELPHALAN Included HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC ICATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NEXAVAR Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILUTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INcluded ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included Included Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL	HEMATOLOGIC	CINRYZE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	MEKINIST	Included
HEMATOLOGIC HAEGARDA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL MESNEX Included HEMATOLOGIC ICATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NEXAVAR Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILADRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILATABIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILATABIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INCLUDED ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVELIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVELIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUDED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVELIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVELIMID Included	HEMATOLOGIC	DOPTELET	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	MEKTOVI	Included
HEMATOLOGIC ICATIBANT Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NERLYNX Included HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NEXAVAR Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED APSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INCLUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included	HEMATOLOGIC	FIRAZYR	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	MELPHALAN	Included
HEMATOLOGIC MOZOBIL Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NEXAVAR Included HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILUTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included	HEMATOLOGIC	HAEGARDA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	MESNEX	Included
HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILUTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included	HEMATOLOGIC	ICATIBANT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	NERLYNX	Included
HEMATOLOGIC MULPLETA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILANDRON Included HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILUTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included	HEMATOLOGIC	MOZOBIL	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	NEXAVAR	Included
HEMATOLOGIC OXBRYTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NILUTAMIDE Included HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included	HEMATOLOGIC	MULPLETA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	NILANDRON	Included
HEMATOLOGIC PROMACTA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NINLARO Included HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included						
HEMATOLOGIC RUCONEST Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL NUBEQA Included HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included						
HEMATOLOGIC SAJAZIR Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ODOMZO Included HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included						
HEMATOLOGIC TAKHZYRO Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ONUREG Included HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included						
HEMATOLOGIC TAVALISSE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL ORGOVYX Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included	HEMATOLOGIC			ONCOLOGY - ORAL		
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included	HEMATOLOGIC	_	Included		ONUREG	Included
INFUSED ADVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PEMAZYRE Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included		TAVALISSE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ORGOVYX	Included
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included				01/00/00/10 07/1	DE1 ( ) ST ID E	
INFUSED ADYNOVATE Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PIQRAY Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included		ADVATE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	PEMAZYRE	Included
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included		ADVNOVATE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	PIORAV	Included
INFUSED AFSTYLA Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL POMALYST Included HEMOPHILIA - ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included		ADTNOVATE	meruded	ONCOLOGI - OKAL	TIQIAT	meruded
HEMOPHILIA - ALPHANATE/VON INFUSED WILLEBRAND Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL PURIXAN Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included		AFSTYLA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	POMALYST	Included
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA -						
INFUSED ALPHANINE SD Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL QINLOCK Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included  HEMOPHILIA -		WILLEBRAND	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	PURIXAN	Included
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA -				011007	an w a	
INFUSED ALPROLIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL RETEVMO Included  HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included  HEMOPHILIA -		ALPHANINE SD	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	QINLOCK	Included
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA -		AT DDOLLY	Inaludad	ONCOLOGY OBAL	DETEVMO	Inalizad
INFUSED BENEFIX Included ONCOLOGY - ORAL REVLIMID Included HEMOPHILIA -		ALFRULIA	included	UNCOLUGI - UKAL	KETEVNIO	included
HEMOPHILIA -		BENEFIX	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	REVLIMID	Included
				in the state of th		
		COAGADEX	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ROZLYTREK	Included

HEMOPHILIA -		ſ	1		
INFUSED	CORIFACT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	RUBRACA	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	ELOCTATE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	RYDAPT	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	ESPEROCT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	SPRYCEL	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	EEIDA	T., .1., d., d	ONCOLOGY ODAL	CTIVADCA	T., .1., 4., 4
INFUSED HEMOPHILIA -	FEIBA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	STIVARGA	Included
INFUSED	HEMOFIL M	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	SUNITINIB	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	TIENTOT IE W	meradea	ONCOLOGI ORILL	SCIVITIVIB	meraded
INFUSED	HUMATE-P	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	SUTENT	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	IDELVION	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TABLOID	Included
HEMOPHILIA -			03100100110011		
INFUSED	IXINITY	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TABRECTA	Included
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED	JIVI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TAFINLAR	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	31 V 1	menuded	ONCOLOGI - OKAL	TATINLAK	Illetaded
INFUSED	KOATE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TAGRISSO	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	KOATE-DVI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TALZENNA	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	KOGENATE FS	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TARCEVA	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	LOVAL TRY	7 1 1 1	ONGOLOGY ODAL	TADODETNI	T 1 1 1
INFUSED HEMOPHILIA -	KOVALTRY	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TARGRETIN	Included
INFUSED	MONONINE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TASIGNA	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	MONORME	meraded	ONCOLOGI ORTE	THOIGHT	meraded
INFUSED	NOVOEIGHT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TAZVERIK	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	NOVOSEVEN RT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TEMODAR	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	NH HING		ONGOLOGIA ORAL	TEN (OZOL ON (IDE	
INFUSED HEMOPHILIA -	NUWIQ	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TEMOZOLOMIDE	Included
INFUSED	PROFILNINE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ТЕРМЕТКО	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	T KOT ILIVITYL	metuded	ONCOLOGI - ORIGIE	TEIMETRO	meraded
INFUSED	REBINYN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	THALOMID	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	RECOMBINATE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TIBSOVO	Included
HEMOPHILIA -			03100100110011	The same to be	
INFUSED	RIXUBIS	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TRETINOIN	Included
HEMOPHILIA - INFUSED	SEVENFACT	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TUKYSA	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	SEVENPACT	menuded	UNCOLOGI - UKAL	TUKTSA	Hichaea
INFUSED	TRETTEN	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TURALIO	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	VONVENDI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	TYKERB	Included
HEMOPHILIA -					
INFUSED	WILATE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	UKONIQ	Included
HEMOPHILIA -	VVNITILA	Incl., 1, 1	ONCOLOGY ODAI	VENCLEYTA	In al., J. J
INFUSED HEMOPHILIA -	XYNTHA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	VENCLEXTA	Included
INJECTABLE	HEMLIBRA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	VERZENIO	Included
I WESTIEDE	ADEFOVIR	moradou	STANDED OF CHARLE	. Elizzino	moradou
HEPATITIS B	DIPIVOXIL	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	VITRAKVI	Included
HEPATITIS B	BARACLUDE	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	VIZIMPRO	Included
HEPATITIS B	EMPAVELI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	VOTRIENT	Included

HEPATITIS B	ENTECAVIR	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	XALKORI	Included
HEPATITIS B	EPIVIR HBV	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	XELODA	Included
HEPATITIS B	HEPSERA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	XOSPATA	Included
HEPATITIS B	LAMIVUDINE HBV	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	XPOVIO	Included
HEPATITIS B	VEMLIDY	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	XTANDI	Included
HEPATITIS C	EPCLUSA	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	YONSA	Included
HEPATITIS C	HARVONI	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ZEJULA	Included
HEPATITIS C	LEDIPASVIR/SOFOS BUVIR	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ZELBORAF	Included
HEPATITIS C	MAVYRET	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ZOLINZA	Included
HEPATITIS C	PEGASYS	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ZYDELIG	Included
HEPATITIS C	PEGINTRON SOFOSBUVIR/VELP	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ZYKADIA	Included
HEPATITIS C	ATASVIR	Included	ONCOLOGY - ORAL	ZYTIGA	Included
HEPATITIS C	SOVALDI	Included	ONCOLOGY - TOPICAL	TARGRETIN	Included
HEPATITIS C	VIEKIRA PAK	Included	ONCOLOGY - TOPICAL	VALCHLOR	Included
HEPATITIS C	VOSEVI	Included	OPHTHALMIC	OXERVATE	Included
HEPATITIS C	ZEPATIER	Included	OSTEOPOROSIS	FORTEO	Included
HEREDITARY ANGIODEMA	ORLADEYO	Included	OSTEOPOROSIS	TERIPARATIDE	Included
IMMUNE	OKLADETO	menuded	OSTEOFOROSIS	TERIFARATIDE	Iliciuded
MODULATOR	ACTIMMUNE	Included	OSTEOPOROSIS	TYMLOS	Included
IMMUNE	710 THANKIETE	meraded	PARKINSONS	TIMEOS	meraded
MODULATOR	ARCALYST	Included	DISEASE	APOKYN	Included
IMMUNOLOGICAL			PARKINSONS		
AGENTS	LUPKYNIS	Included	DISEASE	INBRIJA	Included
IMMUNOLOGICAL			PARKINSONS		
AGENTS	PALFORZIA	Included	DISEASE	KYNMOBI	Included
			PULMONARY		
INFERTILITY	CETROTIDE	Included	DISEASE	ESBRIET	Included
INFERTILITY	CHORIONIC GONADOTROPIN	Included	PULMONARY DISEASE	OFEV	Included
INFERTILITI	GONADOTROFIN	mended	PULMONARY	OFEV	Hichaea
INFERTILITY	FOLLISTIM AQ	Included	HYPERTENSION	ADCIRCA	Included
IN EXTILIT	GANIRELIX	meraded	PULMONARY	ABCIRCA	meraded
INFERTILITY	ACETATE	Included	HYPERTENSION	ADEMPAS	Included
			PULMONARY		
INFERTILITY	GONAL-F	Included	HYPERTENSION	ALYQ	Included
			PULMONARY		
INFERTILITY	GONAL-F RFF	Included	HYPERTENSION	AMBRISENTAN	Included
D 1000 000 000 000	1677.07		PULMONARY	DOGENIE:	
INFERTILITY	MENOPUR	Included	HYPERTENSION	BOSENTAN	Included
INTERDITION	NOVADEL	T., -1 1 1	PULMONARY	LETAIDIC	T1 1 1
INFERTILITY	NOVAREL	Included	HYPERTENSION PULMONARY	LETAIRIS	Included
INFERTILITY	OVIDREL	Included	HYPERTENSION	OPSUMIT	Included
INTEKTILIT I	OVIDREL	menuaca	PULMONARY	OI SUMIII	monucu
INFERTILITY	PREGNYL	Included	HYPERTENSION	ORENITRAM	Included
INFLAMMATORY	TABOTTE	morado	PULMONARY	STEET THE HIT	moraded
CONDITIONS	ACTEMRA	Included	HYPERTENSION	REVATIO	Included
INFLAMMATORY			PULMONARY		
CONDITIONS	CIMZIA	Included	HYPERTENSION	SILDENAFIL	Included

INFLAMMATORY			PULMONARY		
CONDITIONS	COSENTYX	Included	HYPERTENSION	TADALAFIL	Included
INFLAMMATORY			PULMONARY		
CONDITIONS	DUPIXENT	Included	HYPERTENSION	TRACLEER	Included
INFLAMMATORY			PULMONARY		
CONDITIONS	EMFLAZA	Included	HYPERTENSION	TYVASO	Included
INFLAMMATORY			PULMONARY		
CONDITIONS	ENBREL	Included	HYPERTENSION	UPTRAVI	Included
INFLAMMATORY			PULMONARY		
CONDITIONS	HUMIRA	Included	HYPERTENSION	VENTAVIS*	Included

<sup>\*</sup>Includes Nebulizer

10/2021

Generic equivalents may be dispensed in lieu of brands.

## EXHIBIT D – BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") is incorporated into and made part of the Administrative Services Agreement ("Agreement") between United HealthCare Services, Inc. on behalf of itself and its affiliates ("Business Associate") and City and County of Denver ("Covered Entity") and is effective on January 1, 2023 (Effective Date).

The use of the term Business Associate does not create a joint venture or association, between the Covered Entity and Business Associate, that is in violation of applicable Colorado State, local or Federal law.

The parties hereby agree as follows:

# 1. **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1 Unless otherwise specified in this BAA, all capitalized terms used in this BAA not otherwise defined have the meanings established for purposes of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations as amended from time to time (collectively, "HIPAA").
- 1.2 "Privacy Rule" means the federal privacy regulations, as amended from time to time, issued pursuant to HIPAA and codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 (Subparts A & E).
- 1.3 "Security Rule" means the federal security regulations, as amended from time to time, issued pursuant to HIPAA and codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 (Subparts A & C).
- 1.4 "Services" means, to the extent and only to the extent they involve the receipt, creation, maintenance, transmission, use or disclosure of PHI, the services provided by Business Associate to Covered Entity as set forth in the Agreement, including those set forth in this BAA in Section 4, as amended by written agreement of the parties from time to time.

## 2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

With regard to its use and/or disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI), Business Associate agrees to:

- 2.1 not use and/or disclose PHI except as necessary to provide the Services, as permitted or required by this BAA and/or the Agreement, and in compliance with each applicable requirement of 45 C.F.R. 164.504(e), or as otherwise Required by Law; except that, to the extent Business Associate is to carry out Covered Entity's obligations under the Privacy Rule, Business Associate will comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to Covered Entity in the performance of those obligations.
- 2.2 implement and use appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards and comply with applicable Security Rule requirements with respect to Electronic Protected Health Information, to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this BAA and/or the Agreement.
- 2.3 without unreasonable delay, report to Covered Entity (i) any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for by this BAA and/or the Agreement, of which it becomes aware in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C); and/or (ii) any Security Incident of

- which Business Associate becomes aware in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 164.314(a)(2)(i)(C).
- 2.4 with respect to any use or disclosure of Unsecured PHI not permitted by the Privacy Rule that is caused solely by Business Associate's failure to comply with one or more of its obligations under this BAA, Covered Entity hereby delegates to Business Associate the responsibility for determining when any such incident is a Breach. In the event of a Breach, Business Associate shall (i) provide Covered Entity with written notification, and (ii) provide all legally required notifications to Individuals, HHS and/or the media, on behalf of Covered Entity, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 164 (Subpart D). Business Associate shall pay for the reasonable and actual costs associated with those notifications.
- 2.5 in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 45 C.F.R. 164.308(b)(2), ensure that any subcontractors of Business Associate that create, receive, maintain or transmit PHI on behalf of Business Associate agree, in writing, to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and/or disclosure of PHI that apply to Business Associate with respect to that PHI.
- 2.6 make available its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Secretary of HHS for purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule.
- 2.7 after receiving a written request from Covered Entity or an Individual, make available an accounting of disclosures of PHI about the Individual, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 164.528.
- 2.8 after receiving a written request from Covered Entity or an Individual, provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set about an Individual, in accordance with the requirements of 45 C.F.R. 164.524.
- 2.9 after receiving a written request from Covered Entity or an Individual, make PHI in a Designated Record Set about an Individual available for amendment and incorporate any amendments to the PHI, all in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 164.526.

## 3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COVERED ENTITY

In addition to any other obligations set forth in the Agreement, including in this BAA, Covered Entity:

- 3.1 shall provide to Business Associate only the minimum PHI necessary to accomplish the Services.
- 3.2 shall notify Business Associate of any limitations in the notice of privacy practices of Covered Entity under 45 C.F.R. 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.
- 3.3 shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, the permission by an Individual to use or disclose his or her PHI, to the extent that such changes may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

- 3.4 shall notify Business Associate of any restriction on the use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to or is required to abide by under 45 C.F.R. 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.
- 3.5 In the event Covered Entity takes action as described in this Section, Business Associate shall decide which restrictions or limitations it will administer. In addition, if those limitations or revisions materially increase Business Associate's cost of providing Services under the Agreement, including this BAA, Covered Entity shall reimburse Business Associate for such increase in cost, such increase will be limited to those amounts defined in the Master Purchase Agreement as the "Maximum Contract Amount.

# 4. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES OF PHI

Unless otherwise limited in this BAA, in addition to any other uses and/or disclosures permitted or required by this BAA or the Agreement, Business Associate may:

- 4.1 make any and all uses and disclosures of PHI necessary to provide the Services to Covered Entity.
- 4.2 use and disclose PHI, if necessary, for proper management and administration of Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of Business Associate, on the condition that the disclosures are Required by Law or any third party to which Business Associate discloses PHI for those purposes provides written assurances in advance that (i) the information will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party or as Required by Law, and (ii) the third party promptly will notify Business Associate of any instances of which it becomes aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.
- 4.3 de-identify PHI received or created by Business Associate under this BAA in accordance with the Privacy Rule.
- 4.4 provide Data Aggregation services relating to the Health Care Operations of the Covered Entity in accordance with the Privacy Rule.
- 4.5 use and disclose PHI and data as permitted in 45 C.F.R 164.512 in accordance with the Privacy Rule.
- 4.6 use PHI to create, use and disclose a Limited Data Set in accordance with the Privacy Rule.

## 5. TERMINATION

5.1 <u>Termination</u>. If Covered Entity knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the Business Associate that constitutes a material breach or violation of this BAA then the Covered Entity shall provide written notice of the breach or violation to the Business Associate that specifies the nature of the breach or violation. The Business Associate must cure the breach or end the violation on or before thirty (30) days after receipt of the written notice. In the absence of a cure reasonably satisfactory to the Covered Entity within the specified timeframe, or in the event the breach is reasonably incapable of cure, then the Covered Entity may terminate the Agreement and/or this BAA.

- 5.2 <u>Effect of Termination or Expiration</u>. After the expiration or termination for any reason of the Agreement and/or this BAA, Business Associate shall return or destroy all PHI, if feasible to do so, including all PHI in possession of Business Associate's subcontractors. In the event that Business Associate determines that return or destruction of the PHI is not feasible, Business Associate may retain the PHI and shall extend any and all protections, limitations and restrictions contained in this BAA to Business Associate's use and/or disclosure of any PHI retained after the expiration or termination of the Agreement and/or this BAA, and shall limit any further uses or disclosures solely to the purposes that make return or destruction of the PHI infeasible.
- 5.3 <u>Cooperation</u>. Each party shall cooperate in good faith in all respects with the other party in connection with any request by a federal or state governmental authority for additional information and documents or any governmental investigation, complaint, action or other inquiry.

# 6. MISCELLANEOUS

- 6.1 <u>Construction of Terms</u>. The terms of this BAA to the extent they are unclear shall be construed to allow for compliance by Covered Entity and Business Associate with HIPAA.
- 6.2 <u>Survival</u>. Sections 5.2, 5.3, 6.1, 6.2, and 6.3 shall survive the expiration or termination for any reason of the Agreement and/or of this BAA.
- 6.3 <u>No Third Party Beneficiaries</u>. Nothing in this BAA shall confer upon any person other than the parties and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.

## EXHIBIT A-2 TO MASTER PURCHASE AGREEMENT EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE And

ADMINISTRATION SERVICES PURCHASED

1) **Exhibit A-2**: SBC and Benefit Summary for City and County of Denver HSA Plan (Self-Funded) and City and County of Denver Choice Plan.

## City and County of Denver HSA Plan SBC

**Summary of Benefits and Coverage:** What this Plan Covers & What You Pay For Covered Services



**Choice Doctors Plan** 

Coverage Period: 01/01/2023 -12/31/2023

Coverage for: Family | Plan Type: EP1

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <u>plan</u>. The SBC shows you how you and the <u>plan</u> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <u>plan</u> (called the <u>premium</u>) will be provided separately.

This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-842-5520.or visit <a href="welcometouhc.com">welcometouhc.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as <a href="allowed amount">allowed amount</a>, <a href="balance">balance</a> <a href="billing">billing</a>, <a href="coinsurance">coinsurance</a>, <a href="coinsurance">copayment</a>, <a href="deductible">deductible</a>, <a href="provider">provider</a>, or other <a href="underlined">underlined</a> terms see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/">www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/</a> or call 1-866-487-2365 to request a copy.

Important Questions	Answers	Why This Matters:
What is the overall deductible?	Network: <b>\$500</b> Individual / <b>\$1,000</b> Family Per calendar year.	Generally, you must pay all of the costs from <u>providers</u> up to the <u>deductible</u> amount before this <u>plan</u> begins to pay. If you have other family members on the <u>plan</u> , each family member must meet their own individual <u>deductible</u> until the total amount of <u>deductible</u> expenses paid by all family members meets the overall family <u>deductible</u> .
Are there services covered before you meet your deductible?	Yes. <u>Preventive care</u> and categories with a <u>copay</u> are covered before you meet your <u>deductible</u> .	This <u>plan</u> covers some items and services even if you haven't yet met the annual <u>deductible</u> amount. But a <u>copayment</u> or <u>coinsurance</u> may apply.  For example, this <u>plan</u> covers certain <u>preventive services</u> without <u>cost-sharing</u> and before you meet your <u>deductible</u> . See a list of covered services at <u>www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/</u> .
Are there other deductibles for specific services?	No.	You don't have to meet <u>deductibles</u> for specific services.
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> for this <u>plan</u> ?	Network: <b>\$4,500</b> Individual / <b>\$9,000</b> Family Per calendar year.	The <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>plan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> has been met.
What is not included in the <u>out-of-pocket limit?</u>	<u>Premiums</u> , <u>balance-billing</u> charges, and health care this <u>plan</u> doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket</u> limit.
Will you pay less if you use a <u>network provider</u> ?	Yes. See myuhc.com or call 1-800-842-5520 for a list of network providers.	This <u>plan</u> uses a <u>provider network</u> . You will pay less if you use a <u>provider</u> in the <u>plan's network</u> . You will pay the most if you use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> , and you might receive a bill from a <u>provider</u> for the difference between the <u>provider's</u> charge and what your <u>plan</u> pays ( <u>balance billing</u> ). Be aware, your <u>network provider</u> might use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> for some services (such as lab work). Check with your <u>provider</u> before you get services.
Do you need a <u>referral</u> to see a <u>specialist</u> ?	No.	You can see the specialist you choose without a referral.



All **copayment** and **coinsurance** costs shown in this chart are after your **deductible** has been met, if a **deductible** applies.

Common		What You	ı Will Pay	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If you visit a health care <u>provider's</u>	Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	No Charge	Not Covered	Virtual visits - No Charge by a Designated Virtual Network Provider.
office or clinic	<u>Specialist</u> visit	\$75 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	If you receive services in addition to office visit, additional <a href="mailto:copays">copays</a> , <a href="mailto:deductibles">deductibles</a> or <a href="mailto:coinsurance">coinsurance</a> may apply e.g. surgery.
	Preventive care/screening/ immunization	No Charge	Not Covered	You may have to pay for services that aren't preventive. Ask your <u>provider</u> if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your <u>plan</u> will pay for.
If you have a test	<u>Diagnostic test</u> (x-ray, blood work)	\$2 <u>5 copay per service.</u> deductible does not apply.	Not Covered	None
	Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	\$250 copay per service, deductible does not apply.	Not Covered	None
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition  More information about prescription	Tier 1 – Your Lowest Cost Option	Retail: \$10 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply. Mail-Order: \$25 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Provider means pharmacy for purposes of this section. Retail: Up to a 31 day supply. Mail-Order: Up to a 90 day supply or Preferred 90 Day Retail Network Pharmacy You may need to obtain certain drugs, including certain specialty drugs, from a pharmacy designated by us.
drug coverage is available at welcometouhc.com	Tier 2 – Your Mid-Range Cost Option	Retail: \$35 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply. Mail-Order: \$87.50 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Certain drugs may have a <u>preauthorization</u> requirement or may result in a higher cost.  If you use an <u>out-of-network</u> pharmacy (including a mail order pharmacy), you may be responsible for any amount over the <u>allowed amount</u> .  Certain preventive medications (including certain
	Tier 3 – Your Mid-Range Cost Option	Retail: \$60 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply. Mail-Order: \$150 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	contraceptives) are covered at No Charge. See the website listed for information on drugs covered by your <u>plan</u> . Not all drugs are covered. You may be required to use a lower-cost drug(s) prior to benefits under your policy being available for certain prescribed drugs.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>welcometouhc.com</u>.

Common		What You	ı Will Pay	
Medical Event	Services You May Need	Network Provider	Out-of-Network Provider	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
McGloat Event		(You will pay the least)	(You will pay the most)	
	Tier 4 – Your Highest Cost Option	Retail: \$100 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply. Mail-Order: \$250 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	
If you have outpatient surgery	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
	Physician/surgeon fees	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	None
If you need	Emergency room care	20% coinsurance	*20% coinsurance	*Network deductible applies
immediate medical attention	Emergency medical transportation	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	*20% coinsurance	* <u>Network</u> <u>deductible</u> applies
	<u>Urgent care</u>	No Charge	Not Covered	None
If you have a hospital stay	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
	Physician/surgeon fees	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
If you need mental health, behavioral	Outpatient services	No Charge	Not Covered	Network Partial hospitalization/intensive outpatient treatment: No Charge
health, or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
If you are pregnant	Office visits	No Charge	Not Covered	Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services.
	Childbirth/delivery professional services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	Depending on the type of service a <u>copayment</u> , <u>coinsurance</u> or <u>deductible</u> may apply. Maternity care may include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound.)
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
If you need help	Home health care	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	Limited to 60 visits per calendar year.
recovering or have	Rehabilitation services	\$75 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Limits per calendar year: Physical, Speech, Occupational, Pulmonary: 20 visits each; Cardiac: 36 visits.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{welcometouhc.com}}$ .

Common		What You	ı Will Pay	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
other special health needs	<u>Habilitative services</u>	\$75 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Services are provided under and limits are combined with Rehabilitation Services above.
	Skilled nursing care	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	Limited to 60 days per calendar year (combined with inpatient rehabilitation).
	<u>Durable medical</u> <u>equipment</u>	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	Covers 1 per type of DME (including repair/replacement) every 3 years.
	Hospice services	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	None
If your child needs dental or eye care	Children's eye exam	\$50 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Limited to 1 exam every 24 months.
	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	No coverage for Children's glasses.
	Children's dental check- up	Not Covered	Not Covered	No coverage for Children's Dental check-up.
	up			

#### **Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:**

calendar year

Services Your <u>Plan</u> Generally Does NOT Cover (Check your policy or plan document for more information and a list of any other <u>excluded services</u> .)						
Cosmetic surgery	Long-term care	Private duty nursing				
Dental care	Non-emergency care when travelling outside -	<ul> <li>Routine foot care – Except as covered for</li> </ul>				
Glasses	the U.S.	Diabetes				
		Weight loss programs				
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see your <u>plan</u> document.)						
<ul> <li>Acupuncture – 20 visits per calendar year</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Hearing aids - \$2,500 per 3 years</li> </ul>	Routine eye care (adult) - 1 exam per 24 months				
<ul> <li>Chiropractic (Manipulative care) – 20 visits per</li> </ul>						

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: U.S. Department of Labor, Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-3272 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.cciio.cms.gov">www.cciio.cms.gov</a>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>. For more information about the <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>. Visit <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.cciio.cms.gov</a>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>. For more information about the <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>, visit <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or call 1-800-318-2596.

Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your <u>plan</u> for a denial of a <u>claim</u>. This complaint is called a <u>grievance</u> or <u>appeal</u>. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical <u>claim</u>. Your <u>plan</u> documents also provide complete information on how to submit a <u>claim</u>, <u>appeal</u>, or a <u>grievance</u> for any reason to your <u>plan</u>. For more information about your rights, this notice, or assistance, contact: the Member Service number listed on the back of your ID card or <u>myuhc.com</u>.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the plan or policy document at welcometouhc.com.

Additionally, a consumer assistance program may help you file your appeal. Contact dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform.

## Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit.

#### Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

## **Language Access Services:**

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-842-5520.

Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-842-5520.

Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助, 请拨打这个号码 1-800-842-5520.

Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-842-5520.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>welcometouhc.com</u>.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

## **About these Coverage Examples:**



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles</u>, <u>copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

Peg is Having a Baby (9 months of in-network pre-natal care and a hospital delivery)		Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a year of routine in-network care of a well-controlled condition)		Mia's Simple Fracture (in- <u>network</u> emergency room visit and follow up care)	
■ The plan's overall deductible\$500■ Specialist copay\$75■ Hospital (facility) coinsurance20%■ Other coinsurance20%		<ul> <li>The plan's overall deductible</li> <li>Specialist copay</li> <li>Hospital (facility) coinsurance</li> <li>Other coinsurance</li> </ul>	■ <u>Specialist copay</u> \$75 ■ <u>Specialist copa</u> ■ Hospital (facility) <u>coinsurance</u> 20% ■ Hospital (facilit		\$500 \$75 20% 20%
This EXAMPLE event includes services like:  Specialist office visits (pre-natal care) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work) Specialist visit (anesthesia)		This EXAMPLE event includes services like:  Primary care physician office visits (including disease education)  Diagnostic tests (blood work)  Prescription drugs  Durable medical equipment (glucose meter)		This EXAMPLE event includes services like:  Emergency room care (including medical supplies)  Diagnostic test (x-ray)  Durable medical equipment (crutches)  Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)	
Total Example Cost	\$12,700	Total Example Cost	\$5,600	Total Example Cost	\$2,800
In this example, Peg would pay:		In this example, Joe would pay:		In this example, Mia would pay:	
Cost Sharing		Cost Sharing		Cost Sharing	
<u>Deductibles</u>	\$500	<u>Deductibles</u>	\$500	<u>Deductibles</u>	\$500
<u>Copayments</u>	\$30	<u>Copayments</u>	\$1,100	Copayments	\$200
Coinsurance \$2,200		Coinsurance	\$60	Coinsurance	\$200
What isn't covered		What isn't covered		What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$60	Limits or exclusions	\$30	Limits or exclusions	\$0
The total Peg would pay is	\$2,790	The total Joe would pay is	\$1,690	The total Mia would pay is	\$900

We do not treat members differently because of sex, age, race, color, disability or national origin.

If you think you were treated unfairly because of your sex, age, race, color, disability or national origin, you can send a complaint to the Civil Rights Coordinator.

Online: UHC Civil Rights@uhc.com

Mail: Civil Rights Coordinator. UnitedHealthcare Civil Rights Grievance. P.O. Box 30608 Salt Lake City, UTAH 84130

You must send the complaint within 60 days of when you found out about it. A decision will be sent to you within 30 days. If you disagree with the decision, you have 15 days to ask us to look at it again.

If you need help with your complaint, please call the toll-free number listed within this Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC), TTY 711, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.

You can also file a complaint with the U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services.

Online: <a href="https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf">https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf</a>

Complaint forms are available at <a href="http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html">http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html</a>.

**Phone:** Toll-free 1-800-368-1019, 800-537-7697 (TDD)

Mail: U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services. 200 Independence Avenue, SW Room 509F, HHH Building Washington, D.C.

20201

We provide free services to help you communicate with us. Such as, letters in other languages or large print. Or, you can ask for an interpreter. To ask for help, please call the number contained within this Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC), TTY 711, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.

ATENCIÓN: Si habla **español (Spanish)**, hay servicios de asistencia de idiomas, sin cargo, a su disposición. Llame al número gratuito que aparece en este Resumen de Beneficios y Cobertura (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

請注意:如果您說中文 (Chinese),我們免費為您提供語言協助服務。請撥打本福利和承保摘要(Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) 內所列的免付費電話號碼。

XIN LƯU Ý: Nếu quý vị nói tiếng **Việt (Vietnamese)**, quý vị sẽ được cung cấp dịch vụ trợ giúp về ngôn ngữ miễn phí. Vui lòng gọi số điện thoại miễn phí ghi trong bản Tóm lược về quyền lợi và đài thọ bảo hiểm (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) này.

알림: 한국어(Korean)를 사용하시는 경우 언어 지원 서비스를 무료로 이용하실 수 있습니다. 본 혜택 및 보장 요약서(Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC)에 기재된 무료전화번호로 전화하십시오.

PAUNAWA: Kung nagsasalita ka ng **Tagalog** (**Tagalog**), may makukuha kang mga libreng serbisyo ng tulong sa wika. Pakitawagan ang toll-free na numerong nakalista sa Buod na ito ng Mga Benepisyo at Saklaw (Summary of Benefits and Coverage o SBC).

ВНИМАНИЕ: бесплатные услуги перевода доступны для людей, чей родной язык является **русском (Russian)**. Позвоните по бесплатному номеру телефона, указанному в данном «Обзоре льгот и покрытия» (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

تنبيه: إذا كنت تتحت العربية (Arabic)، فإن خدمات المساعدة اللغوية المجانبة متاحة لك. يُرجى الاتصال برقم الهاتف المجاني المدرج بداخل مخلص المزايا والتغطية (Summary of Benefits and Coverage، SBC) هذا.

ATANSYON: Si w pale **Kreyòl ayisyen (Haitian Creole)**, ou kapab benefisye sèvis ki gratis pou ede w nan lang pa w. Tanpri rele nimewo gratis ki nan Rezime avantaj ak pwoteksyon sa a (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

ATTENTION : Si vous parlez **français (French)**, des services d'aide linguistique vous sont proposés gratuitement. Veuillez appeler le numéro sans frais figurant dans ce Sommaire des prestations et de la couverture (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

UWAGA: Jeżeli mówisz po **polsku (Polish)**, udostępniliśmy darmowe usługi tłumacza. Prosimy zadzwonić pod bezpłatny numer podany w niniejszym Zestawieniu świadczeń i refundacji (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

ATENÇÃO: Se você fala **português (Portuguese)**, contate o serviço de assistência de idiomas gratuito. Ligue para o número gratuito listado neste Resumo de Benefícios e Cobertura (Summary of Benefits and Coverage - SBC).

ATTENZIONE: in caso la lingua parlata sia l'italiano (Italian), sono disponibili servizi di assistenza linguistica gratuiti. Chiamate il numero verde indicato all'interno di questo Sommario dei Benefit e della Copertura (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

ACHTUNG: Falls Sie **Deutsch (German)** sprechen, stehen Ihnen kostenlos sprachliche Hilfsdienstleistungen zur Verfügung. Bitte rufen Sie die in dieser Zusammenfassung der Leistungen und Kostenübernahmen (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) angegebene gebührenfreie Rufnummer an.

注意事項:日本語 (Japanese) を話される場合、無料の言語支援サービスをご利用いただけます。本「保障および給付の概要」(Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) に記載されているフリーダイヤルにてお電話ください。

توجه: اگر زیان شما فارسی (Farsi) است، خدمات امداد زیانی به طور رایگان در اختیار شما می باشد. لطفاً با شماره تلفن رایگان ذکر شده در این خلاصه مزایا و یوشش (Summary of Benefits and Coverage، SBC) تماس بگیرید.

ध्यान दें: यदि आप **हिंदी (Hindi)** बोलते हैं, आपको भाषा सहायता सेबाएं, नि:शुल्क उपलब्ध हैं। लाभ और कवरेज (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) के इस सारांश के भीतर सूचीबद्ध टोल फ्री नंबर पर कॉल करें।

CEEB TOOM: Yog koj hais Lus **Hmoob (Hmong)**, muaj kev pab txhais lus pub dawb rau koj. Thov hu rau tus xov tooj hu dawb teev muaj nyob ntawm Tsab Ntawv Nthuav Qhia Cov Txiaj Ntsim Zoo thiab Kev Kam Them Nqi (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) no.

ចំណាប់អារម្មណ៍: បើសិនអ្នកនិយាយ**ភាសាខ្មែរ (Khmer)** សេវាជំនួយភាសាដោយឥតគិតថ្លៃ គឺមានសំរាប់អ្នក។ សូមទូរស័ព្ទទៅលេខឥតចេញថ្លៃ ដែលមានកត់នៅក្នុង សេចក្តីសង្ខេបអត្ថប្រយោជន៍ និងការ៉ាបង់រង (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) នេះ។

PAKDAAR: Nu saritaem ti **Ilocano (Ilocano)**, ti serbisyo para ti baddang ti lengguahe nga awanan bayadna, ket sidadaan para kenyam. Maidawat nga awagan ti awan bayad na nu tawagan nga numero nga nakalista iti uneg na daytoy nga Dagup dagiti Benipisyo ken Pannakasakup (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

DÍÍ BAA'ÁKONÍNÍZIN: **Diné (Navajo)** bizaad bee yániłti'go, saad bee áka'anída'awo'ígií, t'áá jiík'eh, bee ná'ahóót'i'. T'áá shoodí Naaltsoos Bee 'Aa'áhayání dóó Bee 'Ak'é'asti' Bee Baa Hane'í (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) biyi' t'áá jiík'ehgo béésh bee hane'í biká'ígií bee hodíilnih.

OGOW: Haddii aad ku hadasho **Soomaali (Somali)**, adeegyada taageerada luqadda, oo bilaash ah, ayaad heli kartaa. Fadlan wac lambarka bilaashka ah ee ku yaalla Soo-koobitaanka Dheefaha iyo Caymiska (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

Coverage Period: 01/01/2023 -12/31/2023

Coverage for: Family | Plan Type: EP1

Summary of Benefits and Coverage: What this Plan Covers & What You Pay For Covered Services

UnitedHealthcare\*

**Choice Doctors Plan** 

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <u>plan</u>. The SBC shows you how you and the <u>plan</u> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <u>plan</u> (called the <u>premium</u>) will be provided separately.

This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-842-5520.or visit <a href="welcometouhc.com">welcometouhc.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as <a href="allowed">allowed</a> <a href="mailto:amount, balance">amount</a>, <a href="mailto:billing">billing</a>, <a href="mailto:coinsurance">coinsurance</a>, <a href="mailto:copayment">copayment</a>, <a href="mailto:ded">deductible</a>, <a href="mailto:provider">provider</a>, or other <a href="mailto:underlined">underlined</a> terms see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/">www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/</a> or call 1-866-487-2365 to request a copy.

Important Questions	Answers	Why This Matters:
What is the overall deductible?	Network: <b>\$500</b> Individual / <b>\$1,000</b> Family Per calendar year.	Generally, you must pay all of the costs from <u>providers</u> up to the <u>deductible</u> amount before this <u>plan</u> begins to pay. If you have other family members on the <u>plan</u> , each family member must meet their own individual <u>deductible</u> until the total amount of <u>deductible</u> expenses paid by all family members meets the overall family <u>deductible</u> .
Are there services covered before you meet your deductible?	Yes. <u>Preventive care</u> and categories with a <u>copay</u> are covered before you meet your <u>deductible</u> .	This <u>plan</u> covers some items and services even if you haven't yet met the annual <u>deductible</u> amount. But a <u>copayment</u> or <u>coinsurance</u> may apply.  For example, this <u>plan</u> covers certain <u>preventive services</u> without <u>cost-sharing</u> and before you meet your <u>deductible</u> . See a list of covered services at <u>www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/</u> .
Are there other deductibles for specific services?	No.	You don't have to meet deductibles for specific services.
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> for this <u>plan</u> ?	Network: <b>\$4,500</b> Individual / <b>\$9,000</b> Family Per calendar year.	The <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>plan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> has been met.
What is not included in the <u>out-of-pocket limit?</u>	<u>Premiums</u> , <u>balance-billing</u> charges, and health care this <u>plan</u> doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket</u> limit.
Will you pay less if you use a <u>network provider</u> ?	Yes. See <u>myuhc.com</u> or call <b>1-</b> 800-842-5520 for a list of <u>network providers</u> .	This <u>plan</u> uses a <u>provider network</u> . You will pay less if you use a <u>provider</u> in the <u>plan's network</u> . You will pay the most if you use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> , and you might receive a bill from a <u>provider</u> for the difference between the <u>provider's</u> charge and what your <u>plan</u> pays ( <u>balance billing</u> ). Be aware, your <u>network provider</u> might use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> for some services (such as lab work). Check with your <u>provider</u> before you get services.
Do you need a <u>referral</u> to see a <u>specialist</u> ?	No.	You can see the <u>specialist</u> you choose without a <u>referral</u> .





All **copayment** and **coinsurance** costs shown in this chart are after your **deductible** has been met, if a **deductible** applies.

Common			ı Will Pay	
Medical Event	Services You May Need	Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If you visit a health care provider's	Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	No Charge	Not Covered	Virtual visits - No Charge by a Designated Virtual Network Provider.
office or clinic	<u>Specialist</u> visit	\$75 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	If you receive services in addition to office visit, additional <a href="mailto:copays">copays</a> , <a href="mailto:deceive-services">deductibles</a> or <a href="mailto:coinsurance">coinsurance</a> may apply e.g. surgery.
	Preventive care/screening/immunization	No Charge	Not Covered	You may have to pay for services that aren't preventive. Ask your <u>provider</u> if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your <u>plan</u> will pay for.
If you have a test	<u>Diagnostic test</u> (x-ray, blood work)	\$2 <u>5 copay per service.</u> deductible does not apply.	Not Covered	None
	Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	\$250 copay per service, deductible does not apply.	Not Covered	None
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition  More information about prescription	Tier 1 – Your Lowest Cost Option	Retail: \$10 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply. Mail-Order: \$25 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Provider means pharmacy for purposes of this section. Retail: Up to a 31 day supply. Mail-Order: Up to a 90 day supply or Preferred 90 Day Retail Network Pharmacy You may need to obtain certain drugs, including certain specialty drugs, from a pharmacy designated by us.
drug coverage is available at welcometouhc.com	Tier 2 – Your Mid-Range Cost Option	Retail: \$35 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply. Mail-Order: \$87.50 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Certain drugs may have a <u>preauthorization</u> requirement or may result in a higher cost.  If you use an <u>out-of-network</u> pharmacy (including a mail order pharmacy), you may be responsible for any amount over the <u>allowed amount</u> .  Certain preventive medications (including certain
	Tier 3 – Your Mid-Range Cost Option	Retail: \$60 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply. Mail-Order: \$150 <u>copay</u> , <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	contraceptives) are covered at No Charge. See the website listed for information on drugs covered by your <u>plan</u> . Not all drugs are covered. You may be required to use a lower-cost drug(s) prior to benefits under your policy being available for certain prescribed drugs.
	Tier 4 – Your Highest Cost Option	Retail:	Not Covered	

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>welcometouhc.com</u>.

	A-D00B-4E1 B-900E-B1 C09BE041		ı Will Pay	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Network Provider	Out-of-Network Provider	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
		(You will pay the least) \$100 copay, deductible does not apply. Mail-Order: \$250 copay, deductible does not apply.	(You will pay the most)	
If you have outpatient surgery	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
	Physician/surgeon fees	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	None
If you need	Emergency room care	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	*20% coinsurance	*Network deductible applies
immediate medical attention	Emergency medical transportation	20% coinsurance	*20% coinsurance	* <u>Network deductible</u> applies
	<u>Urgent care</u>	No Charge	Not Covered	None
If you have a hospital stay	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	None
	Physician/surgeon fees	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
If you need mental health, behavioral	Outpatient services	No Charge	Not Covered	Network Partial hospitalization/intensive outpatient treatment: No Charge
health, or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
If you are pregnant	Office visits	No Charge	Not Covered	Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services.
	Childbirth/delivery professional services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	Depending on the type of service a <u>copayment</u> , <u>coinsurance</u> or <u>deductible</u> may apply. Maternity care may include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound.)
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	None
If you need help	Home health care	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Not Covered	Limited to 60 visits per calendar year.
recovering or have other special health	Rehabilitation services	\$75 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Limits per calendar year: Physical, Speech, Occupational, Pulmonary: 20 visits each; Cardiac: 36 visits.
needs	Habilitative services	\$75 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Services are provided under and limits are combined with Rehabilitation Services above.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{welcometouhc.com}}$ .

Common		What You Will Pay		
Medical Event	Services You May Need	Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Skilled nursing care	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	Limited to 60 days per calendar year (combined with inpatient rehabilitation).
	<u>Durable medical</u> <u>equipment</u>	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	Covers 1 per type of DME (including repair/replacement) every 3 years.
	Hospice services	20% coinsurance	Not Covered	None
If your child needs dental or eye care	Children's eye exam	\$50 <u>copay</u> per visit, <u>deductible</u> does not apply.	Not Covered	Limited to 1 exam every 24 months.
	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	No coverage for Children's glasses.
	Children's dental check- up	Not Covered	Not Covered	No coverage for Children's Dental check-up.

#### **Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:**

Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Che	ck your policy or plan document for more information	n and a list of any other <u>excluded services</u> .)
Cosmetic surgery	Long-term care	Private duty nursing
Dental care	Non-emergency care when travelling outside -	<ul> <li>Routine foot care – Except as covered for</li> </ul>
Glasses	the U.S.	Diabetes
		Weight loss programs
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to the	nese services. This isn't a complete list. Please see yo	our <u>plan</u> document.)
<ul> <li>Acupuncture – 20 visits per calendar year</li> <li>Chiropractic (Manipulative care) – 20 visits per calendar year</li> </ul>	Hearing aids - \$2,500 per 3 years	Routine eye care (adult) - 1 exam per 24 months

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: U.S. Department of Labor, Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-3272 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.cciio.cms.gov">www.cciio.cms.gov</a>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>. For more information about the <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>, visit <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.cciio.cms.gov</a>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>. For more information about the <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">Marketplace</a>, visit <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa">www.dol.gov/ebsa</a>, or call 1-800-318-2596.

Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your <u>plan</u> for a denial of a <u>claim</u>. This complaint is called a <u>grievance</u> or <u>appeal</u>. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical <u>claim</u>. Your <u>plan</u> documents also provide complete information on how to submit a <u>claim</u>, <u>appeal</u>, or a <u>grievance</u> for any reason to your <u>plan</u>. For more information about your rights, this notice, or assistance, contact: the Member Service number listed on the back of your ID card or <u>myuhc.com</u>.

Additionally, a consumer assistance program may help you file your appeal. Contact dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>welcometouhc.com</u>.

## Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit.

## Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

## **Language Access Services:**

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-842-5520.

Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-842-5520.

Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助, 请拨打这个号码 1-800-842-5520.

Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-842-5520.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>welcometouhc.com</u>.

## **About these Coverage Examples:**



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles</u>, <u>copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

Peg is Having a Baby (9 months of in- <u>network</u> pre-natal car hospital delivery)	e and a	Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a year of routine in- <u>network</u> care of a well- controlled condition)		Mia's Simple Fracture (in- <u>network</u> emergency room visit and follow up care)	
■ The <u>plan's</u> overall <u>deductible</u> \$500 ■ <u>Specialist copay</u> \$75 ■ Hospital (facility) <u>coinsurance</u> 20% ■ Other <u>coinsurance</u> 20%		■ <u>Specialist copay</u> \$75		<ul> <li>The plan's overall deductible</li> <li>Specialist copay</li> <li>Hospital (facility) coinsurance</li> <li>Other coinsurance</li> </ul>	\$500 \$75 20% 20%
This EXAMPLE event includes services like:  Specialist office visits (pre-natal care) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work) Specialist visit (anesthesia)		This EXAMPLE event includes services like:  Primary care physician office visits (including disease education)  Diagnostic tests (blood work)  Prescription drugs  Durable medical equipment (glucose meter)		This EXAMPLE event includes services like:  Emergency room care (including medical supplies)  Diagnostic test (x-ray)  Durable medical equipment (crutches)  Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)	
Total Example Cost	\$12,700	Total Example Cost	\$5,600	<b>Total Example Cost</b>	\$2,800
In this example, Peg would pay:		In this example, Joe would pay:		In this example, Mia would pay:	
Cost Sharing		Cost Sharing		Cost Sharing	
<u>Deductibles</u>	\$500	<u>Deductibles</u>	\$500	<u>Deductibles</u>	\$500
<u>Copayments</u>	\$30	<u>Copayments</u>	\$1,100	<u>Copayments</u>	\$200
Coinsurance \$2,200		Coinsurance	\$60	Coinsurance	\$200
What isn't covered		What isn't covered		What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$60	Limits or exclusions	\$30	Limits or exclusions	\$0
The total Peg would pay is	\$2,790	The total Joe would pay is	\$1,690	The total Mia would pay is	\$900

We do not treat members differently because of sex, age, race, color, disability or national origin.

If you think you were treated unfairly because of your sex, age, race, color, disability or national origin, you can send a complaint to the Civil Rights Coordinator.

Online: UHC Civil Rights@uhc.com

Mail: Civil Rights Coordinator. UnitedHealthcare Civil Rights Grievance. P.O. Box 30608 Salt Lake City, UTAH 84130

You must send the complaint within 60 days of when you found out about it. A decision will be sent to you within 30 days. If you disagree with the decision, you have 15 days to ask us to look at it again.

If you need help with your complaint, please call the toll-free number listed within this Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC), TTY 711, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.

You can also file a complaint with the U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services.

Online: https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf

Complaint forms are available at <a href="http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html">http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html</a>.

**Phone:** Toll-free 1-800-368-1019, 800-537-7697 (TDD)

Mail: U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services. 200 Independence Avenue, SW Room 509F, HHH Building Washington, D.C.

20201

We provide free services to help you communicate with us. Such as, letters in other languages or large print. Or, you can ask for an interpreter. To ask for help, please call the number contained within this Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC), TTY 711, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.

ATENCIÓN: Si habla **español (Spanish)**, hay servicios de asistencia de idiomas, sin cargo, a su disposición. Llame al número gratuito que aparece en este Resumen de Beneficios y Cobertura (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

請注意:如果您說中文 (Chinese),我們免費為您提供語言協助服務。請撥打本福利和承保摘要(Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) 內所列的免付費電話號碼。

XIN LƯU Ý: Nếu quý vị nói tiếng **Việt (Vietnamese)**, quý vị sẽ được cung cấp dịch vụ trợ giúp về ngôn ngữ miễn phí. Vui lòng gọi số điện thoại miễn phí ghi trong bản Tóm lược về quyền lợi và đài thọ bảo hiểm (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) này.

알림: 한국어(Korean)를 사용하시는 경우 언어 지원 서비스를 무료로 이용하실 수 있습니다. 본 혜택 및 보장 요약서(Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC)에 기재된 무료전화번호로 전화하십시오.

PAUNAWA: Kung nagsasalita ka ng **Tagalog** (**Tagalog**), may makukuha kang mga libreng serbisyo ng tulong sa wika. Pakitawagan ang toll-free na numerong nakalista sa Buod na ito ng Mga Benepisyo at Saklaw (Summary of Benefits and Coverage o SBC).

ВНИМАНИЕ: бесплатные услуги перевода доступны для людей, чей родной язык является русском (Russian). Позвоните по бесплатному номеру телефона, указанному в данном «Обзоре льгот и покрытия» (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

تنبيه: إذا كنت تتحدت العربية (Arabic)، فإن خدمات المساعدة اللغوية المجانية متاحة لك. يُرجى الاتصال برقم الهاتف المجاني المدرج بداخل مخلص المزايا والتغطية (Summary of Benefits and Coverage، SBC) هذا.

ATANSYON: Si w pale **Kreyòl ayisyen (Haitian Creole)**, ou kapab benefisye sèvis ki gratis pou ede w nan lang pa w. Tanpri rele nimewo gratis ki nan Rezime avantaj ak pwoteksyon sa a (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

ATTENTION : Si vous parlez **français (French)**, des services d'aide linguistique vous sont proposés gratuitement. Veuillez appeler le numéro sans frais figurant dans ce Sommaire des prestations et de la couverture (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

UWAGA: Jeżeli mówisz po **polsku (Polish)**, udostępniliśmy darmowe usługi tłumacza. Prosimy zadzwonić pod bezpłatny numer podany w niniejszym Zestawieniu świadczeń i refundacji (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

ATENÇÃO: Se você fala **português (Portuguese)**, contate o serviço de assistência de idiomas gratuito. Ligue para o número gratuito listado neste Resumo de Benefícios e Cobertura (Summary of Benefits and Coverage - SBC).

ATTENZIONE: in caso la lingua parlata sia l'italiano (Italian), sono disponibili servizi di assistenza linguistica gratuiti. Chiamate il numero verde indicato all'interno di questo Sommario dei Benefit e della Copertura (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

ACHTUNG: Falls Sie **Deutsch (German)** sprechen, stehen Ihnen kostenlos sprachliche Hilfsdienstleistungen zur Verfügung. Bitte rufen Sie die in dieser Zusammenfassung der Leistungen und Kostenübernahmen (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) angegebene gebührenfreie Rufnummer an.

注意事項:日本語 (Japanese) を話される場合、無料の言語支援サービスをご利用いただけます。本「保障および給付の概要」(Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) に記載されているフリーダイヤルにてお電話ください。

توجه: اگر زیان شما فارسی (Farsi) است، خدمات امداد زیانی به طور رایگان در اختیار شما می باشد. لطفاً با شماره تلفن رایگان ذکر شده در این خلاصه مزایا و یوشش (Summary of Benefits and Coverage، SBC) تماس بگیرید.

ध्यान दें: यदि आप **हिंदी (Hindi)** बोलते हैं, आपको भाषा सहायता सेबाएं, नि:शुल्क उपलब्ध हैं। लाभ और कवरेज (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) के इस सारांश के भीतर सूचीबद्ध टोल फ्री नंबर पर कॉल करें।

CEEB TOOM: Yog koj hais Lus **Hmoob (Hmong)**, muaj kev pab txhais lus pub dawb rau koj. Thov hu rau tus xov tooj hu dawb teev muaj nyob ntawm Tsab Ntawv Nthuav Qhia Cov Txiaj Ntsim Zoo thiab Kev Kam Them Nqi (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) no.

ចំណាប់អារម្មណ៍: បើសិនអ្នកនិយាយ**ភាសាខ្មែរ (Khmer)** សេវាជំនួយភាសាដោយឥតគិតថ្លៃ គឺមានសំរាប់អ្នក។ សូមទូរស័ព្ទទៅលេខឥតចេញថ្លៃ ដែលមានកត់នៅក្នុង សេចក្តីសង្ខេបអត្ថប្រយោជន៍ និងការ៉ាបង់រង (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) នេះ។

PAKDAAR: Nu saritaem ti **Ilocano (Ilocano)**, ti serbisyo para ti baddang ti lengguahe nga awanan bayadna, ket sidadaan para kenyam. Maidawat nga awagan ti awan bayad na nu tawagan nga numero nga nakalista iti uneg na daytoy nga Dagup dagiti Benipisyo ken Pannakasakup (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

DÍÍ BAA'ÁKONÍNÍZIN: **Diné (Navajo)** bizaad bee yániłti'go, saad bee áka'anída'awo'ígií, t'áá jiík'eh, bee ná'ahóót'i'. T'áá shoodí Naaltsoos Bee 'Aa'áhayání dóó Bee 'Ak'é'asti' Bee Baa Hane'í (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC) biyi' t'áá jiík'ehgo béésh bee hane'í biká'ígií bee hodíilnih.

OGOW: Haddii aad ku hadasho **Soomaali (Somali)**, adeegyada taageerada luqadda, oo bilaash ah, ayaad heli kartaa. Fadlan wac lambarka bilaashka ah ee ku yaalla Soo-koobitaanka Dheefaha iyo Caymiska (Summary of Benefits and Coverage, SBC).

# EXHIBIT A-3 TO MASTER PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN UNITED HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC. and CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER

**Exhibit A-3: Self-Funded** benefit plan stop loss insurance policy and application and amendment(s).

#### UNITEDHEALTHCARE INSURANCE COMPANY

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut

Phone: 1-860-702-5000

#### APPLICATION FOR EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

The undersigned Applicant requests the Excess Loss Insurance Benefits shown herein and provided by UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company, and agrees to be bound by the terms and provisions of the Excess Loss Insurance Policy.

**Full Legal Name of Applicant:** City and County of Denver **Address:** 201 W. Colfax Dept. 412, Denver, CO 80202

**Key Contact:** Heather Britton **Telephone:** (720) 913-5697 **Tax ID:** 84-6000580

Applicant is a: Municipality

Nature of Business of the Group to be Insured: City Government Requested Effective Date: January 1, 2020

Total number of eligible persons: Employees, their Dependents and Retirees: 8373 Retirees: (339 included in total population)

Are retirees covered: Y

**Agent or Broker:** Lockton Companies **SS No. or Tax ID:** 20-3354970

Address: 8110 E. Union Ave., Suite 700, Denver, CO 80237

#### SPECIFIC EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE:

**Benefit Period**: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, and Paid from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021.

Specific Deductible per Covered Person: \$350,000

Specific Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Specific Benefit per Covered Person: Unlimited

#### **Covered Expenses Under Specific Excess Loss:**

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

**Specific Excess Loss Premium**: \$48.11 per subscriber per month

#### AGGREGATE EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

**Benefit Period**: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, and Paid from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020.

#### **Covered Expenses under Aggregate Excess Loss Coverage:**

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Aggregate Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Aggregate Benefit: \$2,000,000 per Policy Year

**Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible**: \$54,244,549 or 95% of the first Monthly Aggregate Deductible amount times 12, whichever is greater.

Maximum Covered Expenses per Covered Person accumulating toward the Maximum Aggregate Benefit: \$350,000

Monthly Aggregate Factors: \$1,200.07 per subscriber

Aggregate Excess Loss Premium: \$1.63 per subscriber per month

#### It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that:

- a. The statements, declarations and representations made in this Application, any request for proposal, the underwriting information provided by or on behalf of the undersigned and the Plan Document are the undersigned's representations; that any Policy is issued in reliance upon the truth of such statements, declarations, and representations; and that such statements, declarations, and representations will form a part of the Excess Loss Insurance Policy. Any inaccuracy in such information or failure to disclose any such information, including all claims or possible claims, paid or pending, or which the Employer should otherwise know about, if discovered later, can result in rejection of this Application, or can change the terms, conditions or premiums, or can void coverage.
- b. As a condition precedent to the approval of this Application, the undersigned shall furnish to the Company a copy of the executed Plan Document within 90 days after the date of this application describing the benefits provided by the Plan, which shall be kept on file in the office of the Company. If the Company does not receive the Plan Document within 90 days, the Company may refund all premium and the Application shall have been null and void when signed. No Excess Loss Insurance will be effective nor reimbursement made unless a Plan Document is received and accepted by the Company.
- c. The Company will evaluate the undersigned's risk, as requested by this application, the underwriting data received and represented by the Plan and may require adjustments of rates, factors, and/or special limitations.
- d. Any coverage resulting from this Application shall be subject to the terms and provisions of the Policy herein applied for. Coverage shall become effective on the date specified in this Application if all requirements of the Company, including the Plan Document and the underwriting requirements have been met and the required premiums paid.
- e. The receipt by the Company of the first month's premium and deposit of any check drawn in connection with this Application shall not constitute an acceptance of liability. In the event the Company does not approve this application, its sole obligation shall be to refund such sum to the undersigned.

The undersigned has read the entire Application for Excess Loss Insurance and understands that the insurance requested herein is not in effect until this Application is approved and accepted by the Company.

Full Legal Name of Applicant:	
Signature of Authorized Person:	
Print Name:	Title:
Date:	
Signature of Agent or Broker:	
Print Name of Agent or Broker:	

#### FRAUD WARNING NOTICES: (Please review notice that applies in your state)

#### For applicants in Arkansas and Louisiana:

Any person who knowingly presents a false or fraudulent claim for payment of a loss or benefit or knowingly presents false information in an application for insurance, is guilty of a crime and may be subject to fines and confinement in prison.

#### For applicants in Colorado:

It is unlawful to knowingly provide false, incomplete or misleading facts or information to an insurance company for the purpose of defrauding or attempting to defraud the company. Penalties may include imprisonment, fines, denial of insurance, and civil damages. Any insurance company or agent of an insurance company who knowingly provides false, incomplete, or misleading facts or information to a policyholder or claimant for the purpose of defrauding or attempting to defraud the policyholder or claimant with regard to a settlement or award payable from insurance proceeds, shall be reported to the Colorado division of insurance within the Department of Regulatory Agencies.

#### For applicants in District of Columbia:

WARNING: It is a crime to provide false or misleading information to an insurer for purpose of defrauding the insurer or any other person. Penalties include imprisonment and/or fines. In addition, an insurer may deny insurance benefits if false information materially related to a claim was provided by the application.

#### For applicants in Florida:

Any person who knowingly and with intent to injure, defraud, or deceive any insurer files a statement of claim or an application containing any false, incomplete, or misleading information is guilty of a felony of the third degree.

#### For applicants in Kentucky, New Mexico, Ohio, and Pennsylvania:

Any person who knowingly and with intent to defraud any insurance company or other person files an application for insurance or statement of claim containing any materially false information or conceals for the purpose of misleading, information concerning any fact material thereto commits a fraudulent insurance act, which is a crime and subjects such person to criminal and civil penalties.

#### For applicants in Maine, Tennessee and Virginia:

It is a crime to knowingly provide false, incomplete, or misleading information to an insurance company for the purpose of defrauding the company. Penalties may include imprisonment, fines, or a denial of insurance benefits.

#### For applicants in New Jersey:

Any person who includes any false or misleading information on an application for an insurance policy is subject to criminal and civil penalties.

#### For applicants in all other states:

If is a crime to knowingly provided false, incomplete, or misleading information to an insurance company for the purpose of defrauding the company. Penalties may include imprisonment, fines, or a denial of insurance benefits.

## **UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company**

## **STOP LOSS POLICY**

## **FOR**

City and County of Denver

**Policy Number: GA-717340AL** 

Effective Date: January 1, 2020

State or other Jurisdiction of Issue: Colorado

## UNITEDHEALTHCARE INSURANCE COMPANY

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut

Phone: 1-860-702-5000

UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company ("Company") agrees to reimburse the Policyholder as outlined under the provisions of this Excess Loss Insurance Policy ("Policy").

This Policy is legally binding between the Policyholder and UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company. The consideration for this Policy includes, but is not limited to, the Application and the Payment of premiums as provided hereinafter.

The Policyholder is entitled to the reimbursement described in this Policy if the Policyholder is eligible for insurance under the provisions of this Policy. Reimbursement is subject to the terms and conditions of this Policy.

The first premium is due on the first (1st) day of the Policy Period. Subsequent monthly premiums are due on the first (1st) day of each month thereafter. The premium is not considered Paid until the Company receives the premium payment.

All periods of coverage will begin and end 12:01 a.m. local time at the principal office of the Policyholder.

This Policy is delivered in and is governed by the laws of the state of issue.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company has caused this Policy to be executed by its President and Secretary.

William J Golden, President

Thomas J. McGuire, Secretary

Thomas J. M'Shine

**EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE POLICY** 

## **UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company**

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut

Phone: 1-860-702-5000

#### **SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS**

This Schedule of Benefits is only applicable to Excess Loss Insurance provided by the Company during the Policy Period shown below.

Policyholder: City and County of Denver

Policy Number: GA-717340AL

Effective Date: January 1, 2020

Administrator: United HealthCare Services, Inc.

Coverage specified herein is applicable only during the Policy Period from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, and is further subject to all terms and conditions of this Policy.

#### SPECIFIC EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 and Paid from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021.

Specific Deductible per Covered Person: \$350,000

Specific Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Specific Benefit per Covered Person: Unlimited

Specific Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Specific Excess Loss Premium: \$48.11 per subscriber per month

#### AGGREGATE EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 and Paid from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020.

Aggregate Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Aggregate Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Aggregate Benefit: \$2,000,000 per Policy Year

Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible: \$54,244,549 or 95% of the first Monthly Aggregate Deductible

amount times 12, whichever is greater

Maximum Covered Expenses per Covered Person accumulating toward the Maximum Aggregate Benefit:  $\$350,\!000$ 

Monthly Aggregate Factors: \$1,200.07 per subscriber

Aggregate Excess Loss Premium: \$1.63 per subscriber per month

#### **DEFINITIONS**

**ADMINISTRATOR** means a firm or person who has been retained by the Policyholder to provide administrative services on behalf of the Policyholder/Plan.

**ANNUAL AGGREGATE DEDUCTIBLE** for any one Policy Period means the greater of: (a) sum of the Monthly Aggregate Deductibles; or (b) the Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible.

**BENEFIT PERIOD** means the period of time specified in the Schedule of Benefits in which a Covered Expense must be Incurred by the Covered Person and Paid by the Plan to be eligible for reimbursement under this Policy. This period does not alter the Effective Date, Policy Period, or waive this Policy's eligibility requirements.

**COVERED EXPENSE** means medical or other expenses under the Plan to which this Policy applies, as shown in the Schedule of Benefits, and which are not specifically excluded by the terms of this Policy. Covered Expense does not include any payment for the cost of administrating the Plan or other Policyholder contracted services.

COVERED PERSON(S) means each person covered under the Plan.

**COVERED UNITS(S)** means the types of Covered Units and the factors and premium rates for each type as shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

**EFFECTIVE DATE** is the date set forth in the applicable Schedule of Benefits.

**INCURRED** means with respect to medical services or supplies, the date on which the services are rendered or supplies are purchased by the Covered Person.

**MONTHLY AGGREGATE DEDUCTIBLE** means, with respect to a particular month, the total number of Covered Units for that given Policy month multiplied by the corresponding Monthly Aggregate Factors as specified in the Schedule of Benefits.

**PAY, PAID, PAYMENT** means under the Specific Excess Loss, on the date the Policyholder's check of Payment of a Plan benefit is issued by the Administrator or when a credit of funds for Payment of a Plan benefit has been debited by the Policyholder's bank account. Under the Aggregate Excess Loss, on the date the Policyholder's check for Payment of a Plan benefit has been presented through the collecting bank and reported to the Administrator or when a credit of funds for Payment of a Plan benefit has been debited by the Policyholder's bank account.

**PLAN** means the self-funded health care plan established by the plan sponsor to provide certain benefits to Covered Persons.

**PLAN DOCUMENT** means the written document approved by the Policyholder. A copy of the Plan Document in effect on the Effective Date is attached to the application for Excess Loss Insurance.

**POLICY PERIOD** means the specified period in the Schedule of Benefits, however beginning no earlier than the Effective Date of this Policy and continuing until coverage terminates in accordance with the Termination Provisions.

**SPECIFIC DEDUCTIBLE** is set forth in the Schedule of Benefits. The Specific Deductible will apply separately to each Benefit Period.

#### REIMBURSEMENT PROVISIONS

**NOTICE OF COVERED EXPENSE** The Policyholder authorizes the Administrator to file claims on its behalf under this Policy. The Policyholder authorizes the Company to reimburse Covered Expenses to the Administrator for deposit into the bank account maintained by the Policyholder for the funding of benefits under the Plan.

**PAYMENT BY PLAN** While the determination of benefits under the Plan is the sole responsibility of the Policyholder, the Company reserves the right to interpret the terms and conditions of the Plan Document as it applies to this Policy. The Company will have the sole authority to reimburse or deny reimbursement under this Policy.

#### SPECIFIC EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

The Schedule of Benefits indicates whether Specific Excess Loss Insurance is provided under this Policy. If, while this Policy is in effect, the Covered Expenses for a Covered Person for the applicable Benefit Period exceed the Specific Deductible, the Company will reimburse the Policyholder, subject to the terms and conditions of this Policy including the limits set forth in the Schedule of Benefits.

The amount of the reimbursement will be equal to the Specific Percentage Reimbursable times the amount by which Covered Expenses exceed the Specific Deductible amount, but will not exceed the Maximum Specific Benefit. For purposes of determining whether such Maximum Specific Benefit has been exceeded, Covered Expenses Incurred or Paid in any other Policy Period under this policy are included.

Covered Expenses for any Covered Person during the Policy Period will be determined according to the Benefit Period described in the Schedule of Benefits.

If Specific Excess Loss Insurance terminates before the end of the Policy Period, the Specific Deductible will not be reduced.

#### AGGREGATE EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

The Schedule of Benefits indicates whether Aggregate Excess Loss Insurance is provided under this Policy. If the Covered Expenses for the applicable Benefit Period exceed the Annual Aggregate Deductible for the Policy Period, the Company will reimburse the Policyholder, subject to the terms and conditions of this Policy including the limits set forth in the Schedule of Benefits.

The amount of the reimbursement will be equal to the Aggregate Percentage Reimbursable times the amount by which Covered Expenses exceed the Annual Aggregate Deductible amount, but will not exceed the Maximum Aggregate Benefit.

Covered Expenses will not include any amounts reimbursed by the Company under any other provision of this Policy. If the Policyholder's coverage terminates before the end of the Policy Period, the greater of the Accumulated Annual Aggregate Deductible or the Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible will apply. The Minimum Aggregate Deductible will not be reduced.

#### PREMIUMS AND FACTORS PROVISIONS

**PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS** For coverage to remain in effect, any subsequent monthly premium must be received by the Company by the first (1st) day of each month. Premiums are not considered Paid until the Company receives the premium payment. Premiums or other payments made by the Policyholder to their Administrator or Agent or Broker shall not be deemed or considered payments to the Company until actually received by the Company. The entire amount of the applicable premium shall be paid when due. The Company is not obligated to accept or apply any premium paid which is less than the entire amount due for any period. Premium payments shall be credited first to any past due and unpaid premium, in the order in which due.

A late payment charge may be assessed for any premiums not received within thirty-one (31) calendar days following the due date. A service charge will be assessed for any non-sufficient-fund check received in payment of premiums. The Policyholder will reimburse the Company for any attorney's fees and any other costs related to collecting delinquent premiums.

**GRACE PERIOD** A Grace Period of thirty-one (31) days from the due date will be allowed for the payment of each premium after the first. During the Grace Period, the coverage will remain in effect provided the full premium is Paid before the end of the Grace Period. Should a premium otherwise due, not be Paid during the Grace Period, this Policy will terminate without further notice as of midnight on the last day for which premiums were Paid.

**PREMIUM AMOUNT** The premiums will be calculated using rates determined by the Company as set forth in the Schedule of Benefits. The amount of total premium due each month is the sum obtained by multiplying the applicable premium rates shown in the Schedule of Benefits by the actual number of appropriate Covered Units.

The Policyholder will be liable for any premium taxes assessed at any time against the Company beyond any taxes which may be payable on the premium received by the Company.

All requests for adjustments, credits or refunds because of overpayment of premiums shall be reported, in writing, with accompanying detail within sixty (60) days after termination of the applicable Policy Period.

The Company will not refund any portion of the premiums Paid if this Policy terminates during this Policy Period. The Company shall be entitled to reduce the reimbursements due the Policyholder under this Policy against any premiums due and unpaid, any overpayments or other reimbursements made in error or upon incorrect information, and any other amounts due the Company.

**PREMIUM RATE AND MONTHLY AGGREGATE FACTOR CHANGE** The Company may change the Policyholder's premium rates or factors for any of the following:

- a) the date when the terms of this Policy are changed;
- b) the date the Plan Document changes are accepted by the Company;
- c) the date the Policyholder adds or deletes subsidiary or affiliated companies or divisions;
- d) the date the number of Covered Units on any premium due date varies more than ten percent (10%) from the number of Covered Units as of the first month of the Policy Period.

#### TERMINATION PROVISIONS

This Policy and coverage provided hereunder will terminate upon the earliest of:

- a) the premium due date of any premium which remains unpaid at the end of the Grace Period;
- b) the premium due date next following receipt by the Company of written notice from the Policyholder that this Policy is to be terminated;
- c) the date of termination of the Plan;
- d) the date the Policyholder suspends active business operations or dissolves;
- e) the end of the Policy Period; or
- f) the date the administrative services agreement with the Administrator is terminated.

This Policy may also be terminated, at the Company's option on the earliest of:

- a) the last day of the second (2nd) consecutive month during which there are less than twenty-five (25) employees enrolled in the Plan, unless the Company agrees, in writing, to continue coverage; or
- b) the date the Policyholder fails to comply with the terms of this Policy; or
- c) on the Policy anniversary date by the Company giving sixty (60) days advance written notice that this Policy will end, or such other notice as required by law.

The Company will not refund any portion of the premiums paid if this Policy is terminated during the Policy Period.

#### SUBSEQUENT POLICY PERIOD PROVISIONS

At the end of a Policy Period, this Policy may have a Subsequent Policy Period only by mutual agreement of the Policyholder and the Company and provided that the Company has not given a thirty (30) day termination notice or such other termination notice as required by law. The Subsequent Policy Period may be subject to new premium rates, factors, new underwriting terms, new Benefit Period and other new Policy terms. The terms and conditions for a subsequent Policy Period will be evidenced by the issuance of a new Schedule of Benefits by the Company, which shows the new premium rates, Benefit Period and other new terms.

#### GENERAL PROVISIONS

**ADMINISTRATOR** The Policyholder may retain an Administrator to act as an agent for the Policyholder in performing any or all of the duties as designated by the Policyholder. Without waiving any of its rights under this Policy, and without making the designated Administrator a party to this Policy, the Company agrees to recognize the Administrator as an agent of the Policyholder. The Policyholder will immediately notify the Company in writing if the agreement between the Policyholder and the Administrator terminates.

**ASSIGNMENT** The Policyholder may not assign the Policyholder's interest in or reimbursement under this Policy, and the Company will not recognize any such assignment.

**AUDITS** The Company will have the right: (a) to inspect and audit all records and procedures of the Policyholder and Administrator, developed and maintained for the Plan, that are applicable to the administration of this Policy; and (b) to require, upon request, proof satisfactory to the Company that Payment has been made to the Covered Person or the provider of such services or benefits which are the basis for any Loss by the Policyholder hereunder.

**CHANGES TO THE PLAN DOCUMENT** If the Plan Document in effect on the Effective Date is subsequently amended, notice of the amendment will be given to the Company prior to the effective date of the change. If the Company does not give written acceptance of the amendment, the Company will only provide coverage under this Policy consistent with the Plan Document prior to amendment. The Company's reimbursement will be made according to the amended Plan, once the notice is received and accepted.

**CHANGES TO THE POLICY** Only the President, a Vice President, or the Secretary of the Company have the authority to alter this Policy, or to waive any of the Company's rights and then only in writing. No such alteration of this Policy shall be valid unless endorsed and attached to this Policy. No agent, broker, or Administrator has the authority to alter this Policy or to waive any of its provisions.

**CLERICAL ERROR** Clerical errors, whether by the Policyholder or by the Company, in keeping or transmitting any records pertaining to the coverage, will not invalidate or limit coverage otherwise validly in force nor continue coverage otherwise validly terminated. Clerical error does not include any failure of the Policyholder, the Administrator or any agent of the Policyholder: (a) to comply with the requirements relating to notice of claims or payment of claims; or (b) to disclose underwriting information requested by the Company, whether or not intentional and regardless of the actual knowledge of the person providing the information.

**CONFORMITY WITH LAW** If any provision of this Policy is contrary to any law to which it is subject, such provision is hereby amended to conform to the minimum requirements of such law.

**ENTIRE CONTRACT** The Entire Contract between the Company and the Policyholder will consist of this Policy, Schedule of Benefits, application, approved amendments or endorsements, and a copy of the Plan Document, which is on file with the Company.

**INSOLVENCY** Nothing in this Policy shall either relieve an insolvent or bankrupt Policyholder from the obligation to pay premiums when due or delay or abate cancellation of this Policy for failure to do so. The insolvency, bankruptcy, financial impairment, receivership, voluntary plan of arrangement with creditors, or dissolution of the Policyholder or the Policyholder's Administrator will not impose upon the Company any liability other than the liability defined in this Policy. In particular, the insolvency of the Policyholder will not make the Company liable to the creditors of the Policyholder, including Covered Persons under the Plan.

**LEGAL ACTION** The Policyholder cannot file suit until ninety (90) days after the date on which proof of loss is given to the Company. The Policyholder cannot file suit more than three (3) years after the date on which the Policyholder must give the Company proof of Loss.

**LIABILITY** The Company will have neither the right nor the obligation under this Policy to directly pay any Covered Person or provider of professional or medical services. The Company's sole liability is to the Policyholder, subject to the terms and conditions of this Policy. Nothing in this Policy shall be construed to

UHIELIP (07/06) 8 GEN

permit a Covered Person to have a direct right of action against the Company. The Company will not be considered a party to the Plan of the Policyholder, or to any supplement or amendment to it.

MISSTATED DATA, CONCEALMENT, FRAUD The Company has relied on the information provided by the Policyholder, the Administrator or any agent of the Policyholder, in the issuance of this Policy, or for any Subsequent Policy Period. In the event of a misrepresentation, concealment or omission of a fact, or a mistake of fact (whether or not a mutual mistake), any of which materially affect the underwriting, premium, rating or terms and conditions of this Policy, the Company may, at its option:

- (a) increase premium rates, attachment points and/or otherwise change the terms and conditions of this Policy. Such increase or change to be effective retroactively to the Effective Date or as of any premium due date thereafter, or
- (b) terminate this Policy as of the next premium due date.

The Company may declare this Policy null and void in its inception if, whether before or after a claim, the Policyholder, Administrator or any agent of the Policyholder has willfully or intentionally misrepresented, concealed, omitted any material fact affecting terms, conditions, or underwriting of this Policy. In such event, the Company's liability under this Policy shall be limited to refunding premiums paid by the Policyholder after deducting therefrom the amount of any Covered Expenses reimbursed by the Company to the Policyholder prior to the date of termination. If the amount of the Covered Expenses reimbursed by the Company to the Policyholder exceeds the premiums paid by the Policyholder, the Policyholder shall pay the Company the difference within thirty (30) days of the date the Company notifies the Policyholder of such difference.

**NOTICE OF COMPLAINT, APPEAL, LEGAL ACTION** As a condition precedent to the Company reimbursing the Policyholder in any settlement or judgment for a disputed Covered Expense, the Policyholder shall immediately inform the Company of any notice of appeal, notice of legal action, or objection, demand or complaint which the Policyholder received regarding any Covered Expense that may be reimburse under this Policy.

**OTHER COVERAGE** The reimbursement provided by this Policy is in excess of other coverage such as group insurance, excess insurance, insurance, plan benefits, including insurance or plan benefits established by any federal, state, or local law.

**PARTIES TO THE POLICY** The parties to this Policy are the Policyholder and the Company. The Company's sole liability under this Policy is to the Policyholder. This Policy does not create any right or legal relation between the Company and a Covered Person under the Plan. This Policy will not be deemed to make the Company a party to any agreement between the Policyholder and the Administrator.

**POLICYHOLDER REQUIREMENTS** The Policyholder agrees to provide funds for Payment of all eligible expenses under the Plan. If the Policyholder fails to provide funds for timely Payment: (a) coverage under this Policy will immediately terminate; and (b) any Aggregate and/or Specific Deductible will be deemed not satisfied.

**RECORDS** The Policyholder will maintain records of all Covered Persons under the Plan during the Policy Period and for a period of seven (7) years after the end of the Policy Period. The Policyholder will make all such records available to the Company as needed to evaluate its liability under this Policy.

The Policyholder will maintain a separate record of any and all amounts Paid in excess of benefits eligible under the Plan.

**SEVERABILITY CLAUSE** Any clause deemed void, invalid, or otherwise unenforceable, whether or not such a provision is contrary to public policy, will not render any of the remaining provisions of this Policy invalid.

**TERMINATION OF THE POLICYHOLDER'S PLAN** The Policyholder will immediately notify the Company, if the Plan is terminated.

UHIELIP (07/06) 9 GEN

**THIRD PARTY RECOVERY** The Policyholder shall cause the Plan to undertake to pursue any and all valid claims the Plan or a Covered Person may have against third parties arising out of any occurrence resulting in a payment by the Plan or reimbursement by the Company. The Policyholder will account for and pay to the Company any amounts recovered which are reimbursable by the Company to the Policyholder under this Policy, regardless of whether this Policy is still in force on the date of recovery. Third party shall mean a person, entity or insurance company other than the Plan, the Policyholder or a Covered Person. An insurance company shall include insurance companies providing third party liability coverage, or other insurance coverage; i.e. no fault, uninsured, under insured or other similar coverage.

The Policyholder or Administrator shall notify the Company immediately upon discovering that a claim against a third party may exist. Should the Policyholder or the Administrator fail to pursue any valid claims against a third party, the Policyholder shall cause the Plan to assign its subrogation and third party recovery rights to the Company so as to allow the Company to pursue third party recoveries for Covered Expenses reimbursable to the Policyholder. In the event of such assignment, the Company shall have to exercise and enforce all of the Policyholders and/or Plan's rights against such third party. The Policyholder shall furnish such information, assistance, cooperation and execute and deliver such instruments, all as are necessary for the Company to pursue third party recoveries pursuant to this provision.

The Company's right to third party recoveries, as provided for in this provision, shall constitute and impose a trust and first-priority lien arising from any cause of action, settlement, judgment or arbitration award against a third party.

The Policyholder shall pay the Company all amounts recovered, whether by suit, settlement, alternative dispute resolution, including but not limited to arbitration or mediation, or otherwise, from any third party or their insurer to the extent of Covered Expenses regardless of whether such recovery shall be a full or partial recovery. If a third party recovery received by the Plan or Policyholder is less than the total amount paid by the Plan on behalf of the Covered Person, the Company shall be entitled to recover first, in full, any Covered Expense reimbursed by the Company under this Policy. The Company's recovery shall not be reduced by any attorney's fees incurred by the Policyholder, Plan or Covered Person unless the Company otherwise agrees in writing. All remaining amounts shall be paid to the Policyholder.

The Policyholder's failure to comply with this provision may result in the denial of a Covered Expense, in addition to all other rights of the Company under this Policy.

**WAIVER** Failure of the Company to strictly enforce its rights under this Policy shall not waive any such right, regardless of the frequency or similarity of the circumstances.

#### GENERAL EXCLUSIONS PROVISIONS

The Company will not reimburse the Policyholder for any of the following:

- (a) Any payment which does not strictly comply with the terms and conditions of the Plan Document;
- (b) Any payment or expense caused by or resulting from war, declared or undeclared or international armed conflict;
- (c) Any payment for litigation costs and expenses, extra-contractual damages, compensatory damages, interest, exemplary and punitive damages or liabilities, including but not limited to those resulting from negligence, intentional wrongs, fraud, bad faith or strict liability on the part of the Policyholder, Plan, Administrator or any agent or representative of the Policyholder, Plan or Administrator;
- (d) Any payment for occupational accidents or illnesses which are also eligible expenses covered by Workers' Compensation or Occupational Disease law, or similar legislation, whether or not coverage under such law is actually in force.

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut Phone: 1-877-294-1429

### AMENDMENT NO. 1

Amendment to be attached to and made a part of Group Policy No. GA-717340AL, issued by UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company (herein called "Company") to City and County of Denver (herein called "Policyholder").

It is agreed by and between the Company and the Policyholder that

1. The page entitled "Schedule Of Benefits" as contained in the Policy is hereby replaced with the attached page entitled "Schedule Of Benefits".

Swely J. Buch

Timothy J. Burch, Secretary

2. This Amendment will hereby be effective as of January 1, 2021.

## **UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company**

William J Golden, President

ACCEPTED BY:

Title:

Date:

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut

Phone: 1-877-294-1429

## **SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS**

This Schedule of Benefits is only applicable to Excess Loss Insurance provided by the Company during the Policy Period shown below.

Policyholder: City and County of Denver

Policy Number: GA-717340AL

Effective Date: January 1, 2021

Administrator: United HealthCare Services, Inc.

Coverage specified herein is applicable only during the Policy Period from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021, and is further subject to all terms and conditions of this Policy.

#### SPECIFIC EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 and Paid from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2022.

Specific Deductible per Covered Person: \$375,000

Specific Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Specific Benefit per Covered Person: Unlimited

Specific Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Specific Excess Loss Premium: \$47.67 per subscriber per month

ISL includes a 40% rate cap and no new laser for 2022 renewal

On the ISL coverage, UHC will agree to not issue new lasers upon renewal, excluding any individual identified as a new enrollee. In the event an individual exceeds the ISL level for two consecutive years and is deemed to be an ongoing large dollar claimant, UnitedHealthcare reserves the right to laser that individual on the subsequent renewal. Lasering alternatives may be presented along with a no laser option. With each renewal we are willing to consider extending this provision the next subsequent year.

### AGGREGATE EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021 and Paid from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021.

Aggregate Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Aggregate Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Aggregate Benefit: \$2,000,000 per Policy Year

Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible: \$75,237,811 or 95% of the first Monthly Aggregate Deductible

amount times 12, whichever is greater

Maximum Covered Expenses per Covered Person accumulating toward the Maximum Aggregate Benefit:

\$375,000

Monthly Aggregate Factors: \$1,603.06 per subscriber

Aggregate Excess Loss Premium: \$2.18 per subscriber per month

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut Phone: 1-877-294-1429

### AMENDMENT NO. 2

Amendment to be attached to and made a part of Group Policy No. GA-717340AL, issued by UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company (herein called "Company") to City and County of Denver (herein called "Policyholder").

It is agreed by and between the Company and the Policyholder that

1. The page entitled "Schedule Of Benefits" as contained in the Policy is hereby replaced with the attached page entitled "Schedule Of Benefits".

Swely J. Buch

Timothy J. Burch, Secretary

2. This Amendment will hereby be effective as of January 1, 2022.

## **UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company**

William J Golden, President

ACCEPTED BY:

Title:

Date:

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut

Phone: 1-877-294-1429

## SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

This Schedule of Benefits is only applicable to Excess Loss Insurance provided by the Company during the Policy Period shown below.

Policyholder: City and County of Denver

Policy Number: GA-717340AL

Effective Date: January 1, 2022

Administrator: United HealthCare Services, Inc.

Coverage specified herein is applicable only during the Policy Period from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022, and is further subject to all terms and conditions of this Policy.

#### SPECIFIC EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 and Paid from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2023.

Specific Deductible per Covered Person: \$375,000

Specific Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Specific Benefit per Covered Person: Unlimited

Specific Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Specific Excess Loss Premium: \$51.48 per subscriber per month

ISL includes a 40% rate cap and no new laser for 2023 renewal

On the ISL coverage, UHC will agree to not issue new lasers upon renewal, excluding any individual identified as a new enrollee. In the event an individual exceeds the ISL level for two consecutive years and is deemed to be an ongoing large dollar claimant, UnitedHealthcare reserves the right to laser that individual on the subsequent renewal. Lasering alternatives may be presented along with a no laser option. With each renewal we are willing to consider extending this provision the next subsequent year.

# AGGREGATE EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 and Paid from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022.

Aggregate Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Aggregate Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Aggregate Benefit: \$2,000,000 per Policy Year

Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible: \$73,737,168 or 95% of the first Monthly Aggregate Deductible

amount times 12, whichever is greater

Maximum Covered Expenses per Covered Person accumulating toward the Maximum Aggregate Benefit:

\$375,000

Monthly Aggregate Factors: \$1,609.80 per subscriber

Aggregate Excess Loss Premium: \$2.18 per subscriber per month

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut Phone: 1-877-294-1429

### AMENDMENT NO. 3

Amendment to be attached to and made a part of Group Policy No. GA-717340AL, issued by UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company (herein called "Company") to City and County of Denver (herein called "Policyholder").

It is agreed by and between the Company and the Policyholder that

1. The page entitled "Schedule Of Benefits" as contained in the Policy is hereby replaced with the attached page entitled "Schedule Of Benefits".

Swely J. Buch

Timothy J. Burch, Secretary

2. This Amendment will hereby be effective as of January 1, 2023.

## **UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company**

William J Golden, President

ACCEPTED BY:

Title:

Date:

A Stock Company

185 Asylum Street, Hartford, Connecticut

Phone: 1-877-294-1429

## **SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS**

This Schedule of Benefits is only applicable to Excess Loss Insurance provided by the Company during the Policy Period shown below.

Policyholder: City and County of Denver

Policy Number: GA-717340AL

Effective Date: January 1, 2023

Administrator: United HealthCare Services, Inc.

Coverage specified herein is applicable only during the Policy Period from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023, and is further subject to all terms and conditions of this Policy.

### SPECIFIC EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 and Paid from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2024.

Specific Deductible per Covered Person: \$400,000

Specific Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Specific Benefit per Covered Person: Unlimited

Specific Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Specific Excess Loss Premium: \$53.69 per subscriber per month

#### AGGREGATE EXCESS LOSS INSURANCE

Benefit Period: Covered Expenses Incurred from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2023 and Paid from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.

Aggregate Excess Loss Insurance includes:

- Medical
- Stand Alone Prescription Drug Program

Aggregate Percentage Reimbursable: 100%

Maximum Aggregate Benefit: \$2,000,000 per Policy Year

Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible: \$75,073,571 or 95% of the first Monthly Aggregate Deductible

amount times 12, whichever is greater

Maximum Covered Expenses per Covered Person accumulating toward the Maximum Aggregate Benefit:  $\$400,\!000$ 

Monthly Aggregate Factors: \$1,625.62 per subscriber

Aggregate Excess Loss Premium: \$2.21 per subscriber per month

#### EXHIBIT A-4

To

# 2023 Master Purchase Agreement Between

City & County of Denver and United Healthcare Services, Inc. and Unitedhealthcare Insurance Company

#### EAP ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

This EAP Administrative Services Agreement ("EAP Agreement") is attached as "Exhibit A-4" to that certain Master Purchase Agreement signed by and between the City & County of Denver ("City"), UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company and United HealthCare Services, Inc. (collectively "United") identified in the public record as Contract Control No. CSAHR-202265732-00 ("CSAHR – 202265732-00 MPA").

Optum agrees this EAP Agreement is subject to the terms of the 2023 MPA and Optum expressly agrees to maintain the minimum insurance as required under the 2023 MPA. If any conflict exists between the terms of this EAP Agreement and the 2023 MPA, the 2023 MPA shall control.

This EAP Agreement describes services that are to be provided to the City & County of Denver by United Behavioral Health ("**Optum**"), a California corporation (an entity related to UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company and United HealthCare Services, Inc., for EAP services to begin January 1, 2023 ("**Effective Date**").

This EAP Agreement covers the services Optum will provide to the City through this program, either directly or in conjunction with one of Optum's affiliates.

#### Section 1 – Definitions

When these terms are capitalized in this EAP Agreement they have the meanings set forth below. Defined terms may be used in the singular or plural.

Employee: A current or former employee of the City or an affiliated employer.

**Employee Assistance Program or EAP:** Services designed to assist the City's Employees, their dependents, and the City in finding solutions for personal and workplace problems.

**ERISA:** Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, including all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

**Network:** The group of Network Providers who entered into, or are governed by, contractual arrangements with Optum to provide Services to Plan Participants.

**Network Provider:** The physician, or medical professional or facility which participates in a Network and accepts negotiated fees for providing health care services. A provider is only a Network Provider if they are participating in a Network at the time services are rendered to the Plan Participant.

**Participant:** Employee beneficiary or dependent who is covered by the Plan.

PHI: Any information Optum receives or provides on behalf of the Plan which is considered Protected Health Information as the term is defined in the privacy regulations of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations (collectively, "HIPAA") and American Recovery and Reinvestment Act ("ARRA"), as each is amended from time to time.

**Plan:** The provisions of the plan of benefits to which this EAP Agreement applies, as described in the Summary Plan Description.

**Plan Administrator:** The current or succeeding person, committee, partnership, or other entity designated by the terms of the instrument under which the Plan is operated as defined by ERISA and who is responsible for the Plan's operation.

**Plan Document(s):** The documents provided to Participants that are required by ERISA and are prepared or provided by the Plan Administrator that describe either: the Services covered by this EAP Agreement; eligibility requirements for participation and benefits offered under the Plan; or any other similar information. Examples of Plan Documents include but are not limited to the following: Summary Plan Description, evidence or certificate of coverage, description of Services or a trust agreement.

**Services:** Collectively, the products and services Optum provides and performs pursuant to this EAP Agreement as set forth in **Exhibit A** attached hereto.

**Summary Plan Description or SPD:** The document(s) ERISA requires provided to Plan Participants describing the terms and conditions of coverage offered under the Plan.

#### Section 2 – Benefit Plan

- **2.1 Responsibility for the Plan and Plan Assets.** Optum is not the Plan Administrator of the Plan. Any references in this EAP Agreement, or elsewhere, to Optum "administering the Plan" are descriptive only and do not confer upon Optum anything beyond certain agreed upon claim administration duties. Except to the extent this EAP Agreement specifically requires Optum to have the fiduciary responsibility for a Plan administrative function, City has the sole responsibility for all obligations of the Plan, the Plan Sponsor, and the Plan Administrator under ERISA and any other applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to benefit design and preparation, distribution of Plan Documents, content and regulatory compliance of the Plan Documents.
- **2.2 Plan Consistent with the EAP Agreement.** The City represents that Plan Documents are consistent with this EAP Agreement. City will provide Optum with copies of Plan Documents or any communications describing Plan Documents prior to distributing these materials to Participants, Employees or third parties. City will amend Plan Documents or communications related thereto if Optum reasonably determines that references to Optum are not accurate, or a Plan provision is not consistent with this EAP Agreement or the Services. City shall be responsible for printing, maintaining a supply of and distributing to Participants, within a reasonable period of time before coverage begins, the Plan Documents and all other information and forms necessary for Participants' enrollment and continued eligibility for Services under the Plan.
- **2.3 Plan Changes.** City will provide Optum with notice of any changes to the Plan and/or Plan Documents within a reasonable period of time prior to the effective date of the change to allow Optum to determine if the change will impact the Services. Any change by City that impacts the Services must be mutually agreed to in writing prior to implementation of such change. Optum will notify City if: (i) the change increases Optum's cost of providing Services which would result in an increase in fees; or (ii) if in Optum's reasonable discretion it is unable to implement or administer the change. If the parties cannot agree to a new fee within thirty (30) days of the notice of the new fee, or if Optum notifies City that Optum is unable to reasonably implement or administer the change, Optum shall have no obligation to implement or administer the change, and City may terminate this EAP Agreement upon sixty (60) days written notice.
- **2.4 Affiliated Employers.** City represents that together, City and any of City's affiliates covered under the Plan make up a single "controlled group" as defined by ERISA. Upon request by Optum, City agrees to provide Optum with a list of City's affiliates covered under the Plan.

### **Section 3 – City Responsibilities**

- **3.1 Reliance on Data.** Optum is not liable for any acts or omissions it makes in reliance on the direction or consent from an authorized representative of City. Optum is not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions made in reliance on erroneous data provided by City or agents, or the failure of City to perform its obligations under this EAP Agreement. City understands that Optum cannot timely or accurately perform its duties under this EAP Agreement without complete, accurate, and timely information. City understands that an additional fee may be required if Optum is required to take corrective action as a result of such incomplete, inaccurate, or untimely information.
- **3.2** Authorizations, Data Integrity, and Disclosures. City is responsible for obtaining, prior to furnishing any data or information to Optum (either directly or through a third party), any necessary permissions, consents, or releases, including entering into business associate agreements if required by applicable federal, state or local laws and/or regulations, to allow City to deliver data to Optum and Optum to use and disclose such data as set forth under this EAP Agreement or required by law. Optum shall not be responsible or liable for (a) errors in data or data entry done by City or City's designated data sources, or (b) errors in services, programs, hardware, data files, or output Optum provides to or maintains for City pursuant to this EAP Agreement, if the Optum errors resulted from errors in City's or City's data sources' input data, or from City's failure to comply with this EAP Agreement. During and after the Term of this EAP Agreement, Optum may use, reproduce, transfer and combine data and any derivatives of that data for preparing commercially available normative and benchmark data and databases, and for internal and external research and analysis purposes, so long as such data has all PHI removed. Optum shall not retain or use PHI in any way beyond the term of this EAP Agreement.
- **3.3 Notices to Participants.** In the event this EAP Agreement terminates, City will notify all Participants that the Services Optum is providing under this EAP Agreement are discontinued.
- **3.4 Providing Funds for Benefits.** Optum is solely responsible for providing funds for all EAP benefits payable to Network Providers.

### **Section 4 – Services**

- **4.1 Administrative Services.** Optum will provide the administrative services described in Exhibit A.
- **4.2 Network Access, Management and Administration.** To the extent applicable to the Services, Optum will provide City and Participants with access to Networks and Network Providers, as well as related administrative services including physician (and other health care professional) relations, clinical profiling, contracting and credentialing, and network analysis and system development. The make-up of the Network can change at any time. Notice will be given in advance or as soon as reasonably possible. Optum does not employ Network Providers and they are not agents or partners of Optum. Network Providers participate in Networks only as independent contractors. Network Providers and the Participants are solely responsible for any health care services rendered to Participants. Optum is not responsible for the medical outcomes or the quality or competence of any Network Provider rendering health care services, health care services provided through an Optum affiliate network, or payment for services rendered by a Network Provider through other network.
- **4.3 City Reporting Services.** Optum will provide standard summaries of program activities to City as part of the Services. Optum reserves the right, from time to time, to change the content, format and/or type of its reports. Adhoc and non-standard reporting shall be mutually agreed upon by the parties and may be subject to additional fees.

#### **Section 5 – Service Fees**

**5.1 Service Fees.** City will pay Optum fees for the Services as set forth in **Exhibit A** of this EAP Agreement. In addition to the Service fees specified in **Exhibit A**, City must also pay Optum any additional fee that is authorized by a provision elsewhere in this EAP Agreement or is otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing. If City delegates payment of Services fees to a broker or agent, it remains City's obligation to pay Optum, and payment to a broker or agent will not relieve City of that obligation in the event a broker or agent fails to pay Optum or a payment is untimely.

- **5.2 Changes in Service Fees.** Optum will provide City with at least ninety (90) days prior written notice of revised Service fees. Service fee changes will be effective at the end of the notice period. If applicable, Optum will provide City with a notice reflecting the revised Service fees that will replace the existing **Exhibit A**. If City objects to a change in Service fees, City may terminate this EAP Agreement by providing written notice to Optum within ninety (90) days after City receives written notice of the new fees. City must still pay any amounts due for the periods during which the EAP Agreement is in effect.
- **5.3 Payments.** City will remit Service fees to Optum on or before the twentieth (20<sup>th</sup>) calendar day of the current month of Services. City shall use the "self-bill template" provided during implementation to calculate Service fees owed Optum based on the number of eligible Employees as of the first day of the current month of Services. With each payment of Service fees, City shall provide the self-bill template and such other HIPAA compliant remittance detail that includes counts of all applicable Employees and any adjustments made to the Service fees, together with any supporting documentation of the adjustments involving the current month and/or up to the previous two months of Services provided.
- **5.4 Penalties.** If monthly Service fees are not paid within ten (10) days after their due date ("Grace Period"), City will pay Optum interest on the fees owed at the interest rate of one percent (1%) for each thirty (30) day period or portion thereof for any outstanding balance. Optum billed customers will be charged accrued interest in their next month's bill. Self-billing customers must pay accrued interest for a late payment with their next monthly payment. If a self-billing City fails to pay accrued interest for a late payment, Optum reserves the right to revoke permission to self-bill or terminate the EAP Agreement. Optum's decision to provide City with a Grace Period will be based on Optum's assessment of City's financial condition, as of the Effective Date, and City's compliance with material financial obligations. If Optum determines, based on reasonable information and belief, that City's financial condition has deteriorated, or City fails to comply with the material financial obligations specified in this EAP Agreement, Optum may remove the Grace Period upon notice to City and either charge interest on payments not received after the due date or terminate the EAP Agreement.
- **5.5 Reconciliation.** Optum may periodically reconcile the total amounts City has paid Optum with the total amounts City owes Optum. If the reconciliation indicates that Optum owes City money, City's next payment will be credited. If the reconciliation indicates that City owes Optum money, Optum will invoice City for the amount due. All adjustments to over and under payments, except when arising from misrepresentation or fraud by the other party, must be reconciled no later than 180 days after the month in question and any reconciliation greater than 180 days shall be deemed waived. Any such variances occurring during the last four months of the Term will be reconciled within 180 days after the EAP Agreement's termination.

## **Section 6 – Term of the EAP Agreement**

- **6.1 Term.** This EAP Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue unless and until this EAP Agreement, or the 2023 MPA is terminated. The Initial Term and each subsequent Renewal Term are controlled by the 2023 MPA term and shall be referred to herein as (the "**Term**").
- **6.2 Services End.** EAP Services under this EAP Agreement end on the date this EAP Agreement or the 2023 MPA terminates regardless of the number of unused visits.

# **Section 7 – Termination**

- **7.1 Termination Events.** Either party may terminate this EAP Agreement with sixty (60) days written notice. If the 2023 MPA terminates, then this EAP Agreement shall also terminate.
- **7.2 Termination Transition Services.** Upon written notice of Termination, City and Optum may negotiate a written transition plan to be performed prior to Termination.

# Section 8 - Records, Information, Audits

**8.1 Records.** Optum will keep records relating to the Services provided under this EAP Agreement ("**Records**") for the later of Optum's record retention policy or requirements under applicable law.

#### 8.2 Access to Information.

- **8.2.1 City Access.** If City needs Records in order to administer the Plan, the parties shall work to provide reasonable access to the needed records. Before Optum provides any Records, including PHI, to that entity, the parties must sign a mutually agreed-upon confidentiality agreement, and the parties must agree as to what information is minimally necessary to accomplish the Plan administrative service.
- **8.2.2 Government Access.** The federal, state and local government and accrediting agencies including, but not limited to, the National Committee for Quality Assurance (the "NCQA") or to The American Accreditation HealthCare Commission/URAC, and any of their authorized representatives, shall have access to Optum Records and City authorizes Optum to release to these agencies all non-PHI Records within its possession.
- **8.3** Audits. Optum expressly agrees that Paragraph 10 of the 2023 MPA shall control the examination of records.
- **8.4 Confidential Information.** Confidential Information terms shall be controlled by the terms of the 2023 MPA and applicable exhibits thereto (such as Exhibit D Business Associate Agreement).
- **8.5 PHI.** The parties agree will comply with all applicable requirements set forth in HIPAA and ARRA. The parties' obligations with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI are outlined in the Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") attached as "Exhibit D" to the 2023 MPA. Optum agrees to abide by all the terms and conditions of the BAA that are applicable to United.

Section 9 – [Intentionally Left Blank]

**Section 10 – [Intentionally Left Blank]** 

### **Section 11 – Service Specific Terms**

**11.1 EAP Services in California.** This EAP Agreement does not cover any Participant within California and City represents there are no Participants in California. Before any Services can be provided in California this EAP Agreement must be amended.

### Section 12 – Miscellaneous

- **12.1 Subcontractors.** Optum can use subcontractors, including affiliates, to perform Services under this EAP Agreement. Optum will be responsible for their services to the same extent that Optum would have been had Optum performed the Services without the use of an affiliate or subcontractor.
- **12.2** Assignment. Neither party may assign any of its rights or obligations under this EAP Agreement without the written consent of the other party.
- **12.4 Amendment.** The EAP Agreement (including its Exhibits) may be amended only by both parties agreeing to the amendment in writing, executed by a duly authorized person of each party.
- **12.5 Regulatory Filing.** In the event that City is required to file this EAP Agreement with federal, state and local governmental authorities, City shall be responsible for filing the EAP Agreement with such authorities as required by any applicable law or regulation. If, following any such filing, the governmental authority requests changes to this EAP Agreement, Optum and City shall jointly discuss City's response to the governmental authority. In the event any

federal, state or local governmental authority requires a change to this EAP Agreement that either Optum or City deems to be material, either party may request renegotiation of the affected provisions of this EAP Agreement.

- 12.6 Independent Medical Judgment. City and Optum both acknowledge and agree that Participants' treating physician(s) and other health care providers, including but not limited to Network Providers, shall be solely responsible to provide treatment and/or services to Participants and to make all decisions related to patient care and shall exercise their independent medical judgment as to all such matters. Nothing in this EAP Agreement shall be deemed to create any rights of Optum, City, or any other person or entity to intervene in any manner with or otherwise interfere with the independent medical judgment of Participants' health care providers with regard to treatment or utilization issues, nor shall it render Optum, City, or any other person or entity responsible for the method or means by which any health care provider renders treatment or service to a Participant.
- **12.7 No Incentive Payments.** Optum receives no incentive payment based on reduction of services or the charges thereof, reduction of length of stay, or utilization of alternative treatment settings to reduce amounts of necessary or appropriate medical care.
- **12.8 Improvements and Modification of Services.** Optum reserves the right to upgrade, improve, modify or discontinue any Services provided or made available to City under this EAP Agreement.

#### **ACCEPTED AND AGREED:**

<b>United Behavior</b>	al Health	City and County of D	enver
425 Market Street, 14 <sup>th</sup> Floor San Francisco, CA 94105-2426			
San Francisco, Ca	A 94105-2426		
Signature:		Signature:	
Print Name:		Print Name:	
Title:		Title:	
Date:		Date:	

# EXHIBIT A to EAP AGREEMENT

# **SERVICES AND FEES**

The following are the administrative services Optum has agreed to provide to City at the rates set forth herein.

Product	Components	Rate Type	Rate Period	\$ Fee
Onsite EAP Consultant	Denver, CO (40 hrs/wk)	Fee	Per Month	\$13,823.00
	(Effective 1/1/23)			
Onsite EAP Consultant	Denver, CO (40 hrs/wk)	Fee	Per Month	\$13,823.00
	(Effective 1/1/23)			

Onsite EAP Rate increases by 3% in 2024.

These rates are based on a population of 14,000. If the population changes by more than 10%, then Optum reserves the right to revise the rates.